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About Rollins

70+

17,500+

11+%

TOTAL COUNTRIES 
SERVICED  

WORLDWIDE

TOTAL REVENUE GROWTH
(2022 OVER 2021)

EMPLOYEES

Rollins, Inc. is a premier global consumer and commercial services company.  
Our services are aimed at controlling pests and helping our customers protect their 
health, brands, and property. We have consistently grown through challenging 
economic cycles while focusing on providing exceptional customer service.

ROLLINS AT A GLANCE

MISSION STATEMENT
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FY 2022 REVENUE GROWTH  (YEAR OVER YEAR)

CASH FLOW 
FROM OPERATIONS

FY 2022 CASH FLOW USE 
& LIQUIDITY HIGHLIGHTS

FY 2022 FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

+10.3% +15.4%+9.9%$2.7B

RESIDENTIAL
11.2% GROWTH

7.8% ORGANIC
3.4% ACQUISITION

TOTAL SHAREHOLDER RETURN

YEAR(S) RETURN

NET DEBT TO ADJUSTED EBITDA AT 12/31/2022CONVERSION OF NET INCOME

S&P 500

S&P 500 
COMMERCIAL

ROLLINS

$593M
22% OF REVENUES
INCREASING 8.5%
YEAR OVER YEAR

ADJUSTED EBITDA

$369M
INCREASING 8.0%
YEAR OVER YEAR

ADJUSTED NET INCOME

$0.75
INCREASING 8.7%
YEAR OVER YEAR

ADJUSTED EPS

COMMERCIAL TERMITE & ANCILLARY

TOTAL REVENUES

This document includes non-GAAP financial measures. For full financial data and non-GAAP reconciliations refer to page 68 of Rollins, Inc. 2022 Annual Report.

DIVIDENDS

ACQUISITIONS

CAPEX

NET DEBT
PAYMENTS

($212M)

($119M)

($31M)

($100M)

0.1xGREATER THAN 100%

-100 0 100 200 300 400 500 600

$402M

$466M

FY 2021 FY 2022

+16%

1 YEAR

10 YEARS

8.1
-9.6

-18.0

545.6
280.1

226.5

STRONG RETURNS OVER THE SHORT-TERM AND LONG-TERM

2022 Financial Highlights
We finished 2022 with a record level of revenues, healthy profitability and strong cash flow. 
The demand for our services remained strong over the course of the year, and we saw improved 
incremental margins as we exited the year. We generated cash flow of $466 million, paid over  
$200 million in dividends and invested in excess of $100 million in acquisitions. Our strong cash 
flow and balance sheet position us well to continue to invest in future growth opportunities.

– Kenneth D. Krause, Executive Vice President, Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer
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As we look at what’s ahead for Rollins in 2023 and beyond, we  
honor the legacy of Gary W. Rollins and his remarkable 56-year career 
thus far at Rollins. We reflect on his positive impact and outstanding 
contributions to our company and industry and look forward to his 
continued role as Chairman of the Board of Directors.

The Crown Leadership 
Lifetime Achievement 
Award is a testament to 
his talent and dedication. 
– Dan Moreland, publisher, PCT magazine

Career of Distinction
Preceded by his father (O. Wayne Rollins), uncle (John 
W. Rollins) and brother (Randall Rollins), Gary followed 
in working for the family business. From his start as a 
service technician at Orkin to becoming Chairman and 
CEO of Rollins, Gary has been instrumental in helping our 
organization and the pest control industry thrive through 
his unwavering commitment to serving our employees, 
customers, shareholders and communities. 

Gary’s immense achievements on behalf of our company and 
industry are reflected through numerous awards over his career:

	» �1998 – Pest Control Technology (PCT) Crown 
Leadership Award 

	» �2003 – National Pest Management Association (NPMA) 
Pinnacle Award – NPMA’s most coveted and prestigious 
accolade which honors an individual who has 
contributed not only to the success of the association 
but to the industry as a whole over a lifetime

	» �2012 – Induction into Pest Management Professional 
(PMP) Hall of Fame 

	» �2020 – Atlanta Business Chronicle’s Most Admired CEO

	» �2021 – PCT and Syngenta Crown Leadership Lifetime 
Achievement Award – Determined by previous Crown 
Leadership Award recipients, this award is one of the 

most prestigious industry awards

A Culture Built on Character
The character of our 
people has been why 
we have consistently 
succeeded in growing our 
business, garnering the 
reputation as a leader 
in a highly competitive 
industry, while cultivating 
a great place to work. 

Our strong and distinctive 
culture has been centered 
around the principles 
of customer-driven 
service, exemplary ethical 
standards and the highest 
level of professionalism. 
Through Gary’s steadfast 
leadership in demonstrating and inspiring these values, 
he has shaped our culture and our committment to 
continuously improve our business. 

Gary has been instrumental in establishing Rollins as a 
company where people can build a long-term career. There 
are countless examples of employees who have moved from 
entry level positions to the most senior levels in the company. 
Living out our guiding principles is recognized and rewarded. 

We believe that a strong, 
positive and enduring  
culture is critical to a  
company’s success. 
– Gary W. Rollins

A Tribute to Gary W. Rollins 
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Doing the Right  
Thing for Customers 

Gary’s persistent 
emphasis on doing the 
right thing for customers 
has been a core value that 
has guided us for decades 
and has become a 
hallmark of our company. 

Gary’s focus on doing the 
right thing for customers 
was never more apparent 
than in his active role 

in working with industry leaders to eliminate the use of 
chlordane, a termiticide, in 1988. While chlordane was highly 
effective, it was later discovered to pose certain risks. Gary 
spearheaded efforts between the makers of chlordane and 
the Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) to voluntarily 
withdraw the product from the market.  

Once chlordane was removed, effective alternatives 
were not immediately 
available, resulting in  
an unexpected increase 
in termite claims.  
Rollins invested over 
$100 million into a 
program to proactively 
reinspect and retreat 
the homes of all termite 
customers, including 
the vast majority 
who were not directly 
impacted. Gary yet 
again demonstrated the 
importance of doing the 
right thing for customers, 
no matter what.

Started working 
for Orkin as 
utility service 
technician in
Chattanooga, TN, 
while attending 
college

Joined Orkin as 
full-time Sales 
Team member, 

before becoming 
manager of the 

Atlanta Buckhead 
branch and the 

Marietta, GA, 
branch 

President 
and COO 
of Orkin

CEO of
Rollins, Inc.

Vice 
Chairman 
of Rollins, Inc.

Chairman of 
Rollins, Inc.

1967

2001

2020

1966

1978

2013

A Career Timeline

Customers are the most important people in every 
business. They are not an interruption to work;  
they are the sole purpose of it. 
– Gary W. Rollins
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Legacy of Community Impact
From the millions of dollars of college scholarships to the 
various philanthropic endeavors involving educational, 
health care and other community efforts, the generosity 
shown by the Rollins family is legendary. 

Gary has upheld his strong family legacy of philanthropy. 
Under his guidance and passion for giving, Rollins employees 
have supported the United Way of Greater Atlanta since 
1985. Over the course of our 41-year history with United 
Way, Rollins has raised over $21 million through employee 
donations and company matches that have supported 
local communities and others in need. Gary has been 
instrumental in instilling a culture of serving our community 
and has established Rollins as a community leader.

It is a mark of good 
citizenship to protect the 
people and environment in  
which we live.
– Gary W. Rollins

Rollins’ evolution will  
allow us to continue our 
Company’s tradition of 
success well into the future.
– The Art of Change: The Story of Rollins

A Winning Tradition
By any financial measure, Rollins is a success story. Since 
our founding in 1948 by two brothers with $25,000, we 
have grown to just under $2.7 billion in total revenues with 
over 17,500 employees globally and a market capitalization 
approaching $18 billion at the end of 2022.

Gary’s longstanding focus on excellent financial performance 
drives a winning tradition of steady growth and profitability 
at Rollins. Under Gary’s leadership as CEO over the past 
20 years, Rollins has experienced dramatic growth that 
has significantly increased our company’s value and global 
footprint. Gary and his team have guided Rollins as we 
have evolved from supporting Orkin, one of the world’s 

largest pest control 
companies, to 
becoming the 
parent of the world’s 
leading portolio of 
pest control brands. 
Today, through  
our growing family 
of brands, we 
serve 2.8 million 
commercial 
and residential 
customers in over 
70 countries. 

“Our employees, our customers and our company represent  
three legs on a stool. For this stool to sit properly, the legs have  
to be even. If you take care of employees, they’ll take care of  
the customer and both of them will take care of the company.” 
– Gary W. Rollins



As we mark 59 years in 
the pest management 
industry, and 55 years as 
a publicly held company 
on the NYSE, we are 
proud of the outstanding 
legacy of Rollins and 
our family of brands. 
With such a long track 
record of success and 
tremendous growth, our 
results have positioned 

us well for the future. We upheld strong momentum in 
2022, and we are committed to building upon our success 
in 2023 and beyond. 

I am honored to share this letter with you as I begin my first 
year as CEO, following the distinguished tenure of Gary W. 
Rollins. I am pleased to lead this company and to have the 
opportunity to build upon our solid foundation of doing the 
right thing for team members, customers, communities, and 
shareholders. Every day, I feel inspired while working side 
by side with our diverse group of 17,500 team members 
who are dedicated, focused, and committed to upholding 
our values and making sure that people, our customers and 
employees, remain the number one priority in everything 
that we do.

When it comes to customers and the communities we serve, 
we are working to earn trust and create peace of mind by 
protecting our customers where they live, work and play. 
Equally important, when it comes to our team members, 
our aim is to continue to focus on being the employer of 
choice. Quite simply, when I think about serving our many 
stakeholders, I am reminded of a frequent comment that 
Gary has shared over the years, “It is not enough to be the 
best, we must always strive to be better.” 

Reflecting Upon 2022
When I look back on 2022 and think about the mission of 
Rollins, we enjoyed many successes and accomplishments 
while also positioning ourselves for the future. We closed out 
2022 with record revenues of $2.7 billion. 

During 2022, we welcomed 31 acquisitions into our Company 
and recognized growth of 11.2% in total revenues. This level 
of revenue resulted in adjusted earnings per share growth of 
8.7% to $0.75 per diluted share. Demand from our customers 
remained strong throughout the year across our major 
service offerings. In addition to seeing healthy growth in our 
residential and commercial markets, we saw accelerated 
growth in our termite and ancillary offerings. The emphasis 
we continue to place on driving additional value-added 
services for our customers paid off and provides me with 
a sense of confidence going forward. The 15.4% percent 
growth we delivered in termite and ancillary work was 
impressive and is very much reflective of the engagement 
level of our team members. Our teams have leveraged our 
strong customer base through optimal cross-selling practices, 
proactively offering complementary value-added services.
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To Our Shareholders,  
Employees, and Valued Customers



Our balanced approach 
to growth also means 
finding quality, profitable 
businesses that are poised 
to help us maximize 
revenue and operational 
synergies. Over the 
past five years, we have 
acquired 169 businesses, 

and invested over $900 million in these acquisitions. These 
businesses range in value and are located in the U.S. and 
around the globe. During 2022, Rollins U.K. completed key 
acquisitions that expanded our footprint to Wales, Scotland, 
and Northwest England, providing resources that will 
improve our ability to serve customers throughout the U.K. 

Not only do we continue to grow through acquisitions, but 
we also have made considerable investments in driving 
innovative new service offerings for our customers. For 
instance, by introducing green pest control solutions to 
clients, we have created options for clients who have 
evolving environmental and sustainability priorities. 
Additionally, we have enabled a new Tactical Planner 
toolset that improves drive time and better organizes our 
routes with reduced territory overlap. This helps to define 
tighter geographic grids ensuring we are most efficient in 
reaching and servicing our customers. It was also exciting 
to see the successful enhanced development of the InSite 
Portal Platform application. This Platform expands on the 
integrated experience for customers that use Enterprise 
Facility Management partners, allowing for better, more 
seamless interaction with our customers. These steps 
demonstrate our enduring commitment to continuous 
improvement for our customer base. 

Today our top 
focus is aimed 
at driving the 
growth of 
our business 
with a healthy 
balance of 
acquisitions 
and organic 
investments. 

Quite simply, we strive to achieve the highest level of 
customer service and we know that to be successful on 
that front we must make the necessary investments in our 
culture and our team members. 

Investing in Our  
Team Members and Culture
Our culture continued to evolve in 2022 and I look forward to 
implementing opportunities that will drive more sustainable 

improvement in this 
very important area 
of our business in 
the years to come. 
The engagement of 
our team members 
is reflective of the 

inclusive culture we continue to cultivate across our diverse 
team of over 17,500 associates. We previously introduced 
and implemented a five-pronged Workplace Inclusion 
initiative that is augmenting employee engagement. To 
date, we have created an Inclusion Advisory Council, have 
designated a management-level leadership position to 
address inclusion and outlined a strategic plan that will be 
further executed in 2023. These initiatives are aiding in our 
ability to attract, retain and develop the most talented and 
diverse employee base in the industry. 

Along with our focus on 
engagement, the health 
and financial well-being 
of our team members is 
and will always remain 
a top priority. We never 
stop looking for ways to 
provide quality healthcare 
and improved retirement options. We launched Everside Health 
during 2022. This is an onsite health care service that provides 
our teams with 24/7 access to dedicated health care providers 
near home or work. This resource provides our team members 
with very convenient access to high-quality care helping them 
balance their work life with the needs of their families.
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Additionally, our Employee Stock Purchase Plan (ESPP) was 
enhanced to provide our team members with the opportunity 
to purchase Rollins common stock at a discount in 2022. 
Since inception in July 2022, over 10% of our workforce are 
participating and we expect the numbers to continue to climb 
in years to come. 

In reflecting on all of these efforts, 
we were pleased to learn in early 
2023 that Rollins was recognized 
for the first time nationally as 
a Top Workplace by Energage. 
Energage is an employer research 
firm specializing in studying and 
highlighting organizations from 
across multiple markets and 
industries. Rollins was also selected 

as a Top Workplace in Atlanta for the seventh year in a row 
from a list of impressive candidates that include top public 
companies. This recognition relies upon the direct input of 
our team members and is reflective of the engagement of 
our entire workforce. We are proud of the recognition but 
also realize we have more work to do as we continue to 
make the necessary investments in our team members  
that will ensure we remain an employer of choice.

We focused on evolving our leadership team and made 
significant investments in structuring a team that brings 
experience, capabilities, and a proven track record of 
success to lead us into the future. We made several 
changes in 2022 and more recently in early 2023.  
Kenneth Krause joined Rollins as Executive Vice President, 

Chief 
Financial 
Officer, and 
Treasurer, 
bringing  
more than 
two decades 
of leadership 
experience 

that has spanned finance, corporate communications, 
corporate development, and strategy for large, globally 
diversified publicly traded companies. Recently, Thomas 
Tesh was promoted to Chief Administrative and Information 
Officer, with additional responsibilities to leverage 
technology, process improvement and cross-functional 
relationships to evolve Rollins to be a more efficient parent 
company to our family of brands. Finally, with the retirement 

of Freeman Elliott after a distinguished career over the  
past 31 years, in December 2022, Pat Chrzanowski was 
named the new President of Orkin. Pat progressed through 
the ranks of Orkin over the past 16 years and brings a 
wealth of knowledge and operational experience to this 
leadership position. I am excited about these leadership 
changes and the impact each will have on our business in 
the coming years. 

Moving Forward Together
As we ended 2022, we continue to face expected challenges, 
but I see “a year like no other” taking on a new meaning 
for 2023 at Rollins. 
We are proud of our 
accomplishments and 
look forward to driving 
even greater success 
in the many years to 
come. The future is 
bright and I have a 
growing confidence 
as we continue to 
evaluate exciting new 
growth opportunities. Our strong financial position provides 
us with significant flexibility that will enable us to aggressively 
pursue our goals. Together, we are working to become even 
stronger, deliver on our promises and be an exceptional 
service provider. 

I want to recognize and thank our Board of Directors, 
Executive Team and all of our associates around the world 
for their efforts and contributions to our success in 2022. 
Furthermore, I want to thank our customers for trusting 
Rollins and our global family of brands to provide the 
service that they demand and come to expect each time we 
show up at their door. And to our shareholders, thank you 
for your confidence and commitment to the long term.

Finally, I would like to thank Gary Rollins for his leadership 
over the past five-plus decades. Mr. Rollins has led this 
 company through revolutionary times in the pest 
management industry, while providing mentorship and 
counsel to many along the way. I’m proud to follow in his 
footsteps and continue our winning tradition at Rollins. 

Jerry Gahlhoff  
President and Chief Executive Officer
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To Our Valued Customers,  
Employees, and Shareholders

2022 marked another strong year of revenue and profitability, 
a testament to our company’s ability to execute and remain 
focused on serving our customers. I am very proud of our 
solid performance and remain confident that we are well 
positioned to expand on our track record of strategic growth 
and profitability moving forward. 

I have always believed that our company culture is the 
backbone of our success and in reflecting on my career to 
date at Rollins, I am reminded of the phrase that “the more 
things change, the more they remain the same”. 

Since I started working for our company over 56 years ago, 
there have been countless changes that have impacted 
our business: technology, the economy, regulations, 
competition, our environment, and even a global pandemic, 
just to name a few. However, despite all of the changes 
we’ve experienced over the decades — whether they were 
good, bad or somewhere in between — our longstanding 
culture of delivering excellent service to our customers  
and keeping them at the center of all that we do, has been 
our cornerstone. 

Our culture of success is rooted in the quality of our 
employees and their drive and commitment to always keep 
our customers first. This customer-focused mindset is 
embraced by our new CEO, Jerry Gahlhoff. Jerry is uniquely 
positioned to sustain and build on our long-established 
winning tradition and culture with his deep industry and 
technical knowledge, exceptional leadership ability and 
operational and service excellence. I have tremendous 
confidence in Jerry and look forward to watching as  
he positions the company to accelerate growth and  
continue to improve what we do.

I am excited about our future and am honored to continue 
serving as Executive Chairman of our Board of Directors.

Sincerely,

Gary W. Rollins
Chairman

I am very proud of our solid performance  
and remain confident that we are well 
positioned to expand on our track record  
of strategic growth moving forward.
– Gary W. Rollins
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Gary W. Rollins
Executive Chairman  

of the Board

John F. Wilson
Vice Chairman and Assistant to the 

Executive Chairman of the Board 

Jerry E. Gahlhoff Jr.
President and  

Chief Executive Officer

Executive  
Leadership Team

Thomas D. Tesh
Chief Administrative  

and Information Officer

Kenneth D. Krause
Executive Vice President,  

Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer

Elizabeth B. Chandler
Corporate Secretary and   

Chief Legal Officer

Patrick J. Chrzanowski
President of Orkin

Steven M. Leavitt
President of  

Rollins Brands



(This page has been left blank intentionally)



UNITED STATES
SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION

Washington, D.C. 20549

FORM 10-K
ANNUAL REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934 

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2022

Commission file No. 1-4422

ROLLINS, INC.
(Exact name of registrant as specified in its charter)

Delaware 51-0068479
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 Securities registered pursuant to section 12(g) of the Act: 
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Indicate by check mark YES NO
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•	 Indicate by check mark if the registrant is not required to file reports pursuant to Section 13 or Section 15(d) of the Act.  

•	 Indicate by check mark whether the Registrant (1) has filed all reports required to be filed by Section 13 or 15(d) of the 
Securities Exchange Act of 1934 during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the Registrant was required to 
file such reports), and (2) has been subject to such filing requirements for the past 90 days.

 

•	 Indicate by check mark whether the registrant has submitted electronically every Interactive Data File required to be submitted 
pursuant to Rule 405 of Regulation S-T (§ 232.405 of this chapter) during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period 
that the registrant was required to submit such files).

 

•	 Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a large accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, a non-accelerated filer, a smaller reporting 
company, or an emerging growth company. See the definitions of “large accelerated filer,” “accelerated filer,” “smaller reporting company,” and 
emerging growth company in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act.

Large Accelerated Filer   Accelerated filer   Non-accelerated filer   Smaller reporting company   Emerging growth company 

•	 If an emerging growth company, indicate by check mark if the registrant has elected not to use the extended transition period for 
complying with any new or revised financial accounting standards pursuant to Section 13(a) of the Exchange Act. 

•	 Indicate by check mark whether the registrant has filed a report on and attestation to its management’s assessment 
U.S.C.7262(b)) by the registered public accounting firm that prepared or issued its audit report.  

•	 If securities are registered pursuant to Section 12(b) of the Act, indicate by check mark whether the financial statements of the 
registrant included in the filing reflect the correction of an error to previously issued financial statements.  

•	 Indicate by check mark whether any of those error corrections are restatements that required a recovery analysis of incentive-
based compensation received by any of the registrant’s executive officers during the relevant recovery period pursuant to 
§240.10D-1(b).



•	 Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a shell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act).  

The aggregate market value of Rollins, Inc. Common Stock held by non-affiliates on June 30, 2022 was $8,027,727,333 based on the reported 
last sale price of common stock on June 30, 2022, which is the last business day of the registrant’s most recently completed second fiscal quarter.

Rollins, Inc. had 492,280,053 shares of Common Stock outstanding as of January 31, 2023.

DOCUMENTS INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE
Portions of the Proxy Statement for the 2023 Annual Meeting of Stockholders of Rollins, Inc. are incorporated by reference into Part III,  
Items 10-14.
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Part I
Item 1.
Business

General Overview
Rollins, Inc. (“Rollins,” “we,” “us,” “our,” or the “Company”), is an 
international services company headquartered in Atlanta, Georgia. 
Through our family of leading brands, we provide essential pest 
and wildlife control services and protection against termite 
damage, rodents and insects to more than two million residential 
and commercial customers from more than 800 Company-owned 
and franchised locations in approximately 70 countries. Over 
the course of our lengthy operating history, we have garnered a 
reputation for providing great customer service. The contracted 
and recurring nature of our services provide us with visibility into a 
significant portion of our future earnings.

In 1964, brothers O. Wayne and John Rollins acquired Orkin 
Exterminating Company and in 1965 we changed our name 
from Rollins Broadcasting, Inc to Rollins, Inc. In 1968, Rollins 
began trading on the New York Stock Exchange under the symbol 
“ROL.” Since then, we have grown into a premier consumer and 
commercial services business with numerous industry leading 
brands including the world renowned Orkin, as well as HomeTeam 
Pest Defense, Clark Pest Control, Western Pest Services, Critter 
Control Wildlife, and Northwest Exterminating, among others.

We operate under one reportable segment which contains our 
three business lines: 

	> Residential: Pest control services protecting residential 
properties from common pests, including rodents, insects and 
wildlife; 

	> Commercial: Workplace pest control solutions for customers 
across diverse end markets such as healthcare, foodservice, 
logistics; and 

	> Termite: Termite protection services and ancillary services for 
both residential and commercial customers.

Our Competitive Strengths
Rollins is a global leader in pest control. We have established a 
portfolio of premier brands with extensive service capabilities 
across a deep operating network. Our scale enables delivery 
of great service and provides a significant and reinforcing 
competitive advantage through (i) comprehensive capabilities 
to win new residential and commercial accounts, (ii) technology 
investments for operations optimization and enhanced customer 
experience, (iii) route density to manage variable costs, and  
(iv) financial flexibility to generate organic growth and pursue M&A.

Robust Operating Platform with Proprietary 
Technology
Our extensive footprint creates an efficient and scalable 
operating platform to facilitate exceptional customer service 
delivery, increased cross-selling opportunities, and cost 
efficiencies. We have strategically invested in proprietary 
routing and scheduling technologies to increase our competitive 
advantage, which includes real-time service tracking and 
customer internet communication to personalize the customer 
experience. We run our proprietary Branch Operating Support 
System (“BOSS”), which offers a back-end interface to facilitate 
service tracking and payment processing for technicians. BOSS 
also provides virtual route management tools to increase 
route efficiency across our network, reducing miles driven and 
associated costs while increasing customer retention through 
on-time and rapid response service. 

Differentiated Employee Base and Service Delivery
Our employees are critical to delivering an outstanding customer 
experience, and we are highly focused on providing our team 
with best-in-class training and development opportunities. We 
operate the 27,000 square foot Rollins Learning Center training 
facility located in Atlanta, GA, which is a distance-learning 
and global broadcast facility with simulated environments and 
classrooms for training. In addition to in-person training, the 
Rollins Learning Center offers on-demand training sessions 
that employees can access from anywhere in the world that are 
produced at our on-site, state-of-the-art broadcast studio. Our 
unique programs contribute to our position as an employer of 
choice and have earned us recognition from Training magazine 
among the Top 125 U.S. Training Companies 17 times in the 
past 20 years. We were also recognized by the Top Workplaces 
program as a top workplace on both a national and local level. 
This marks the seventh consecutive year to be recognized in 
Atlanta. We continuously monitor co-worker engagement and 
customer loyalty.

Experienced Management Team
Our management team combines extensive business and 
consumer services experience with robust local pest control 
leadership. Consistent with our culture of attracting, developing 
and progressing talented individuals, our senior leadership 
team consists of a combination of long-term internal leaders 
and strategic hires from well-respected external platforms. Our 
Chairman, Gary Rollins, is the son of Rollins, Inc. co-founder O. 
Wayne Rollins and has spent his entire career with the Company, 
serving as Chief Executive Officer (“CEO”) from 2001 to 2022. 
Effective January 1, 2023, Jerry Gahlhoff, Jr. assumed the role of 
CEO and now serves as President and CEO.



15Rollins, Inc.  2022 ANNUAL REPORT   |

Part I 
Item 1. — Business

International Business
We continue to expand our international presence through 
organic growth, acquisitions, and our international franchise 
programs. In 2022, we saw revenue growth in our operations 
in Canada, Australia, and the United Kingdom. We believe 
geographic diversity allows us to increase brand recognition, 
meet demands of global customers, and draw on business and 
technical expertise from teams in several countries, and offers 
us an opportunity to access new markets.

Franchising Programs
We have franchise programs through Orkin, Critter Control and 
our Australian subsidiaries. We had a total of 137, 135 and 128 
domestic franchise agreements as of December 31, 2022, 2021 
and 2020, respectively. International franchise agreements totaled 
89, 103 and 101 as of December 31, 2022, 2021 and 2020, 
respectively. Transactions with our franchises involve sales of 
territories and customer contracts to establish new franchises and 
the payment of initial franchise fees and royalties by franchisees. 
The territories, customer contracts and initial franchise fees are 
typically paid for by a combination of cash and notes. 

Acquisition Strategy
We have extensive experience acquiring companies of all sizes. 
Over the last three years, we have completed approximately 100 
acquisitions, including 31 acquisitions in 2022. Our acquisition 
strategy targets high quality, profitable businesses with strong 
leadership that would benefit from incremental growth capital 
and have the potential to achieve margin expansion through cost 
and revenue synergies.

Seasonality 
Our business is somewhat affected by weather conditions, 
including climate change and the seasonal nature of our pest 
and termite control services. The increase in pest presence and 
activity, as well as the metamorphosis of termites in the spring 
and summer (the occurrence of which is determined by the timing 
of the change in seasons), has historically resulted in an increase 
in the revenue of our pest and termite control operations during 
such periods as evidenced by the following chart.

Consolidated Net Revenues

(in thousands) 2022 2021 2020
First Quarter $     590,680 $     535,554 $     487,901
Second Quarter  714,049  638,204  553,329
Third Quarter  729,704  650,199  583,698
Fourth Quarter  661,390  600,343  536,292
Year to date $ 2,695,823 $ 2,424,300 $ 2,161,220

Our quarterly profitability correlates with our revenue due to 
seasonality, as profit is lower in the first and fourth quarters and 
higher in the second and third quarters.

Materials and Supplies
Our Company has relationships with a vast network of national 
pest control product distributors, manufacturers and other 
suppliers for pest and termite treatment products. We maintain 
a sufficient level of products, materials, and other supplies 
to fulfill our immediate servicing needs and to mitigate any 
potential short-term shortage in availability from our national 
network of suppliers. We also have qualified comparable 
products and materials for key categories to have alternatives 
ready as needed. However, at any time supply chain disruptions 
that are more than short-term in nature could impact our levels 
of products, materials and other supplies.

Competition
We operate in a highly competitive environment. The principal 
factors of competition in our pest and termite control markets 
are quality and speed of service, customer proximity, customer 
satisfaction, brand awareness and reputation, terms of 
guarantees, safety, technical proficiency and price. Due to 
our strong direct partnerships with product manufacturers, 
distributors, and visibility into the inventories, ordering and 
distribution of materials and supplies, we are able to foresee 
potential supply disruptions and to quickly adapt. The use of 
an innovative and industry changing distribution model and 
technology enables us to maintain adequate supplies for our 
field operations without a significant investment in warehousing 
and inventory. 

We believe that, through our wholly-owned subsidiaries, we 
compete effectively and favorably with our competitors as one 
of the world’s largest pest and termite control companies. Our 
major competitors include Rentokil, Ecolab, and Anticimex.

Research and Development
Our expenditures on research activities relating to the 
development of new products or services are not significant. 
We utilize the relationships with our manufacturer and 
materials suppliers to provide new and innovative products 
and services, coupled with in-depth reviews by our tenured 
Technical Services department to ensure they meet our strict 
requirements. We also conduct tests of new products with the 
specific manufacturers of such products and we rely on research 
performed by leading universities. 

We maintain close relationships with several universities for 
research and validation of treatment procedures and material 
selection. Some of the new and improved service methods 
and products are also researched, developed and produced by 
unaffiliated universities and companies with a portion of these 
methods and products being produced to the specifications 
provided by us.
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Environmental and Regulatory 
Considerations
Our business is subject to various local and national legislative 
and regulatory enactments including, but not limited to, 
environmental laws, antitrust laws, employment laws (including 
wage and hour laws, payroll taxes and anti-discrimination 
laws), immigration laws, motor vehicle laws and regulations, 
human health and safety laws, securities laws including, but not 
limited to, SEC regulations, and federal, state and local laws and 
regulations governing worker safety and the pest and termite 
control industry. If we were to fail to comply with any of these 
applicable laws or regulations, we could be subject to substantial 
fines or damages, be involved in lawsuits, enforcement actions 
and other claims by third parties or governmental authorities, 
suffer losses to our reputation and our business or suffer the 
loss of licenses or penalties that may affect how the business is 
operated, which, in turn, could have a material adverse effect on 
our financial condition, results of operations and cash flows.

Environmental, Health and Safety Matters
Specifically, our businesses are subject to various international, 
federal, state and local laws and regulations regarding 
environmental, health and safety matters. Among other things, 
these laws regulate the emission or discharge of materials into 
the environment, govern the use, storage, treatment, disposal, 
transportation and management of hazardous substances and 
wastes and protect the health and safety of our employees. 
These laws also impose liability for the costs of investigating 
and remediating, and damages resulting from, present and 
past releases of hazardous substances, including releases by 
prior owners or operators of sites we currently own or operate. 
Compliance with environmental, health and safety laws 
increases our operating costs, limits or restricts the services we 
provide and subjects us to the possibility of regulatory or private 
actions or proceedings.

Consumer Protection, Privacy and Solicitation Matters
Additionally, we are subject to international, federal, state, 
provincial and local laws and regulations designed to protect 
consumers generally, including laws governing lending, debt 
collection and consumer finance, consumer privacy and fraud, the 
collection and use of consumer data, telemarketing and other forms 
of solicitation. The telemarketing rules adopted by the Federal 
Communications Commission pursuant to the Federal Telephone 
Consumer Protection Act of 1991 and the Federal Telemarketing 
Sales Rule issued by the Federal Trade Commission, along with 
state laws and other legal authorities, govern our telephone and 
texting sales practices. The CAN-SPAM Act regulates our email 
solicitations and the Consumer Review Fairness Act regulates 
consumer opinions on social media regarding our products and 
services. The California Consumer Privacy Act, the first of its kind 
and followed by the California Privacy Rights Act, and laws in other 
states provide consumers and sometimes employees the right to 
know what personal data businesses collect, how the data is used, 
and give them the right to access, delete and opt out of the sale of 
their personal information to third parties. We are subject to some 
of these states’ laws depending on the number of customers or 
amount of revenue in the specific state.

Franchise Matters
Certain of our subsidiaries are subject to various international, 
federal, state, provincial and local laws and regulations 
governing franchise sales, marketing and licensing and franchise 
trade practices generally, including applicable rules and 
regulations of the Federal Trade Commission. These laws and 
regulations generally require disclosure of business information 
in connection with the sale and licensing of our franchises. 
Certain state regulations also affect our ability as a franchisor 
to revoke or refuse to renew a franchise. From time to time, 
we and one or more franchisees have been, and may in the 
future become, involved in a dispute regarding the franchise 
relationship, including payment of royalties or fees, location 
of branches, advertising, purchase of products by franchisees, 
non-competition covenants, compliance with our standards 
or franchise renewal criteria. Any such franchise dispute could 
possibly have an adverse effect on our reputation, financial 
condition, results of operations and cash flows.

Intellectual Property
We rely on a combination of intellectual property rights, including 
patents, trademarks, copyrights, trade secrets, and contractual 
provisions to protect our intellectual property. Our worldwide 
intellectual property portfolio is strengthened through innovation 
and brand recognition, and a comprehensive approach for 
protection and enforcement. Risk factors associated with our 
intellectual property are discussed in Item 1.A. “Risk Factors”.

We protect and promote our intellectual property portfolio and 
take those actions we deem appropriate to enforce our intellectual 
property rights and to defend our rights both domestically and 
internationally. Although in the aggregate, our global portfolio of 
more than 450 trademarks is a valuable asset that is important 
to our operations, we believe that our competitive advantage is 
also largely attributable to the technical, marketing, and sales 
competence and capabilities of our employees, rather than on any 
individual trademark. Therefore, we do not consider the expiration 
or loss of any single trademark or intellectual property right, to be 
material to our business as a whole.

Human Capital
We believe one of the largest contributors to our Company’s 
success is the quality of our people. Attracting, developing 
and retaining high-quality talent is the primary objective of our 
human capital management. The development and retention of 
high-quality talent leads to a better customer experience and 
better customer retention. We develop and engage our people 
through our training at all levels of our organization.

As of December 31, 2022, the Company had 17,515 employees. 
Approximately 15,800 of our employees were located in the United 
States, with approximately 14,700 employees at U.S. branch 
offices. Of the U.S. employees, less than 2% are represented by 
a labor union or covered by a collective bargaining agreement.

December 31, 2022 2021 2020
Employees 17,515 16,482 15,616
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Leadership Development
Developing existing and future leaders is critical to our 
ongoing success as a company. Each year, we conduct in-
depth leadership talent reviews for each people leader in 
our organization. During those reviews, we identify top talent 
leaders who have both the capability and desire to perform at 
the next level of leadership. For those leaders, we either build 
or update focused development plans to proactively develop 
the leadership skills needed at that next level of leadership. 
We also identify peer mentorship opportunities where our 
seasoned leaders are able to assist in the development of 
their peers. Each Rollins brand cultivates its own leadership 
development programs that support its own values and culture 
while considering the best practices of all Rollins brands. Our 
leaders are trained on the fundamentals of people leadership, 
business acumen, sales excellence, and technical expertise. 
Rollins, Inc. owns senior-level leadership training at the highest 
levels where top talent is identified to participate in our annual 
Region Manager Development Program (RMDP). RMDP is a one-
year class with several different stages and is focused on helping 
selected leaders prepare for leading leaders and building high-
performing teams across multiple locations within a defined 
geographical region. Since 2018, we have graduated a total of 
69 senior leaders in four different RMDP classes, with continued 
successes with promotions to our Division President level.

Workplace Inclusion
We make it a priority to promote and create a diverse, 
equitable and inclusive workplace that results in higher levels 
of satisfaction and engagement, stronger staff retention, higher 
productivity, and a heightened sense of belonging. Our mission is 
to have a culture of inclusion, where all individuals feel respected, 
are treated fairly, with an equitable opportunity to excel. 

Our Workplace Inclusion (WPI) mission to build an inclusive 
workplace has continued since 2020 under the guidance of 
our Executive Sponsor and Inclusion Advisory Council which is 
made up of employees from Rollins brands across the United 
States. In January 2022 the role of fulltime Director of WPI 
became active. The Director’s primary role is to implement the 
WPI Strategic Plan (the “Plan”) which was approved by the 
Executive Leadership team in April of 2022. The Plan includes 
5 Strategic Focus Areas which will be implemented across all 
brands. The 5 Strategic Focus areas are Training & Education, 
Talent Acquisition & Career Development, Policies & Programs, 
Communication and Employee Resource Groups. We formed 
six (6) taskforces, led by functional and brand subject matter 
experts, to execute on the Plan goals.

With the continued focus on inclusion, the employee demographic 
year-over-year comparison showed positive trends in the 
percentage of women and people of color in underrepresented 
job categories. Additionally, we changed various policies, 
practices and programs to be more inclusive, we recognized 
cultural holidays and events that are celebrated by our employees 
throughout the year, and we launched our first Employee 
Resource Groups (ERGs). Our ERGs are led by Rollins employees, 
are inclusive to all and include eight (8) categories representing 
our employee population. Four (4) ERGs are now active. 

We are excited about the accomplishments on our journey to 
create a workplace of inclusion and will continue to execute on 
the strategic plan.

Health and Safety
We are committed to the health and safety of our employees, 
customers and communities where we work, live and play. 
During fiscal 2022, as a result of the COVID-19 pandemic 
(“COVID-19”), we continued to execute our pre-established 
business continuity plans including our pandemic “SAFE 
Workplace” procedures to maintain compliance with state 
and local jurisdictions. Management also regularly updates 
our employees and customers on COVID-19 developments 
in a consistent and timely manner which includes contact 
information for our Employee Assistance Program. We saw a 
significant decline in COVID-19 related challenges in 2022.

In 2022, to enhance our already strong benefits offering, we 
signed an agreement with Everside Health to provide free 
primary care to our employees who participate in one of our 
medical insurance plans. We built an on-site medical clinic at our 
company headquarters in Atlanta. That facility is available to all 
employees in the state of Georgia who participate in one of our 
medical insurance plans. Our employees outside of Georgia have 
access to approximately 70 Everside Health clinics around the 
country and access to virtual care through the Everside network 
in all 50 states.

Community Involvement
We offer employees the opportunity to participate in 
various community outreach programs and believe that this 
commitment helps the Company to meet its goals of attracting, 
developing and retaining high-quality employees. We created 
Rollins United in 2019 to unify our brands’ philanthropic 
visions and consolidate our community outreach efforts. 
Our overarching goal is to create a significant impact in local 
communities over an extended period of time. The core mission 
of Rollins United is that everyone deserves a safe place to live, 
work, and play.

Over the last 40 years, we have partnered with the United Way 
of Greater Atlanta through employee and company-matching 
funds, helping make Rollins a community leader for many 
years. Rollins ranked #9 in the top 25 corporate contributors in 
2021 compared to ranking #11 in 2020. Along with personal 
contributions from employees, the company hosts rallies, 
contests, and a silent auction to raise funds. Rollins has 
contributed over $1 million annually for the past 3 years.

We also have a partnership with the Grove Park Foundation 
(the “Foundation”) to help serve our Atlanta community. The 
partnership allows our employees to volunteer and support the 
Foundation, which is committed to neighborhood revitalization 
to improve the quality of life in the Grove Park neighborhood. 
Representatives from our Atlanta family of brands participate 
in volunteer opportunities in the Grove Park neighborhood 
throughout the year. Additionally, many of our operations engage 
regularly with their local community efforts throughout the year.
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Available Information
Our Annual Reports on Form 10-K, Quarterly Reports on  
Form 10-Q, Current Reports on Form 8-K and amendments to 
these reports, are available free of charge on our website at 
www.rollins.com, under the heading “SEC Filings,” as soon as 
reasonably practicable after those reports are electronically  
filed with or furnished to the Securities and Exchange 
Commission (“SEC”).

Forward-Looking Statements
This Annual Report contains forward-looking statements within 
the meaning of the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 
1995. Such forward-looking statements include, but are not 
limited to, statements regarding:

(1) our visibility into our future earnings because of the 
contracted and recurring nature of our services; (2) our 
investments in proprietary routing and scheduling technologies 
to increase our competitive advantage; (3) our belief that we 
will continue to expand our international presence through 
organic growth, international acquisitions, and our international 
franchise programs and our belief that such international 
expansion and geographic diversity allow us to increase brand 
recognition, meet demands of global customers and draw 
on business and technical expertise from teams in several 
countries, as well as access new markets; (4) our ability to 
foresee and quickly adapt to potential supply disruptions 
because of our strong direct partnerships with product 
manufacturers, distributors, and visibility into the inventories, 
ordering and distribution of materials and supplies; (5) our ability 
to maintain adequate supplies for our field operations without 
a significant investment in warehousing and inventory because 
of the use of an innovative and industry changing distribution 
model and technology; (6) our belief that our competitive 
advantage is largely attributable to the technical, marketing, and 
sales competence and capabilities of our employees, rather than 
on any individual trademark and our belief that the expiration or 
loss of any single trademark or intellectual property right would 
not be material to our business as a whole; (7) our belief that 
we compete effectively and favorably with our competitors as 
one of the world’s largest pest and termite control companies; 
(8) our belief that we maintain a sufficient level of products, 
materials and other supplies to fulfill our immediate servicing 
needs and to alleviate any potential short-term shortage in 
availability from our national network of suppliers; (9) the 
suitability and adequacy of our facilities to meet our current 
and reasonably anticipated future needs; (10) our belief that 
one of the largest contributors to our success is the quality of 
our people and our belief that the development and retention 
of high-quality talent leads to a better customer experience and 
better customer retention; (11) our belief that if we make it a 
priority to promote and create a diverse, equitable and inclusive 
workplace, it will result in higher levels of satisfaction and 
engagement, stronger staff retention, higher productivity, and a 
heightened sense of belonging; (12) our excitement with respect 
to our accomplishments on our journey to create a workplace of 
inclusion and our plans to continue to execute on the strategic 

plan with respect thereto; (13) our belief that our commitment 
to offer employees the opportunity to participate in various 
community outreach programs will help us meet our goals of 
attracting, developing and retaining high-quality employees and 
create a significant impact in local communities over time;  
(14) our belief that no pending claim, proceeding or litigation, 
either alone or in the aggregate, will have a material adverse 
effect on our business, results of operations, financial condition, 
cash flow or prospects; (15) our belief that we establish 
sufficient loss contingency reserves based upon outcomes of 
such pending claims, proceedings or litigation that we currently 
believe to be probable and reasonably estimable; (16) our plans 
to continue to monitor COVID-19 and plans to take actions that 
may alter our operations, including those that may be required 
by federal, state, or local authorities, or that we determine  
are in the best interests of our employees and customers;  
(17) our plans to continue to carry out various strategies 
previously implemented to help mitigate the impact of certain 
economic disruptors (such as high inflation, increased fuel 
costs, business interruptions due to natural disasters, employee 
shortages and supply chain issues), including revamping its 
routing and scheduling process to decrease the number of miles 
per stop, advanced scheduling to compensate for employee 
and vehicle shortages, shipping delays, and maintaining higher 
purchasing levels to allow for sufficient inventory; (18) our 
belief that we are starting 2023 with a strong foundation and 
demand for our business remains strong; (19) our belief that 
strategic pricing efforts helped offset inflationary pressures we 
experienced in fleet, material and other people associated cost 
and our expectations to pull forward our price increase again  
in 2023 and raise prices for services in the first quarter;  
(20) our assertion that we continue to be permanently 
reinvested with respect to our investments in our foreign 
subsidiaries; (21) our belief that our current cash and cash 
equivalents balances, future cash flows expected to be 
generated from operating activities, and available borrowings 
under our $175.0 million revolving credit facility and  
$300.0 million term loan facility (as amended January 27, 
2022) will be sufficient to finance our current operations 
and obligations, and fund expansion of our business for the 
foreseeable future and our plans to evaluate opportunities to 
renegotiate our current credit facility that will be expiring in 
April 2024; (22) our expectation to continue our payment of 
cash dividends, subject to our earnings and financial condition 
and other relevant factors; (23) our belief that we maintain 
adequate liquidity and capital resources, without regard to its 
foreign deposits, to finance domestic operations and obligations 
and to fund expansion of our domestic business; (24) our 
belief that our pipeline for acquisitions is strong, our plans 
to seek new acquisitions and expectation to make additional 
acquisitions in 2023; (25) our belief that we remain very well 
positioned to drive growth across all of our services lines 
in 2023; (26) our intentions to grow the business in foreign 
markets through reinvestment of foreign deposits and future 
earnings and through acquisitions of unrelated companies with 
the expectation to repatriate unremitted foreign earnings from 
our foreign subsidiaries and the expectation that any additional 
future repatriations of unremitted earnings are expected to 
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be completed in a largely tax-free manner with any residual 
impacts being immaterial to the financial statements; (27) our 
belief that we have adequate liquid assets, funding sources 
and insurance accruals to accommodate certain insurance 
claims; (28) our expectation that we will maintain compliance 
with applicable covenants throughout 2023; (29) the expected 
impact and amount of our contractual obligations; (30) our 
expectations regarding termite claims and factors that impact 
future costs from those claims; (31) the expected collectability 
of accounts receivable; (32) our belief that our tax positions are 
fully supportable; (33) our beliefs about our accounting policies 
and the impact of recent accounting pronouncements; (34) our 
belief that our exposure to market risks arising from changes in 
foreign exchange rates will not have a material impact upon our 
results of operations going forward; (35) our ability to utilize all 
of our foreign net operating losses; (36) our reasonable certainty 
that we will exercise the renewal options on our vehicle leases; 
(37) expectations regarding the recognition of compensation 
costs related to time-lapse restricted shares; (38) our ability 
to be proactive in safety and risk management to develop and 
maintain ongoing programs to reduce and prevent incidents and 
claims under our insurance programs and arrangements; and 
(39) our potential suspension of future services for customers 
with past due balances.

Our actual results could differ materially from those indicated 
by the forward-looking statements because of various risks, 
timing and uncertainties including, without limitation, the failure 
to maintain and enhance our brands and develop a positive 
client reputation; our ability to protect our intellectual property 
and other proprietary rights that are material to our business 
and our brand recognition; actions taken by our franchisees, 
subcontractors or vendors that may harm our business; general 
economic conditions; the impact of the extent and duration of 
economic contraction related to COVID-19 on general economic 
activity for the remainder of 2023 and beyond; the impact of 

future developments related to the COVID-19 pandemic on 
the Company’s business, results of operations, accounting 
assumptions and estimates and financial condition, including, 
without limitation, restrictions in customer discretionary 
expenditures, disruptions in credit or financial markets, 
increases in fuel prices, raw material costs or other operating 
costs; potential increases in labor costs; labor shortages and/
or our inability to attract and retain skilled workers; competitive 
factors and pricing practices; changes in industry practices 
or technologies; the degree of success of our termite process 
reforms and pest control selling and treatment methods; our 
ability to identify, complete and successfully integrate potential 
acquisitions; unsuccessful expansion into international markets; 
climate change and unfavorable weather conditions; a breach of 
data security resulting in the unauthorized access of personal, 
financial, proprietary, confidential or other personal data or 
information about our customers, employees, third parties, 
or of our proprietary confidential information; damage to our 
brands or reputation; possibility of an adverse ruling against 
us in pending litigation, regulatory action or investigation; 
changes in various government laws and regulations, including 
environmental regulations; the adequacy of our insurance 
coverage to cover all significant risk exposures; the effectiveness 
of our risk management and safety program; general market 
risk; management’s substantial ownership interest and its 
impact on public stockholders and the availability of the 
Company’s common stock to the investing public; and the 
existence of certain anti-takeover provisions in our governance 
documents, which could make a tender offer, change in control 
or takeover attempt that is opposed by the Company’s Board of 
Directors more difficult or expensive. All of the foregoing risks 
and uncertainties are beyond our ability to control, and in many 
cases, we cannot predict the risks and uncertainties that could 
cause our actual results to differ materially from those indicated 
by the forward-looking statements. The Company does not 
undertake to update its forward-looking statements.
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Item 1.A. 
Risk Factors
An investment in our common stock involves certain risks. Before 
making an investment decision, you should carefully consider the 
following risks and all of the other information included in this 
Annual Report on Form 10-K. Our business, financial condition 
or results of operations could be materially adversely affected by 
any of these risks. The trading price of our common stock could 
decline due to any of these risks, and you may lose all or part of 
your investment. This Annual Report on Form 10-K also contains 
forward-looking statements that involve risks and uncertainties. 
Our actual results could differ materially from those anticipated 
in these forward-looking statements as a result of certain factors, 
including the risks faced by us described below and elsewhere in 
this Annual Report on Form 10-K. You are cautioned that the risk 
factors discussed below are not exhaustive. 

Risks Related to our Business, Brand, 
Industry and Operations
We face risks regarding our ability to maintain our competitive 
position in the pest control industry in the future.

We operate in a highly competitive industry. Our revenues and 
earnings are affected by changes in competitors’ prices and 
general economic issues. We compete with other large pest 
control companies, as well as numerous smaller pest control 
companies, for a finite number of customers. We believe that 
the principal competitive factors in the market areas that we 
serve are quality and speed of service, customer proximity, 
customer satisfaction, brand awareness and reputation, 
terms of guarantees, safety, technical proficiency and price. 
Although we believe that our experience, safety and quality 
service are excellent, we cannot assure investors that we will 
be able to maintain our competitive position in the future and 
any competitive pressures we may face could have a material 
adverse effect on our reputation, business, financial condition, 
results of operations and cash flows.

We may not be able to identify, complete or successfully 
integrate acquisitions or guarantee that any acquisitions will 
achieve the anticipated financial benefits, all of which could 
have a negative impact on our financial condition and results  
of operations.

Acquisitions have been and may continue to be an important 
element of our business strategy. We cannot assure investors 
that we will be able to identify and acquire acceptable acquisition 
targets on terms favorable to us in the future, or that any 
acquisitions will achieve the anticipated financial benefits. Our 
inability to achieve the anticipated financial benefits from any 
acquisition transactions may not be realized due to any number 
of factors, including, but not limited to, unsuccessful integration 
efforts, unexpected or underestimated liabilities or increased 
costs, fees, expenses and charges related to such transactions. 
Such adverse events could result in a decrease in the estimated 
fair value of goodwill or other intangible assets established as a 
result of such transactions, triggering an impairment. These and 

other factors could have a material adverse effect on our financial 
condition and results of operations.

Expanding into international markets presents unique 
challenges, and our expansion efforts with respect to 
international operations may not be successful.

An element of our business includes further expansion into 
international markets. Our ability to successfully operate in 
international markets may be adversely affected by political, 
economic and social conditions beyond our control, local laws 
and customs, and legal and regulatory constraints, including 
compliance with applicable anti-corruption and currency laws 
and regulations of the countries or regions in which we currently 
operate or intend to operate in the future. Risks inherent in our 
existing and future international operations also include, among 
others, the costs and difficulties of managing international 
operations, difficulties in identifying and gaining access to 
local suppliers, suffering possible adverse tax consequences 
from changes in tax laws or the unfavorable resolution of tax 
assessments or audits, maintaining product quality and greater 
difficulty in enforcing intellectual property rights. Additionally, 
foreign currency exchange rates and fluctuations could have an 
adverse effect on our financial results.

Our business depends on our strong brands and failing to 
maintain and enhance our brands and develop a positive client 
reputation could hurt our ability to retain and expand our base 
of customers.

Our strong brands, Orkin, HomeTeam Pest Defense, Clark 
Pest Control, Northwest Exterminating, Trutech, Western Pest 
Services, The Industrial Fumigant Company (IFC), Waltham 
Services, Okolona Pest Control (OPC), Critter Control, and others, 
have significantly contributed to the success of our business. 
Maintaining and enhancing our brands increases our ability to 
enter new markets and launch new and innovative services that 
better serve the needs of our customers. Our brands may be 
negatively impacted by a number of factors, including, among 
others, reputational issues and product/technical failures. 
Further, if our brands are significantly damaged, our reputation, 
business, results of operations, and financial condition could be 
materially adversely affected. We continue to develop strategies 
and innovative tools to gain a deeper understanding of customer 
acquisition and retention in order to more effectively expand and 
retain our customer base. Maintaining and enhancing our brands 
will depend largely on our brands’ ability to remain a service leader 
and continue to provide high-quality pest control services that 
are truly beneficial and play a meaningful role in people’s lives.

Our franchisees, subcontractors, and vendors could take 
actions that could harm our business.

Our franchisees, subcontractors, and vendors are contractually 
obligated to operate their businesses in accordance with the 
standards set forth in our agreements with them and applicable 
laws and regulations. Each of our brands that are franchised 
also provides training and support to franchisees. However, 
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franchisees, subcontractors, and vendors are independent 
third parties that we do not control, and who own, operate 
and oversee the daily operations of their businesses, and the 
ultimate success of any business operation rests with the 
business owner. If franchisees do not successfully operate their 
businesses in a manner consistent with required standards, 
royalty payments owed to us will be adversely affected and 
our brands’ image and reputation could be harmed. This could 
materially adversely impact our reputation, business, financial 
condition, results of operations and cash flows. Similarly, if 
franchisees, subcontractors, and vendors do not successfully 
operate their businesses in a manner consistent with required 
laws, standards and regulations, we could be subject to claims 
from regulators or legal claims for the actions or omissions of 
such third-party franchisees, subcontractors, and vendors. In 
addition, our relationship with our franchisees, subcontractors, 
and vendors could become strained (including resulting in 
litigation) as we impose new standards or assert more rigorous 
enforcement practices of the existing required standards. These 
strains in our relationships or any resulting claims could have 
a material adverse effect on our reputation, business, financial 
condition, results of operations and cash flows.

From time to time, we receive communications from our 
franchisees regarding complaints, disputes or questions 
about our practices and standards in relation to our franchised 
operations and certain economic terms of our franchise 
arrangements. If franchisees or groups representing franchisees 
were to bring legal proceedings against us, our reputation, 
business, financial condition, results of operations and cash 
flows could be materially adversely affected.

Labor shortages and/or our ability to attract and retain skilled 
workers may impair growth potential and profitability.

Our ability to remain productive and profitable will depend 
substantially on our ability to compete with other pest control 
companies to attract and retain skilled workers, create leadership 
opportunities and successfully implement diversity, equity and 
inclusion initiatives. Our ability to expand our operations is in part 
impacted by our ability to increase our labor force. The demand 
for employees is high, and the supply is limited. Ongoing labor 
shortages could negatively affect our ability to efficiently operate 
at full capacity or lead to increased costs, such as increased 
overtime to meet demand and increased wage rates to attract and 
retain employees. A significant increase in the wages paid and 
benefits offered by competing employers could also result in a 
reduction in our labor force, increases in our labor costs, or both. 
Prolonged labor shortages, increased turnover or labor inflation 
could diminish our profitability and impair our growth potential 
which could have a material adverse effect on our reputation, 
business, financial condition, results of operations or cash flows.

In addition, decisions and rules by the National Labor Relations 
Board, including “expedited elections” and restrictions on 
appeals, could lead to increased organizing activities at our 
subsidiaries. If these labor organizing activities are successful, it 
could further increase labor costs, decrease operating efficiency 
and productivity in the future, or otherwise disrupt or negatively 
impact our operations which could have a material adverse 
effect on our reputation and business.

Climate change and unfavorable weather conditions could 
adversely impact our financial results.

Our operations are directly impacted by the weather conditions 
worldwide, including catastrophic events, natural disasters 
and potential impacts from climate change. Climate change 
continues to receive increasing global attention. The possible 
effects of climate change could include changes in rainfall 
patterns, water shortages, changing storm patterns and 
intensities, changing temperature levels and changes in 
legislation, regulation, and international accords, all of which 
could adversely impact our costs and business operations. 
The business of our Company is also affected by seasonality 
associated with our pest and termite control services. 
The increase in pest presence and activity, as well as the 
metamorphosis of termites in the spring and summer (the 
occurrence of which is determined by the timing of the change in 
seasons), has historically resulted in an increase in the revenue 
and income of our pest and termite control operations during 
such periods. The business of the Company is also affected by 
extreme weather such as drought which can greatly reduce the 
pest population for extended periods. Because of the uncertainty 
of weather volatility related to climate change and any resulting 
unfavorable weather conditions, we cannot predict its potential 
impact on our business, financial condition, results of operations 
and cash flows.

Risks Related to the Global Economy 
and Public Health Crises
The effects of a pandemic, such as the COVID-19 pandemic, or 
other major public health concern, could materially impact our 
business, results of operations and financial condition. 

The impact of a pandemic, such as COVID-19, or other major 
public health concerns, including changes in consumer behavior 
and discretionary spending, market downturns, and restrictions 
on business and individual activities, could create significant 
volatility in the global economy. Additionally, government or 
regulatory responses to pandemics or other public health concerns, 
such as mandatory lockdowns, vaccine mandates or other 
restrictions on operations, could negatively impact our business. 

The ultimate impact of a pandemic or other major public health 
concern also depends on events beyond our knowledge or 
control, including the duration and severity of such pandemics 
and other major public health concerns, and related remedial or 
containment measures taken by parties other than us to respond 
to them, and in the case of COVID-19, on the emergence and 
spread of COVID-19 variants and the effectiveness of vaccines. 

We are unable to completely predict the full impact that a 
pandemic, or other major public health concern will have on 
our business due to numerous uncertainties. In addition, our 
compliance with remedial or containment measures could 
impact our day-to-day operations and could disrupt our 
business and operations, as well as that of our customers and 
suppliers, for an indefinite period of time. Furthermore, labor 
force availability may be impaired due to exposure, reluctance to 
comply with governmental, regulatory or contractual mandates, 
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or other restrictions, which could negatively affect our operating 
costs and profitability or negatively impact our ability to provide 
quality services. Any of these disruptions could have a  
negative impact on our business, results of operations and 
financial condition.

Adverse economic conditions, including inflation and 
restrictions in customer discretionary expenditures, increases in 
interest rates or other disruptions in credit or financial markets, 
increases in fuel prices, raw material costs, or other operating 
costs could materially adversely affect our business. 

Economic downturns may adversely affect our commercial 
customers, including food service, hospitality and food 
processing industries whose business levels are particularly 
sensitive to adverse economies. For example, we may lose 
commercial customers and related revenues because of 
consolidation or cessation of commercial businesses or  
because these businesses switch to a lower cost provider.  
Pest and termite services represent discretionary expenditures 
to many of our residential customers. If consumers restrict 
their discretionary expenditures, due to inflation or other 
economic hardships, we may suffer a decline in revenues from 
our residential service lines. Disruptions in credit or financial 
markets could make it more difficult for us to obtain, or increase 
the cost of obtaining, financing in the future. Increases in 
interest rates may cause a reduction in new home construction 
or real estate transactions, which could result in a decrease in 
revenue. In addition, there can be no assurances that fuel prices, 
raw material costs, or other operating costs, all of which may be 
subject to inflationary pressures, will not materially increase in 
future years and we cannot predict the extent to which any such 
future increases could materially adversely affect our financial 
condition, results of operations and cash flows.

Risks Related to Cybersecurity, 
Privacy Compliance and Business 
Disruptions
The Company, its wholly-owned subsidiaries, third-party 
business partners and service providers have been subject to 
cybersecurity incidents in the past and could be the targets 
of future attacks which could result in the disruption to the 
Company’s business operations, economic and reputational 
damage, and possible fines, penalties and private litigation, if 
there is unauthorized access to or unintentional distribution of 
personal, financial, proprietary, confidential, or other protected 
data or information the Company is entrusted to keep about its 
customers, employees, business practices, or third parties.

Our internal information technology (“IT”) systems contain 
certain personal, financial, health, or other protected and 
confidential information that is entrusted to us by our customers 
and employees. Our IT systems also contain the Company’s and 
its wholly-owned subsidiaries’ proprietary and other confidential 
information related to our business, such as business plans, 
customer lists and product and service development initiatives. 
From time to time, we have integration with new IT systems 
due to organic growth and acquisitions. In addition, we grant 

third-party business partners and service providers access to 
confidential information in order to facilitate business operations 
and administer employee benefits. Employees, third-party 
business partners, and service providers can knowingly or 
unknowingly disseminate such information or serve as an entry 
point for bad actors to access such information. 

Our privacy compliance and digital risk management initiatives 
focus on the threats and risks to enterprise information and the 
underlying IT systems processing such information as part of 
the implementation of business processes. The Company also 
relies on, among other things, commercially available vendors, 
cybersecurity protection systems, software, tools and monitoring 
to provide security for processing, transmission and storage of 
protected information and data. The systems currently used 
for transmission and approval of payment card transactions, 
and the technology utilized in payment cards themselves, all of 
which can put payment card data at risk, meet standards set by 
the payment card industry (“PCI”). We have also implemented 
policies and procedures, internal training, system controls, 
and monitoring and audit processes to protect the Company 
from internal and external vulnerabilities and to comply with 
consumer privacy laws in the areas in which we operate. 
Further, the Company limits retention of certain data, encrypts 
certain data and otherwise protects information to comply with 
consumer privacy laws in the areas in which we operate.

We continue to evaluate and modify our systems and protocols 
for data security compliance purposes, and such standards 
may change from time to time. We monitor certain third-party 
business partners and service providers for compliance and 
vulnerabilities. Activities by bad actors, changes in computer and 
software capabilities and encryption technology, new tools and 
discoveries, cloud applications, changes in multi-jurisdictional 
regulations, and other events or developments may result in 
a compromise or breach of our systems. Any compromises, 
breaches, application errors or human mistakes related to 
our systems or failures to comply with applicable standards 
could not only disrupt our financial operations, including our 
customers’ ability to pay for our services and products by 
credit card or their willingness to purchase our services and 
products, but could also result in violations of applicable laws, 
regulations, orders, industry standards or agreements and 
subject us to costs, penalties and liabilities which could have a 
material adverse impact on our reputation, business, financial 
condition, results of operations and cash flows. A breach of data 
security or failure to comply with rigorous multi-jurisdictional 
consumer privacy requirements could expose us to customer 
litigation, regulatory actions and costs related to the reporting 
and handling of such a violation or breach. Furthermore, while 
we maintain cybersecurity insurance, our insurance may not 
cover all liabilities incurred due to a security breach or incident 
and this could have a material adverse effect on our reputation, 
financial condition, results of operations and cash flows.
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Risks Related to Certain Intellectual 
Property Rights 
Our brand recognition or reputation could be impacted if we 
are not able to adequately protect our intellectual property and 
other proprietary rights that are material to our business. 

Our ability to compete effectively depends in part on our rights 
to service marks, trademarks, trade names and other intellectual 
property rights we own or license. Although we have sought to 
register or protect many of our marks either in the United States 
or in the countries in which they are or may be used, we have 
not sought to protect our marks in every country. Furthermore, 
because of the differences in foreign trademark, patent and other 
intellectual property or proprietary rights laws, we may not receive 
the same protection in other countries as we would in the United 
States. If we are unable to protect our proprietary information 
and brand names, we could suffer a material adverse effect to our 
reputation, business, financial condition, results of operations and 
cash flows. Litigation may be necessary to enforce our intellectual 
property rights and protect our proprietary information, or to 
defend against claims by third parties that our products, services 
or activities infringe their intellectual property rights. 

Risks Related to Legal, Regulatory  
and Risk Management Matters
Our business is subject to various federal, state and local laws 
and regulations pertaining to environmental, public health  
and safety matters, including those related to the pest  
control industry, and any noncompliance with, changes to,  
or increased enforcement of such laws, could significantly 
impact our business, financial condition, results of operations 
or reputation.

Our business is subject to various federal, state, and local laws 
and regulations pertaining to environmental, public health 
and safety matters, including those related to the pest control 
industry. Among other things, these laws also govern the use, 
storage, treatment, disposal, transportation and management 
of certain pesticides and hazardous substances and waste 
and regulate the emission or discharge of materials into the 
environment. In addition, the use of certain pesticide products 
is also regulated by various international, federal, state, 
provincial and local environmental and public health agencies. 
These regulations may also apply to our third-party suppliers. 
Penalties for noncompliance with these laws may include 
criminal sanctions or civil remedies, including, but not limited 
to, cancellation of licenses, fines, and other corrective actions, 
which could negatively affect our business, financial condition, 
results of operations or reputation. In addition, in recent years, 
a number of new laws and regulations have been adopted, 
there has been expanded enforcement of certain existing laws 
and regulations by federal, state and local agencies, and the 
interpretation of certain laws and regulations have become 
increasingly complex. Noncompliance with, changes in, 
expanded enforcement of, or adoption of new federal, state or 
local laws and regulations governing hazardous waste disposal 
and other environmental matters, could result in operational 

changes and increased costs that might significantly impact our 
business, financial condition or reputation. 

New or proposed regulation regarding climate change, could 
have uncertain impacts on our business, financial condition 
and reputation.

Climate change has been the subject of increased focus by 
various governmental authorities and regulators around the 
world. In particular, the US is considering the enactment 
of legislative and regulatory proposals that would impose 
requirements on greenhouse gas emissions. Such laws, if 
enacted, are likely to impact our business in a number of ways. 
For example, we use gasoline and electricity in conducting 
our operations. Increased government regulations to limit 
carbon dioxide and other greenhouse gas emissions may result 
in increased compliance costs and legislation or regulation 
affecting energy inputs, which could materially affect our 
profitability. Further the SEC has proposed rule amendments 
that would implement a framework for reporting of climate-
related risks and create new climate-related disclosure 
obligations for all registrants, including us. Compliance with 
any new or more stringent laws or requirements, or stricter 
interpretations of existing laws, could require additional 
expenditures by us or our suppliers. Our inability to appropriately 
respond to such changes could adversely impact our business, 
financial condition, results of operations or cash flows. We 
cannot predict how the proposed rules, if finalized, or any 
future legislation or regulations pertaining to climate change, 
will ultimately affect our business, financial condition including 
results of operations and cash flows, or reputation.

We are from time to time subject to lawsuits, investigations and 
other proceedings which could have a material adverse effect 
on our business, financial condition and results of operations.

In the normal course of business, we are involved in various 
claims, contractual disputes, investigations, arbitrations and 
litigation, including claims that our acts, omissions, services or 
vehicles caused damage or injury, claims that our services did 
not achieve the desired results, claims related to acquisitions, 
allegations by federal, state or local authorities, including the 
Securities and Exchange Commission, of violations of regulations 
or statutes, claims related to wage and hour law violations 
and claims related to environmental matters. These claims, 
proceedings or litigation, either alone or in the aggregate, 
could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial 
condition, results of operations, and cash flows.

Additionally, our business is significantly affected by and subject 
to regulation by various federal, state, provincial, regional 
and local governments in the countries in which we operate, 
including, but not limited to, environmental laws, antitrust 
laws, consumer protection laws, employment laws, including 
wage and hour laws, payroll taxes and anti-discrimination 
laws, immigration, human health and safety laws and other 
regulations relating to the pest control industry. We are unable to 
predict whether such laws will, in the future, materially affect our 
operations and financial condition.
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Risks Related to our Capital and 
Ownership Structure
A control group that includes members of Company’s Board 
of Directors and management has a majority ownership 
interest; public stockholders may have no effective voice in the 
Company’s management.

The Company has elected the “Controlled Company” exemption 
under Section 303A of the New York Stock Exchange (“NYSE”) 
Listed Company Manual. The Company is a “Controlled 
Company” because a group that includes the Company’s 
Executive Chairman of the Board, Gary W. Rollins, Board 
member, Pam Rollins, and certain persons acting as a group with 
them (the “Controlling Group”), controls in excess of fifty percent 
of the Company’s voting power. As a “Controlled Company,” the 
Company need not comply with certain NYSE rules, including, 
without limitation, the requirements that the Company have 
a majority of independent directors, and an independent 
compensation and nominating committee of the Board.

The Controlling Group holds directly, or through indirect 
beneficial ownership, in the aggregate, approximately 51 percent 
of the Company’s outstanding shares of common stock as of 
December 31, 2022. As a result, these persons will effectively 
control the operations of the Company, including the election of 
directors and approval of significant corporate transactions such 
as acquisitions and approval of matters requiring stockholder 
approval. This concentration of ownership could also have the 
effect of delaying or preventing a third party from acquiring 
control of the Company at a premium.

A Controlling Group has a substantial ownership interest, and 
the availability of the Company’s common stock to the investing 
public may be limited.

The availability of Rollins’ common stock to the investing public 
is limited to those shares not held by the Controlling Group, 
which could negatively impact Rollins’ stock trading prices and 
affect the ability of minority stockholders to sell their shares. 
Future sales by the Controlling Group of all or a portion of their 
shares could also negatively affect the trading price of our 
common stock.

The Controlling Group could take various actions or engage in 
certain transactions that could negatively impact our common 
stock price, cause volatility in the market for our common stock 
or have a material adverse impact on our results of operations 
and our financial condition.

The Controlling Group may from time to time and at any time, in 
their sole discretion, acquire or cause to be acquired, additional 
equity or other instruments of the Company, its subsidiaries or 
affiliates, or derivative instruments the value of which is linked 
to Company securities, or dispose or cause to be disposed, such 

equity or other securities or instruments, in any amount that the 
Controlling Group may determine in their sole discretion, through 
open market transactions, privately negotiated transactions or 
otherwise. In addition, depending upon a variety of factors, the 
Controlling Group may at any time engage in discussions with 
the Company and its affiliates, and other persons, including 
retained outside advisers, concerning the Company’s business, 
management, strategic alternatives and direction, and in their 
sole discretion, consider, formulate and implement various plans 
or proposals intended to enhance the value of their investment 
in the Company, including, among other things, proposing or 
effecting any matter that would constitute or result in: (i) the 
acquisition by any person of additional securities of the Company 
or the disposition of securities of the Company, in addition to 
the possible normal course dissolution of additional entities for 
estate or tax planning purposes; (ii) an extraordinary corporate 
transaction, such as a merger, reorganization or liquidation, 
involving the Company or any subsidiary thereof; (iii) a sale  
or transfer of a material amount of assets of the Company or  
any subsidiary thereof; (iv) a change in the present board of 
directors or management of the Company, including any plans  
or proposals to change the number or term of directors or to fill 
any existing vacancies on the board; (v) a material change  
in the present capitalization or dividend policy of the Company; 
(vi) other material changes in the Company’s business or 
corporate structure; (vii) changes in the Company’s charter, 
bylaws, or instruments corresponding thereto, or other actions 
which may impede the acquisition of control of the Company by 
any person; (viii) causing a class of securities of the Company to 
be delisted from a national securities exchange or to cease to be 
authorized to be quoted in an inter-dealer quotation system of a 
registered national securities association; or (ix) a class of equity 
securities of the Company becoming eligible for termination 
of registration pursuant to Section 12(g)(4) of the Securities 
Exchange Act of 1934, as amended. In the event the Controlling 
Group were to engage in any of the actions enumerated above, 
our common stock price could be negatively impacted, such 
actions could cause volatility in the market for our common 
stock or could have a material adverse effect on our results of 
operations and our financial condition.

Certain provisions in Rollins, Inc.’s certificate of incorporation 
and bylaws may inhibit a takeover of the Company.

Rollins, Inc.’s certificate of incorporation, bylaws and other 
documents contain provisions including advance notice 
requirements for stockholder proposals and staggered terms 
for the Board of Directors. These provisions may make a tender 
offer, change in control or takeover attempt that is opposed by 
the Company’s Board of Directors more difficult or expensive.
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Item 1.B.
Unresolved Staff Comments 
None.

Item 2.
Properties
The Company’s administrative headquarters are owned by the 
Company, and are located at 2170 Piedmont Road, N.E., Atlanta, 
Georgia 30324. The Company owns or leases over 600 branch 
offices and operating facilities used in its business as well as 
the Rollins Training Center located in Atlanta, Georgia, and the 

Pacific Division Administration and Training Center in Riverside, 
California. None of the branch offices, individually considered, 
represents a materially important physical property of the 
Company. The facilities are suitable and adequate to meet the 
current and reasonably anticipated future needs of the Company.

Item 3.
Legal Proceedings
In the normal course of business, the Company and its 
subsidiaries are involved in, and will continue to be involved in, 
various claims, arbitrations, contractual disputes, investigations, 
litigation, environmental and tax and other regulatory matters 
relating to, and arising out of, our businesses and our operations. 
These matters may involve, but are not limited to, allegations 
that our services or vehicles caused damage or injury, claims 
that our services did not achieve the desired results, claims 
related to acquisitions and allegations by federal, state or 
local authorities, including taxing authorities, of violations 
of regulations or statutes. In addition, we are parties to 
employment-related cases and claims from time to time, which 
may include claims on a representative or class action basis 
alleging wage and hour law violations. We are also involved from 
time to time in certain environmental and tax matters primarily 
arising in the normal course of business. We evaluate pending 
and threatened claims and establish loss contingency reserves 
based upon outcomes we currently believe to be probable and 
reasonably estimable. 

The Company retains, up to specified limits, certain risks related 
to general liability, workers’ compensation and auto liability. The 
estimated costs of existing and future claims under the retained 
loss program are accrued based upon historical trends as 

incidents occur, whether reported or unreported (although actual 
settlement of the claims may not be made until future periods) 
and may be subsequently revised based on developments 
relating to such claims. The Company contracts with an 
independent third party to provide the Company an estimated 
liability based upon historical claims information. The actuarial 
study is a major consideration in establishing the reserve, 
along with management’s knowledge of changes in business 
practice and existing claims compared to current balances. 
Management’s judgment is inherently subjective as a number 
of factors are outside management’s knowledge and control. 
Additionally, historical information is not always an accurate 
indication of future events. The accruals and reserves we hold 
are based on estimates that involve a degree of judgment 
and are inherently variable and could be overestimated or 
insufficient. If actual claims exceed our estimates, our operating 
results could be materially affected, and our ability to take  
timely corrective actions to limit future costs may be limited.

Management does not believe that any pending claim, 
proceeding or litigation, regulatory action or investigation, either 
alone or in the aggregate, will have a material adverse effect 
on the Company’s financial position, results of operations or 
liquidity; however, it is possible that an unfavorable outcome of 
some or all of the matters could result in a charge that might be 
material to the results of an individual quarter or year.

Item 4.
Mine Safety Disclosures
Not applicable.
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Part II
Item 5.	
Market for Registrant’s Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and 
Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities
The common stock of the Company is listed on the New York Stock Exchange and is traded on the Philadelphia, Chicago and Boston 
Exchanges under the symbol ROL.

As of January 31, 2023, there were 177,950 holders of record of the Company’s common stock. However, a large number of our 
shareholders hold their shares in “street name” in brokerage accounts and, therefore, do not appear on the shareholder list maintained 
by our transfer agent.

Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities
During the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021, the Company did not repurchase shares on the open market. 

Period
Total number of 

shares purchased(1) 
Weighted-average price 

paid per share 

Total number of shares 
purchased as part of 
publicly announced 

repurchases(2)

Maximum number of 
shares that may yet be 
purchased under the 

repurchase plan(2)

October 1 to 31, 2022  — $         —  —  11,415,625

November 1 to 30, 2022  3,062  34.37  —  11,415,625

December 1 to 31, 2022  —  —  —  11,415,625
Total  3,062 $ 34.37  —  11,415,625

(1) � Includes repurchases from employees for the payment of taxes on vesting of restricted shares.

(2) � The Company has a share repurchase plan, adopted in 2012, to repurchase up to 16.9 million shares of the Company’s common 
stock. There are 11.4 million shares authorized to be repurchased under prior board approval. The repurchase plan has no 
expiration date.
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Performance Graph
The following graph sets forth a five-year comparison of the cumulative total stockholder return based on the performance of the stock 
of the Company as compared with both a broad equity market index and an industry index. The indices included in the following graph 
are the S&P 500 Index and the S&P 500 Commercial Services & Supplies Index.

12/17 12/18 12/19 12/20 12/21 12/22

Rollins. Inc. S&P 500

*$100 invested on 12/31/17 in stock or index, including reinvestment of dividends.
Fiscal year ending December 31.

Copyright©2023 Standard & Poor’s, a division of S&P Global. All rights reserved. 

S&P 500 Commercial Services & Supplies

COMPARISON OF 5 YEAR CUMULATIVE TOTAL RETURN*

Among Rollins, Inc., the S&P 500 Index 
and the S&P 500 Commercial Services & Supplies Index
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Comparison of Five Year Cumulative Total Return*

2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022
Rollins Inc. 100.00  117.89  109.68  195.81  173.43  187.47

S&P 500 100.00  95.62  125.72  148.85  191.58  156.89
S&P 500 Commercial Services & Supplies 100.00  100.49  140.84  170.39  224.30  212.33

Assumes initial investment of $100 
*Total return assumes reinvestment of dividends  
Note: total returns based on market capitalization
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Item 6.	
[Reserved]

Item 7.	
Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and 
Results of Operations

Presentation
This discussion should be read in conjunction with our audited 
financial statements and related notes included elsewhere in 
this document. Discussions of 2020 items and year-to-year 
comparisons of 2021 and 2020 that are not included in this 
Form 10-K can be found in “Management’s Discussion and 
Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations” in 
Part II, Item 7 on our Annual report on Form 10-K for the year 
ended December 31, 2021. The following discussion (as well as 
other discussions in this document) contains forward-looking 
statements. Please see “Cautionary Statement Regarding 
Forward-Looking Statements” for a discussion of uncertainties, 
risks and assumptions associated with these statements.

The Company
Rollins, Inc. (“Rollins,” “we,” “us,” “our,” or the “Company”), is 
an international services company headquartered in Atlanta, 
Georgia that provides pest and termite control services to both 
residential and commercial customers through its wholly-owned 
subsidiaries and independent franchises in the United States, 
Canada, Australia, Europe, and Asia with international franchises 
in Canada, Central and South America, the Caribbean, Europe, 
the Middle East, Asia, Africa, and Australia. Our pest and termite 
control services are performed pursuant to terms of contracts 
that specify the pricing arrangement with the customer. The 
Company operates as one reportable segment and the results 
of operations and its financial condition are not reliant upon any 
single customer.

General Operating Comments
We finished 2022 with record revenue of $2.7 billion. We have 
consistently grown revenue and 2022 represented another 
strong year for growth. We experienced strong growth across 
all major service lines driving 11% total growth in revenues. 
Residential service revenue increased 10%, commercial 
revenue growth was also 10% and termite and ancillary revenue 
growth was 15%. Income before income taxes increased 3.4% 
to $498.9 million compared to $482.5 million the prior year. 
Net income increased 3.4% to $368.6 million, with earnings 
per diluted share of $0.75 compared to $356.6 million, or 
$0.72 per diluted share for the prior year. Operating cash flow 
remained strong in 2022 and finished at $465.9 million up 
from $401.8 million in 2021. We repaid debt by $100 million in 
2022, we paid $119 million for 31 acquisitions in 2022 and a 
final payment on a 2021 acquisition, and continued to increase 

dividends to investors. The Company paid dividends to investors 
of $0.43 per diluted share in 2022 as compared to $0.42 per 
diluted share for the prior year, resulting in a 2.4% increase in 
dividends per share. 

While we continue to monitor macro-economic and other 
risks facing our business, we are starting 2023 with a strong 
foundation. Demand remains strong in our business with revenue 
growth of 11% in January 2023. Our balance sheet also provides 
us flexibility with debt remaining at very low levels to start the new 
year. We plan to evaluate opportunities to renegotiate our current 
credit facility that will be expiring in April 2024. Our pipeline for 
acquisitions is strong and we remain very well positioned to drive 
growth across all of our service lines in 2023.

Impact of the Pandemic and Other 
Economic Trends
The global spread and unprecedented impact of COVID-19 
has continued to create uncertainty and economic disruption 
around the world during 2022. We have and will continue to 
monitor COVID-19 and may again take actions that may alter 
our operations, including those that may be required by federal, 
state, or local authorities, or that we determine are in the best 
interests of our employees and customers. We do not know 
when, or if, it will become practical to eliminate all of these 
measures entirely as there is no guarantee that COVID-19 will 
be fully contained.

In addition, continued disruption in economic markets due to 
high inflation, increases in interest rates, increased fuel costs, 
business interruptions due to natural disasters, employee 
shortages and supply chain issues, all pose challenges which 
may adversely affect our future performance. The Company 
continues to carry out various strategies previously implemented 
to help mitigate the impact of these economic disruptors, 
including revamping its routing and scheduling process to 
decrease the number of miles per stop, advanced scheduling 
to compensate for employee and vehicle shortages, and 
maintaining higher purchasing levels to allow for sufficient 
inventory. However, the Company cannot reasonably estimate 
whether these strategies will help mitigate the impact of these 
economic disruptors in the future. 

The Company’s condensed consolidated financial statements 
reflect estimates and assumptions made by management that 
affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and related 
disclosures as of the date of the condensed consolidated 
financial statements. The Company considered the impact 
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of COVID-19 and other economic trends on the assumptions 
and estimates used in preparing the condensed consolidated 
financial statements. In the opinion of management, all 
material adjustments necessary for a fair presentation of the 
Company’s financial results for the year have been made. These 
adjustments are of a normal recurring nature but complicated 
by the continued uncertainty surrounding COVID-19 and other 
economic trends. The severity, magnitude and duration of 
certain economic trends, as well as the economic consequences 
of COVID-19, continue to be uncertain and are difficult to 

predict. Therefore, our accounting estimates and assumptions 
may change over time in response to COVID-19 and other 
economic trends and may change materially in future periods. 

The extent to which COVID-19, increasing interest rates, 
inflation and other economic trends will continue to impact 
the Company’s business, financial condition and results of 
operations is uncertain. Therefore, we cannot reasonably 
estimate the full future impacts of these matters at this time.

Results of Operations—2022 Versus 2021
Years ended December 31, Variance As a % of Revenue

(in thousands) 2022 2021 $ % 2022 2021
REVENUES $ 2,695,823 $ 2,424,300  271,523 11.2 100.0 100.0
  Cost of services provided (exclusive of depreciation  
  and amortization below)  1,308,399  1,162,617  145,782 12.5 48.5 48.0
  Gross profit  1,387,424  1,261,683  125,741 10.0 51.5 52.0
  Sales, general and administrative  802,710  727,489  75,221 10.3 29.8 30.0
  Depreciation and amortization  91,326  86,558  4,768 5.5 3.4 3.6
OPERATING INCOME  493,388  447,636  45,752 10.2 18.3 18.5
  Interest expense, net  2,638  830  1,808 217.8 0.1 0.0
  Other income, net  (8,167)  (35,679)  27,512 (77.1) 0.3 1.5
CONSOLIDATED INCOME BEFORE INCOME TAXES  498,917  482,485  16,432 3.4 18.5 19.9
PROVISION FOR INCOME TAXES  130,318  125,920  4,398 3.5 4.8 5.2
NET INCOME $     368,599 $     356,565  12,034 3.4 13.7 14.7

Revenues
The following presents a summary of revenues by product and service offering and revenues by geography:

Termite
20%

Commercial
34%

Residential
45%

Franchise 
and Other 1%

Termite
19%

Commercial
34%

Residential
46%

Franchise 
and Other 1% Other Countries Other Countries

United States
93%

United States
92%

REVENUE  BY MAJOR 
GEOGRAPHIC AREA

2022 2021 2022 2021 

REVENUE BY SIGNIFICANT 
PRODUCT AND SERVICE OFFERING

7% 8%

Revenues for the year ended December 31, 2022 were $2.7 billion, an increase of $271.5 million, or 11.2%, from 2021 revenues of 
$2.4 billion. Comparing 2022 to 2021, residential pest control revenue increased 10%, commercial pest control revenue increased 
10% and termite and ancillary services grew 15%. The Company’s foreign operations accounted for approximately 7% and 8% of total 
revenues for the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021, respectively. 
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Gross Profit
Gross profit for the year ended December 31, 2022 was $1.4 billion, 
an increase of $125.7 million, or 10.0%, compared to $1.3 billion 
for the year ended December 31, 2021. Gross margin was 51.5% 
in 2022 compared to 52.0% in 2021. For the year, we saw higher 
expenses associated with casualty reserves and people cost, 
notably medical costs. Excluding the increases we experienced 
in these areas, strategic pricing efforts helped offset inflationary 
pressures we experienced in fleet, material and other people 
associated costs. We remain focused on executing our pricing 
strategies and expect to pull forward our price increase again in 
2023 and expect to raise prices for services in the first quarter.

Sales, General and Administrative
For the twelve months ended December 31, 2022, sales, general 
and administrative (SG&A) expenses increased $75.2 million, or 
10.3%, compared to the twelve months ended December 31, 
2021. As a percentage of revenue, SG&A decreased to 29.8% 
from 30.0% in the prior year. Despite investing in additional 
people, advertising and other customer facing activities to drive 
growth, we saw an improvement in SG&A as a percentage of sales 
as we continue to manage our cost structure. Although casualty 
reserves and people costs, notably medical costs, had an impact 
on SG&A, they had a lesser impact on SG&A than cost of services.

Depreciation and Amortization
For the twelve months ended December 31, 2022, depreciation 
and amortization increased $4.8 million, or 5.5%, compared to 
the twelve months ended December 31, 2021. The increase was 
due to the additional amortization of customer contracts from 
several acquisitions offset by a decrease in the depreciation of 
operating equipment and internal-use software.

Operating Income
For the twelve months ended December 31, 2022, operating 
income increased $45.8 million or 10.2% compared to the prior 
year. As a percentage of revenue, operating income decreased 
to 18.3% from 18.5% in the prior year. The increase in revenue 
was offset primarily by an increase in expense associated 
with the casualty reserve as well as medical costs for people. 
Without these additional costs, pricing initiatives helped offset 
inflationary pressures we experienced in fleet, material and 
other people associated costs.

Interest Expense, Net
During the twelve months ended December 31, 2022, interest 
expense, net increased $1.8 million compared to the prior year, 
primarily due to the increase in weighted average interest rates 
which was partially offset by the lower average debt balance in 
2022 compared to 2021.

Other Income, Net
During the twelve months ended December 31, 2022, other 
income decreased $27.5 million primarily due to the Company 
recognizing a $31.5 million gain in the prior year related to 
multiple sale-leaseback transactions where the Company sold 
and leased back properties that it acquired in 2019 with the 
Clark Pest Control acquisition.

Income Taxes
The Company’s effective tax rate was 26.1% in both 2022 and 
2021. The 2022 rate was favorably impacted by lower foreign 
income taxes and officer’s compensation deductions, offset by 
an increase in state income taxes and lower restricted stock 
adjustments.

Liquidity and Capital Resources
Cash and Cash Flow
The Company’s $95.3 million of total cash at December 31, 
2022 is held at various banking institutions. Approximately 
$68.6 million is held in cash accounts at international bank 
institutions and the remaining $26.7 million is held in Federal 
Deposit Insurance Corporation (“FDIC”) insured non-interest-
bearing accounts at various domestic banks which at times 
exceed federally insured amounts.

The Company’s international business is expanding, and we 
intend to continue to grow the business in foreign markets in 
the future through reinvestment of foreign deposits and future 
earnings as well as acquisitions of unrelated companies. The 
Company has historically asserted that the undistributed 
earnings of our foreign subsidiaries are permanently reinvested. 
However, in the fourth quarter of 2022, the Company has 
partially changed this assertion and expects to repatriate 
unremitted foreign earnings from our foreign subsidiaries. The 
Company asserts that we continue to be permanently reinvested 
with respect to our investments in our foreign subsidiaries. 

In April 2019, the Company entered into a Revolving Credit 
Agreement with Truist Bank N.A. (formerly SunTrust Bank N.A.) 
and Bank of America, N.A. (the “2019 Credit Agreement”) for an 
unsecured revolving commitment of up to $175.0 million, which 
includes a $75.0 million letter of credit subfacility and a  
$25.0 million swingline subfacility (the “Revolving 
Commitment”), and an unsecured variable rate $250.0 
million term loan (the “Term Loan”). On January 27, 2022, the 
Company entered into an amendment (the “Amendment”) to 
the Credit Agreement with Truist Bank and Bank of America, 
N.A. whereby additional term loans in an aggregate principal 
amount of $252.0 million were advanced to the Company. The 
Amendment also replaced LIBOR as the benchmark interest rate 
for borrowings with the Bloomberg Short-Term Bank Yield Index 
rate (“BSBY”) and reset the amortization schedule for all term 
loans under the Credit Agreement. 

As of December 31, 2022, the Company had outstanding 
borrowings of $54.9 million under the Term Loan and there were 
no outstanding borrowings under the Revolving Commitment. 
The aggregate effective interest rate on the debt outstanding 
as of December 31, 2022 was 5.123%. The effective interest 
rate is comprised of the BSBY plus a margin of 75.0 basis points 
as determined by the Company’s leverage ratio calculation. 
As of December 31, 2021, the Revolving Commitment had 
outstanding borrowings of $107.0 million and the Term Loan had 
outstanding borrowings of $48.0 million. 
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Part II 
Item 7. — Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

The Company maintains approximately $71.3 million in letters 
of credit as of December 31, 2022. These letters of credit 
are required by the Company’s insurance companies, due to 
the Company’s high deductible insurance program, to secure 
various workers’ compensation and casualty insurance contracts 
coverage and were increased from $37.2 million as of December 
31, 2021. The Company believes that it has adequate liquid 
assets, funding sources and insurance accruals to accommodate 
potential future insurance claims.

In order to comply with applicable debt covenants, the 
Company is required to maintain at all times a leverage ratio 
of not greater than 3.00:1.00. The leverage ratio is calculated 
as of the last day of the fiscal quarter most recently ended. 
The Company remained in compliance with applicable debt 
covenants at December 31, 2022. We plan to evaluate 
opportunities to renegotiate our credit facility that will be 
expiring in April 2024.

The following table sets forth a summary of our cash flows from operating, investing and financing activities for the year ended 
December 31, 2022 and 2021:

Years ended December 31, Variance

(in thousands) 2022 2021 $ %
Net cash provided by operating activities $ 465,930 $ 401,805  64,125 16.0 

Net cash used in investing activities  (134,141)  (98,965)  (35,176) (35.5)

Net cash used in financing activities  (336,017)  (290,159)  (45,858) (15.8)

Effect of exchange rate on cash  (5,727)  (5,857)  130 2.2 

Net (decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalents $    (9,955) $      6,824  (16,779) (245.9)

Cash Provided by Operating Activities
Cash from operating activities is the principal source of cash 
generation for our businesses. The most significant source of cash 
in our cash flow from operations is customer-related activities, 
the largest of which is collecting cash resulting from services sold. 
The most significant operating use of cash is to pay our suppliers, 
employees, and tax and regulatory authorities. The Company’s 
operations generated cash of $465.9 million for the year ended 
December 31, 2022 compared with cash provided by operating 
activities of $401.8 million in 2021. The $64.1 million increase 
was driven primarily by strong operating results and the timing 
of cash receipts from customers and cash payments to vendors, 
employees, and tax and regulatory authorities.

Cash Used in Investing Activities
The Company used $134.1 million of cash in investing activities 
for the year ended December 31, 2022 and used $99.0 million 
for the year ended December 31, 2021. The Company invested 
approximately $30.6 million in capital expenditures during 2022 
compared to $27.2 million during 2021. Capital expenditures for 
the year consisted primarily of property purchases, equipment 
replacements and technology-related projects. Cash paid for 
acquisitions totaled $119.2 million for the year ended December 
31, 2022 as compared to $146.1 million for the year ended 
December 31, 2021. The expenditures for the Company’s 
acquisitions were funded through existing cash balances and 
operating cash flows. The Company remains very active in 
evaluating opportunities for acquisitions and expects to make 
additional acquisitions in 2023. The year ended December 31, 
2021 included approximately $67 million in cash proceeds from 
the sale of assets related to the Clark Pest Control property sale-
leaseback transactions.

Cash Used in Financing Activities
The Company used $336.0 million of cash in financing activities 
for the year ended December 31, 2022 and $290.2 million in 
financing activities for the year ended December 31, 2021. The 
Company made net debt repayments of $100.0 million during the 
year ended December 31, 2022, compared to net repayments of 
$48.0 million during 2021. A total of $211.6 million was paid in 
cash dividends, $0.43 per share, during the year ended December 
31, 2022 compared to $208.7 million in cash dividends paid, 
$0.42 per share, during the year ended December 31, 2021.

In 2012, the Company’s Board of Directors authorized the 
purchase of up to 5 million shares of the Company’s common 
stock. After adjustments for stock splits, the total authorized 
shares under the share repurchase plan are 16.9 million shares. 
The Company did not purchase shares on the open market 
during the years ended December 31, 2022, 2021 and 2020. 
There remain 11.4 million shares authorized to be repurchased 
under prior Board approval and the repurchase plan does not 
expire. The Company repurchased $7.1 million, $10.7 million, 
and $8.3 million of common stock for the years ended December 
31, 2022, 2021 and 2020, respectively, from employees for the 
payment of taxes on vesting restricted shares.

Rollins maintains adequate liquidity and capital resources, 
without regard to its foreign deposits, that are directed to finance 
domestic operations and obligations and to fund expansion of 
its domestic business. The Company believes its current cash 
and cash equivalents balances, future cash flows expected to 
be generated from operating activities, and available borrowings 
under its $175 million revolving credit facility and $300 
million term loan facility will be sufficient to finance its current 
operations and obligations, and fund expansion of the business 
for the foreseeable future. We expect to maintain compliance 
with applicable debt covenants throughout 2023.
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Litigation
For discussion on the Company’s legal contingencies, see Note 13 – Commitments and Contingencies to the accompanying financial 
statements, and Part I, Item 3, Legal Proceedings.

Contractual Obligations and Contingent Liabilities and Commitments
The impact that the Company’s contractual obligations as of December 31, 2022 are expected to have on our liquidity and cash flow in 
future periods is as follows:

Payments due by period

Contractual obligations (in thousands) Total
Less than  

1 year 2 - 3 years 4 - 5 years
More than 

5 years

Term loan $   54,898 $   15,000 $    39,898 $             — $            —

Acquisition holdbacks and earnouts  13,496  10,988  2,508  —  —

Non-cancelable operating leases  315,259  93,779  122,862  48,675  49,943

Total $ 383,653 $ 119,767 $ 165,268 $  48,675 $ 49,943

Critical Accounting Estimates
The Company views critical accounting estimates to be those 
that are very important to the portrayal of our financial condition 
and results of operations, and that require management’s most 
difficult, complex or subjective judgments. The circumstances 
that make these judgments difficult or complex relate to the 
need for management to make estimates about the effect of 
matters that are inherently uncertain. We believe our critical 
accounting estimate to be as follows:

Accrued Insurance—The Company retains, up to specified limits, 
certain risks related to general liability, workers’ compensation 
and auto liability. Risks are managed through either high 
deductible insurance or, for Clark Pest Control only, a non-
affiliated group captive insurance member arrangement. The 
estimated costs of existing and future claims under the retained 
loss program are accrued based upon historical trends as 
incidents occur, whether reported or unreported (although actual 
settlement of the claims may not be made until future periods) 
and may be subsequently revised based on developments 
relating to such claims. The group captive is subject to a third-
party actuary retained by the captive manager, independent from 
the Company. For the high deductible insurance program, the 
Company contracts with an independent third-party actuary to 
provide the Company an estimated liability based upon historical 
claims information. The actuarial study is a major consideration 

in establishing the reserve, along with management’s knowledge 
of changes in business practice and existing claims compared 
to current balances. Management’s judgment is inherently 
subjective as a number of factors are outside management’s 
knowledge and control. Additionally, historical information is not 
always an accurate indication of future events. The Company 
continues to be proactive in safety and risk management to 
develop and maintain ongoing programs to reduce and prevent 
incidents and claims. Initiatives that have been implemented 
include required pre-employment screening and ongoing 
motor vehicle record review for all drivers, post-offer physicals 
for new employees, pre-hire, random and post incident drug 
testing, driver training and post-injury nurse triage for work-
related injuries. The accruals and reserves we hold are based on 
estimates that involve a degree of judgment and are inherently 
variable and could be overestimated or insufficient. If actual 
claims exceed our estimates, our operating results could be 
materially affected, and our ability to take timely corrective 
actions to limit future costs may be limited.

Recent Accounting Guidance and Other Policies  
and Estimates
See Note 1 – Summary of Significant Accounting Policies of the 
Notes to Financial Statements (Part II, Item 8 of this Form 10-K) 
for further discussion.
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Part II 
Item 7.A. — Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about Market Risk

Item 7.A.
Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about Market Risk 

Market Risk
The Company maintained an investment portfolio (included in 
cash and cash equivalents) subject to short-term interest rate 
risk exposure; and other current and long-term investments.  
The Company is subject to interest rate risk exposure  
through borrowings on its $175.0 million revolving credit  
facility and amended $300.0 million term loan facility. As of 
December 31, 2022, the Company had outstanding borrowings 
of $54.9 million under the Term Loan and there were no 
outstanding borrowings under the Revolving Commitment. 
Additionally, the Company maintained $71.3 million in Letters of 
Credit. See Note 10 to the accompanying financial statements 

for further details regarding debt. These letters of credit are 
required by the Company’s insurance companies, due to the 
Company’s high deductible insurance program, to secure 
various workers’ compensation and casualty insurance contracts 
coverage. The Company believes that it has adequate liquid 
assets, funding sources and insurance accruals to accommodate 
such claims. The Company is also exposed to market risks 
arising from changes in foreign exchange rates. The Company 
believes that this foreign exchange rate risk will not have a 
material impact upon the Company’s results of operations going 
forward. For a discussion of the Company’s activities to manage 
risks relative to fluctuations in foreign currency exchange rates, 
see Note 11 to the accompanying financial statements.

Item 8.
Financial Statements and Supplementary Data 

Management’s Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting
To the Stockholders of Rollins, Inc.:

The management of Rollins, Inc. and subsidiaries is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over 
financial reporting for the Company. Rollins, Inc. maintains a system of internal accounting controls designed to provide reasonable 
assurance, at a reasonable cost, that assets are safeguarded against loss or unauthorized use and that the financial records are 
adequate and can be relied upon to produce financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the 
United States of America. The internal control system is augmented by written policies and procedures, an internal audit program and 
the selection and training of qualified personnel. This system includes policies that require adherence to ethical business standards 
and compliance with all applicable laws and regulations.

Under the supervision and with the participation of our management, including our principal executive officer and principal financial 
and principal accounting officer, we conducted an evaluation of the effectiveness of the design and operation of internal controls over 
financial reporting, as of December 31, 2022 based on criteria established in the 2013 Internal Control—Integrated Framework issued 
by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission. Based on this evaluation, management’s assessment is 
that Rollins, Inc. maintained effective internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2022.

The independent registered public accounting firm, Grant Thornton LLP has audited the consolidated financial statements as of and 
for the year ended December 31, 2022, and has also issued their report on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over 
financial reporting, included in this report on page 34.

/s/ Jerry E. Gahlhoff, Jr	 /s/ Kenneth D. Krause
Jerry E. Gahlhoff, Jr.	 Kenneth D. Krause

President and Chief Executive Officer	 Executive Vice President, Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer 
Principal Executive Officer	 Principal Financial Officer

Atlanta, Georgia 
February 16, 2023
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm
Board of Directors and Stockholders
Rollins, Inc.

Opinion on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting
We have audited the internal control over financial reporting of Rollins, Inc. (a Delaware corporation) and subsidiaries (the “Company”) 
as of December 31, 2022, based on criteria established in the 2013 Internal Control—Integrated Framework issued by the Committee 
of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (“COSO”). In our opinion, the Company maintained, in all material respects, 
effective internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2022, based on criteria established in the 2013 Internal Control—
Integrated Framework issued by COSO.
We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States) (“PCAOB”), 
the consolidated financial statements of the Company as of and for the year ended December 31, 2022, and our report dated February 
16, 2023 expressed an unqualified opinion on those financial statements.

Basis for Opinion
The Company’s management is responsible for maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting and for its assessment of 
the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting, included in the accompanying Management’s Report on Internal Control 
over Financial Reporting. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal control over financial reporting based 
on our audit. We are a public accounting firm registered with the PCAOB and are required to be independent with respect to the 
Company in accordance with the U.S. federal securities laws and the applicable rules and regulations of the Securities and Exchange 
Commission and the PCAOB. 
We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the PCAOB. Those standards require that we plan and perform the 
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether effective internal control over financial reporting was maintained in all material 
respects. Our audit included obtaining an understanding of internal control over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material 
weakness exists, testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk, and 
performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable 
basis for our opinion.

Definition and Limitations of Internal Control Over Financial Reporting
A company’s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability 
of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted 
accounting principles. A company’s internal control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to 
the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the 
company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements 
in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only 
in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding 
prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect 
on the financial statements.
Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements. Also, projections 
of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate because of changes in 
conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

/s/ GRANT THORNTON LLP

Atlanta, Georgia 
February 16, 2023 
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm
Board of Directors and Stockholders
Rollins, Inc.

Opinion on the Financial Statements 
We have audited the accompanying consolidated statements of financial position of Rollins, Inc. (a Delaware corporation) and 
subsidiaries (the “Company”) as of December 31, 2022 and 2021, the related consolidated statements of income, comprehensive 
income, stockholders’ equity, and cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2022, and the related notes 
(collectively referred to as the “financial statements”). In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, 
the financial position of the Company as of December 31, 2022 and 2021, and the results of its operations and its cash flows for each 
of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2022, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United 
States of America. 

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States) (“PCAOB”), 
the Company’s internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2022, based on criteria established in the 2013 Internal 
Control—Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (“COSO”), and our 
report dated February 16, 2023 expressed an unqualified opinion.

Basis for Opinion 
These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the 
Company’s financial statements based on our audits. We are a public accounting firm registered with the PCAOB and are required to be 
independent with respect to the Company in accordance with the U.S. federal securities laws and the applicable rules and regulations 
of the Securities and Exchange Commission and the PCAOB. 

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the PCAOB. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit 
to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement, whether due to error or 
fraud. Our audits included performing procedures to assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether 
due to error or fraud, and performing procedures that respond to those risks. Such procedures included examining, on a test basis, 
evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. Our audits also included evaluating the accounting 
principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial 
statements. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

Critical Audit Matter 
The critical audit matter communicated below is a matter arising from the current period audit of the financial statements that was 
communicated or required to be communicated to the audit committee and that: (1) relates to accounts or disclosures that are 
material to the financial statements and (2) involved our especially challenging, subjective, or complex judgments. The communication 
of critical audit matters does not alter in any way our opinion on the financial statements, taken as a whole, and we are not, by 
communicating the critical audit matter below, providing a separate opinion on the critical audit matter or on the accounts or 
disclosures to which it relates.

Accrued Insurance – General Liability, Workers’ Compensation and Auto Liability
As described further in note 1 to the financial statements, the Company retains, up to certain policy-specified limits, risks related to 
claims under general liability, workers’ compensation and auto liability programs (“accrued insurance”). Historical claims experience 
is utilized to estimate the current year accrual and the underlying provision for future claims under the retained loss programs. This 
actuarially determined accrual and provision includes both reported and unreported claims and may be subsequently revised based  
on future developments relating to such claims. We identified accrued insurance as a critical audit matter.

The principal considerations for our determination that accrued insurance is a critical audit matter are that the accrued insurance 
liability has a higher risk of estimation uncertainty due to the utilization of loss development factors and assumptions in actuarial 
methods used in determining the required liability. The estimation uncertainty and complexity of the actuarial methods utilized 
involved especially subjective auditor judgment and an increased level of effort, including the involvement of an auditor-engaged 
actuarial specialist.

Part II  
Item 8. — Financial Statements and Supplementary Data



36 | Rollins, Inc.  2022 ANNUAL REPORT

Our audit procedures related to accrued insurance included the following, among others:

	> We obtained an understanding, evaluated the design and tested the operating effectiveness of key controls, including, but not 
limited to, controls that (1) determine that claims were reported and submitted accurately and timely, (2) determine the underlying 
data maintained by the Company and the third-party administrator used to develop the accrued insurance reserve was complete 
and accurate, and (3) determine the third-party actuarial report, including the assumptions, used in developing and recording the 
accrued insurance reserve was reviewed by the Company’s management.

	> We tested the completeness and accuracy of the underlying data maintained by the Company and the third-party administrator, 
which was submitted to the Company’s actuary to develop the accrued insurance reserve.

	> We utilized an auditor-engaged specialist in evaluating management’s methods and assumptions, including the reasonableness of 
the selected loss development factors, as well as performed a comparison of actual versus expected claims development to identify 
indicators of potential bias. The auditor-engaged specialist developed an independent estimate of the range of potential losses and 
compared to the accrued insurance reserve recorded by management.

/s/ GRANT THORNTON LLP

We have served as the Company’s auditor since 2004.

Atlanta, Georgia 
February 16, 2023 
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION
Rollins, Inc. and Subsidiaries 
(in thousands except share information)

December 31, 2022 2021
ASSETS
  Cash and cash equivalents $       95,346 $    105,301
 � Trade receivables, net of allowance for expected credit losses of $14,073  

and $13,885, respectively  155,759  139,579

  Financed receivables, short-term, net of allowance for expected credit losses of $1,768  
  and $1,463, respectively  33,618  26,152

  Materials and supplies  29,745  28,926
  Other current assets  34,151  52,422
    Total current assets  348,619  352,380
 � Equipment and property, net of accumulated depreciation of $333,298 and  

$315,891, respectively  128,046  133,257

  Goodwill  846,704  786,504
  Customer contracts, net  298,559  301,914
  Trademarks & tradenames, net  111,646  108,976
  Other intangible assets, net  8,543  11,679
  Operating lease right-of-use assets  277,355  244,784
 � Financed receivables, long-term, net of allowance for expected credit losses of $3,200  

and $2,522, respectively  63,523  47,097

  Other assets  39,033  34,949
    Total assets $ 2,122,028 $ 2,021,540
LIABILITIES
  Accounts payable $       42,796 $       44,568
  Accrued insurance – current  39,534  36,414
  Accrued compensation and related liabilities  99,251  97,862
  Unearned revenues  158,092  145,122
  Operating lease liabilities – current  84,543  75,240
  Current portion of long-term debt  15,000  18,750
  Other current liabilities  54,568  73,206
    Total current liabilities  493,784  491,162
  Accrued insurance, less current portion  38,350  31,545
  Operating lease liabilities, less current portion  196,888  172,520
  Long-term debt  39,898  136,250
  Other long-term accrued liabilities  85,911  78,846
    Total liabilities  854,831  910,323
  Commitments and contingencies (see Note 13)
STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY
  Preferred stock, without par value; 500,000 shares authorized, zero shares issued — —
 � Common stock, par value $1 per share; 800,000,000 shares authorized, 492,447,997 and 

491,911,087 shares issued and outstanding, respectively  492,448  491,911

  Additional paid in capital  119,242  105,629
  Accumulated other comprehensive loss  (31,562)  (16,411)
  Retained earnings  687,069  530,088
    Total stockholders’ equity  1,267,197  1,111,217
    Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity $ 2,122,028 $ 2,021,540

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME
Rollins, Inc. and Subsidiaries 
(in thousands except per share information)

Year Ended December 31, 2022 2021 2020
REVENUES
  Customer services $ 2,695,823 $ 2,424,300 $ 2,161,220
COSTS AND EXPENSES    
 � Cost of services provided (exclusive of depreciation  

and amortization below)  1,308,399  1,162,617  1,048,592

  Sales, general and administrative  802,710  727,489  657,209
  Depreciation and amortization  91,326  86,558  79,331
    Total operating expenses  2,202,435  1,976,664  1,785,132
OPERATING INCOME  493,388  447,636  376,088
  Interest expense, net  2,638  830  5,082
  Other (income) expense, net  (8,167)  (35,679)  8,290
CONSOLIDATED INCOME BEFORE INCOME TAXES  498,917  482,485  362,716
PROVISION FOR INCOME TAXES  130,318  125,920  95,960
NET INCOME $     368,599 $         356,565 $     266,756
NET INCOME PER SHARE – BASIC AND DILUTED $             0.75 $            0.72 $             0.54
Weighted average shares outstanding – basic  492,300  492,054  491,604
Weighted average shares outstanding – diluted  492,413  492,054  491,604
DIVIDENDS PAID PER SHARE $             0.43 $            0.42 $             0.33

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
Rollins, Inc. and Subsidiaries 
(in thousands)

2022 2021 2020 
NET INCOME $ 368,599 $ 356,565 $ 266,756
Other comprehensive (loss) income, net of tax:       
  Pension and other postretirement benefit plans  —  —  (127)
  Foreign currency translation adjustments  (14,215)  (5,895)  10,443
  Unrealized loss on available for sale securities  (936) — —
  Change in derivatives  —  381  (104)
    Other comprehensive (loss) income, net of tax  (15,151)   (5,514)  10,212
Comprehensive income $ 353,448 $ 351,051 $ 276,968

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Rollins, Inc. and Subsidiaries 
(in thousands)

Common Stock Treasury
Additional 

Paid- 
In-Capital

Accumulated 
Other 

Comprehensive 
Income (Loss)Shares Amount Shares Amount

Retained 
Earnings Total

Balance at December 31, 2019 491,146 $ 491,146  — $ — $    89,413 $ (21,109) $ 273,659 $    833,109
Impact of adoption of ASC 326          2,486 2,486
Net income        266,756  266,756
Other comprehensive income                 
  Pension liability adjustment,  
  net of tax        (127)    (127)
  Foreign currency translation  
  adjustments        10,443    10,443
  Interest rate swaps, net of tax        (104)   (104)
Cash dividends         (160,487)   (160,487)
Stock compensation  802  802  20,315    (267)  20,850
Employee stock buybacks  (336)  (336) (7,971)    32  (8,275)
Balance at December 31, 2020 491,612 $ 491,612  — $ — $ 101,757 $ (10,897) $ 382,179 $     964,651
Net income        356,565  356,565
Other comprehensive income              
  Pension liability adjustment,  
  net of tax        —    —
  Foreign currency translation  
  adjustments        (5,895)    (5,895)
  Interest rate swaps, net of tax        381    381
Cash dividends        (208,656)  (208,656)
Stock compensation  593  593  14,272    14,865
Employee stock buybacks  (294)  (294)  (10,400)    (10,694)
Balance at December 31, 2021 491,911 $ 491,911  — $ — $ 105,629 $ (16,411) $ 530,088 $ 1,111,217
Net income  368,599  368,599
Other comprehensive income   
  Pension liability adjustment,  
  net of tax  —  —
 � Foreign currency translation 

adjustments  (14,215)  (14,215)
  Unrealized losses on available  
  for sale securities  (936)  (936)
Cash dividends  (211,618)  (211,618)
Stock compensation  765  765  20,450  21,215
Employee stock buybacks  (228)  (228)  (6,837)  (7,065)
Balance at December 31, 2022 492,448 $ 492,448  — $ — $ 119,242 $ (31,562) $ 687,069 $ 1,267,197

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
Rollins, Inc. and Subsidiaries 
(in thousands)

2022 2021 2020
OPERATING ACTIVITIES
  Net income $ 368,599 $ 356,565 $ 266,756
  Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating activities:
    Depreciation and amortization  91,326  86,558  79,331
    Stock-based compensation expense  21,215  14,865  20,850
    Provision for expected credit losses  19,441  15,285  17,536
    Gain on sale of assets, net  (8,167)  (35,679)  1,598
    Provision for deferred income taxes  1,595  3,421  849
  Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
    Trade accounts receivable and other accounts receivable  (34,003)  (22,439)  (12,045)
    Financing receivables  (23,891)  (14,473)  (11,787)
    Materials and supplies  (540)  2,644  (10,706)
    Other current assets  5,836  (11,159)  6,847
    Accounts payable and accrued expenses  304  1,421  50,061
    Unearned revenue  10,400  11,934  7,276
    Other long-term assets and liabilities  13,815  (7,138)  19,219
  Net cash provided by operating activities  465,930  401,805  435,785
INVESTING ACTIVITIES       
  Acquisitions, net of cash acquired  (119,188)  (146,098)  (147,613)
  Capital expenditures  (30,628)  (27,194)  (23,229)
  Proceeds from sale of assets  14,597  74,438  7,700
  Other investing activities, net  1,078  (111)  747
  Net cash (used in) investing activities  (134,141)  (98,965)  (162,395)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES       
  Payment of contingent consideration  (17,334)  (22,809)  (24,011)
  Borrowings under term loan  252,000  —  —
  Borrowings under revolving commitment  43,000  206,500  135,000
  Repayments of term loan  (245,000)  (88,000)  (54,000)
  Repayments of revolving commitment  (150,000)  (166,500)  (169,500)
  Payment of dividends  (211,618)  (208,656)  (160,487)
  Cash paid for common stock purchased  (7,065)  (10,694)  (8,275)
  Net cash (used in) financing activities  (336,017)  (290,159)  (281,273)
  Effect of exchange rate changes on cash  (5,727)  (5,857)  12,084
  Net (decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalents  (9,955)  6,824  4,201
  Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period  105,301  98,477  94,276
  Cash and cash equivalents at end of period $   95,346 $ 105,301 $    98,477
  Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information:       
  Cash paid for interest $ 4,162 $ 1,313 $         5,056
  Cash paid for income taxes, net $ 119,573 $ 119,762 $    81,184
  Non-cash additions to operating lease right-of-use assets $ 122,149 $ 116,594 $    89,016

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
Years ended December 31, 2022, 2021, and 2020, Rollins, Inc. and Subsidiaries

1.   SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 
ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Business Description—Rollins, Inc. (“Rollins,” “we,” “us,” 
“our,” or the “Company”), is an international services company 
headquartered in Atlanta, Georgia that provides pest and termite 
control services to both residential and commercial customers 
through its wholly-owned subsidiaries and independent 
franchises in the United States, Canada, Australia, Europe, 
and Asia with international franchises in Canada, Central and 
South America, the Caribbean, Europe, the Middle East, Asia, 
Africa, and Australia. The Company operates as one reportable 
segment and the results of operations and its financial condition 
are not reliant upon any single customer.

Principles of Consolidation—The Company’s Consolidated 
Financial Statements include the accounts of Rollins, Inc. and 
the Company’s wholly-owned subsidiaries and have been 
prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally 
accepted in the U.S. (“GAAP”). The Company does not 
consolidate the financial statements of any company in which 
it has an ownership interest of 50% or less. The Company is 
not the primary beneficiary of, nor does it have a controlling 
financial interest in, any variable interest entity. Accordingly, 
the Company has not consolidated any variable interest entity. 
The Company reclassified or revised certain prior period 
amounts, none of which were material, to conform to the current 
period presentation. All material intercompany accounts and 
transactions have been eliminated.

Subsequent Events—The Company evaluates its financial 
statements through the date the financial statements are issued.

Use of Estimates—The preparation of financial statements in 
conformity with GAAP requires management to make estimates 
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and 
liabilities, revenue and expenses and certain financial statement 
disclosures. Estimates and assumptions are used for, but not 
limited to, accrued insurance, revenue recognition, right-of-use 
("ROU") asset and liability valuations, accounts and financing 
receivable reserves, inventory (materials and supplies) valuation, 
employee benefit plans, income tax contingency accruals and 
valuation allowances, contingency accruals; goodwill and other 
intangible asset valuations. Although these estimates are based 
on management's knowledge of current events and actions it 
may undertake in the future, actual results may ultimately differ 
from these estimates and assumptions.

The Company considered the impact of COVID-19 on the 
assumptions and estimates used in preparing the consolidated 
financial statements. In the opinion of management, all 
adjustments necessary for a fair presentation of the Company’s 
financial results for the year have been made. These 
adjustments are of a normal recurring nature but complicated 
by the uncertainty surrounding the global economic impact 
of COVID-19. The results of operations for the year ended 
December 31, 2022 are not necessarily indicative of results for 
future years. The severity, magnitude and duration, as well as 
the economic consequences of COVID-19, are uncertain, rapidly 
changing and difficult to predict. Therefore, our accounting 
estimates and assumptions may change over time in response to 
COVID-19 and may change materially in future periods.

Basis of Presentation—Certain consolidated financial statement 
amounts relative to prior periods have been revised, the effects 
of which are immaterial, to correct the Company’s application 
of Accounting Standards Codification (“ASC”) 805, “Business 
Combinations,” with respect to certain acquisitions occurring 
between 2012 and 2019, which resulted in adjustments to the 
fair values of customer contracts and contingent consideration 
related to these acquisitions. The Company assessed the 
materiality of this correction to prior periods’ consolidated 
financial statements in accordance with Securities and 
Exchange Commission Staff Accounting Bulletin (“SAB”) No. 
99, “Materiality,” SAB 108, “Considering the Effects of Prior 
Year Misstatements when Quantifying Misstatements in Current 
Year Financial Statements,” and “Presentation of Financial 
Statements,” codified in ASC 250. The Company concluded that 
the correction was not material to prior periods and therefore, 
amendments of previously filed reports are not required. In 
accordance with ASC 250, the Company corrected prior periods 
presented herein by revising the financial statement line item 
amounts previously disclosed in SEC filings. The impact of this 
revision does not affect the interim or annual assessment of 
goodwill, intangibles or indefinite-lived assets. The impact of 
this revision on the Company’s previously reported consolidated 
financial statements is as follows:
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At December 31, 2021

As reported Adjustment As revised

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF  
FINANCIAL POSITION
Goodwill $     721,819 $  64,685 $     786,504
Customer contracts, net  325,929  (24,015)  301,914
  Total assets  1,980,870  40,670  2,021,540
Other long-term accrued liabilities  67,345  11,501  78,846
  Total liabilities  898,822  11,501  910,323
Retained earnings  500,919  29,169  530,088
  Total stockholders’ equity  1,082,048  29,169  1,111,217
  Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity 1,980,870 40,670 2,021,540

For the year ended December 31, 2021 For the year ended December 31, 2020
As reported Adjustment As revised As reported Adjustment As revised

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME         
COSTS AND EXPENSES     
  Sales, general and administrative $     727,489 $             — $     727,489 $     656,207 $    1,002 $     657,209
  Depreciation and amortization  94,205  (7,647)  86,558  88,329  (8,998)  79,331
  Total operating expenses  1,984,311  (7,647)  1,976,664 1,793,128  (7,996)  1,785,132
    Operating income  439,989  7,647  447,636  368,092  7,996  376,088
Consolidated income before income taxes  474,838  7,647  482,485  354,720  7,996  362,716
Provision for income taxes  124,151  1,769  125,920  93,896  2,064  95,960
Net income  350,687  5,878  356,565  260,824  5,932  266,756
Net income per share – basic and diluted  0.71  0.01  0.72  0.53  0.01  0.54

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF  
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
Net income $    350,687 $     5,878 $     356,565 $     260,824 $    5,932 $     266,756
Comprehensive income  345,173  5,878  351,051  271,036  5,932  276,968

Retained Earnings Total
As reported Adjustment As revised As reported Adjustment As revised

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF  
STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Balance at December 31, 2019 $    256,300 $  17,359 $     273,659 $     815,750 $ 17,359 $     833,109
Net income  260,824  5,932  266,756  260,824  5,932  266,756
Balance at December 31, 2020  358,888  23,291  382,179  941,360  23,291  964,651
Net income  350,687  5,878  356,565  350,687  5,878  356,565
Balance at December 31, 2021  500,919  29,169  530,088  1,082,048 29,169 1,111,217

For the year ended December 31, 2021 For the year ended December 31, 2020
As reported Adjustment As revised As reported Adjustment As revised

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net income $     350,687 $     5,878 $     356,565 $     260,824 $    5,932 $     266,756
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net 
cash provided by operating activities:
  Depreciation and amortization  94,205  (7,647)  86,558  88,329  (8,998)  79,331
  Provision for deferred income taxes  1,652  1,769  3,421  (1,215)  2,064  849
  Changes in operating assets and liabilities
  Other long-term assets and liabilities  (7,138)  —  (7,138)  18,217  1,002  19,219
Net cash provided by operating activities  401,805  —  401,805  435,785  —  435,785
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Revenue Recognition—The Company’s revenue recognition 
policy is to recognize revenue upon transfer of control of 
promised products and services to customers in an amount that 
reflects the consideration we expect to receive in exchange for 
those products or services. We enter into contracts that can 
include various combinations of products and services, each of 
which are distinct and accounted for as separate performance 
obligations. Revenue is recognized net of allowances for returns 
and any taxes collected from customers, which are subsequently 
remitted to governmental authorities.

Nature of Goods and Services and Performance Obligations
The Company contracts with its customers to provide the 
following goods and services, each of which is a distinct 
performance obligation:

Pest Control Services—Rollins provides pest control services to 
protect residential and commercial properties from common 
pests, including rodents and insects. Pest control generally 
consists of assessing a customer’s property for conditions that 
invite pests, tackling current infestations, and stopping the life 
cycle to prevent future invaders. Revenue from pest control 
services is recognized as services are rendered.

The Company’s revenue recognition policies are designed 
to recognize revenues upon satisfaction of the performance 
obligation at the time services are performed. For certain 
revenue types, because of the timing of billing and the receipt 
of cash versus the timing of performing services, we use 
estimates as described below. Residential and commercial 
pest control services are primarily recurring in nature on a 
monthly, bi-monthly or quarterly basis, while certain types of 
commercial customers may receive multiple treatments within 
a given month. In general, pest control customers sign an initial 
one-year contract, and revenues are recognized at the time 
services are performed. The Company defers recognition of 
advance payments and recognizes the revenue as the services 
are rendered. The Company classifies discounts related to the 
advance payments as a reduction in revenues.

Termite Control Services—Rollins provides a variety of termite 
protection services. Termite protection programs include liquid 
treatments, wet and dry foam applications, termite baiting 
and wood treatments. Revenue from initial termite treatment 
services is recognized as services are provided.

Maintenance/Monitoring/Inspection—In connection with the 
initial service offerings, Rollins provides recurring maintenance, 
monitoring or inspection services to help protect consumers’ 
property from any future sign of termite activities after the 
original treatment. This recurring service is a service-type 
warranty under ASC 606, “Revenue from Contracts with 
Customers,” as it is routinely sold and purchased separately 
from the initial treatment services and is typically purchased or 
renewed annually.

Termite baiting revenues are recognized based on the transfer of 
control of the individual units of accounting. At the inception of a 
new baiting services contract, upon quality control review of the 

installation, the Company recognizes revenue for the installation 
of the monitoring stations, initial directed liquid termiticide 
treatment and servicing of the monitoring stations. A portion of 
the contract amount is deferred for the undelivered monitoring 
performance obligation. This portion is recognized as income 
on a straight-line basis over the remaining contract term, which 
results in recognition of revenue that depicts the Company’s 
performance in transferring control of the service. The allocation 
of the transaction price to the two deliverables is based on the 
relative stand-alone selling price. There are no contingencies 
related to the delivery of additional items or meeting other 
specified performance conditions. Baiting renewal revenue is 
deferred and recognized over the annual contract period on a 
straight-line basis that depicts the Company’s performance in 
transferring control of the service.

Revenue received for conventional termite renewals is deferred 
and recognized on a straight-line basis over the remaining 
contract term that depicts the Company’s performance in 
transferring control of the service, and the cost of reinspections, 
reapplications and repairs and associated labor and chemicals 
are expensed as incurred. For outstanding claims, an estimate 
is made of the costs to be incurred (including legal costs) based 
upon current factors and historical information. The performance 
of reinspections tends to be close to the contract renewal date, 
and while reapplications and repairs involve an insubstantial 
number of the contracts, these costs are incurred over the 
contract term. As the revenue is being deferred, the future cost 
of reinspections, reapplications and repairs and associated labor 
and chemicals applicable to the deferred revenue are expensed 
as incurred. The Company accrues for noticed claims. The costs 
of providing termite services upon renewal are compared to the 
expected revenue to be received and a provision is made for any 
expected losses.

Miscellaneous Services—In certain agreements with customers, 
Rollins may offer other miscellaneous services, including 
restroom cleaning (eliminating foul odors, grease and grime 
which could attract pests) and training (seminars covering good 
manufacturing practices and product stewardship). Revenue 
from miscellaneous services is recognized when services are 
provided.

Products—Depending on customer demand, Rollins may 
separately sell pest control and/or termite protection products, 
such as traps. Revenue from product sales is recognized upon 
transfer of control of the asset.

Equipment Rental (or Lease)—Depending on customer demand, 
Rollins may lease certain pest control and/or termite protection 
equipment. Revenues from equipment rentals are recognized 
over the period of the rental/lease. Revenues from equipment 
rentals represent less than 1.0% of the Company’s revenues for 
each reported period.

The Company’s international operations accounted for 
approximately 7%, 8%, and 7% of revenues for the years  
ended December 31, 2022, 2021, and 2020 respectively.
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Contract Balances
Timing of revenue recognition may differ from the timing of 
invoicing to customers. We record unearned revenue when 
revenue is recognized subsequent to billing. Unearned revenue 
mainly relates to the Company’s termite baiting offering, 
conventional renewals, and year-in-advance pest control 
services for which we have been paid in advance and earn the 
revenue when we transfer control of the product or service. 
For multi-year agreements, we generally invoice customers 
annually at the beginning of each annual coverage period. Refer 
to Note 3 – Revenue for further information, including changes in 
unearned revenue for the year.

The Company extends terms to certain customers on higher 
dollar termite and ancillary work, as well as to certain franchisees 
for initial funding on the sale of franchises. These financed 
receivables are segregated from our trade receivables. The 
allowance for expected credit losses reflects our best estimate 
of probable losses inherent in the accounts receivable balance. 
We determine the allowance based on known troubled accounts, 
historical experience, and other currently available evidence. See 
Note 4 – Allowance for Credit Losses for further information.

Payment terms and conditions vary by contract type, although 
terms generally include a requirement of payment within 30 to 
60 days. In instances where the timing of revenue recognition 
differs from the timing of invoicing, we have determined our 
contracts generally do not include a significant financing 
component. The primary purpose of our invoicing terms is to 
provide customers with simplified and predictable ways of 
purchasing our products and services, not to receive financing 
from our customers or to provide customers with financing.

Practical Expedients and Exemptions
We generally expense sales commissions when incurred because 
the amortization period would have been one year or less. These 
costs are recorded within sales and marketing expenses.

We do not disclose the value of unsatisfied performance 
obligations for (i) contracts with an original expected length 
of one year or less and (ii) contracts for which we recognize 
revenue at the amount to which we have the right to invoice for 
services performed. All revenues are reported net of sales taxes.

Allowance for Expected Credit Losses—The Company maintains 
an allowance for expected credit losses based on the expected 
collectability of accounts receivable. Management uses historical 
collection results as well as accounts receivable aging in order 
to determine the expected collectability of accounts receivable. 
Substantially all of the Company’s receivables are due from pest 
control and termite services in the United States and selected 
international locations. The Company’s allowance for expected 
credit losses is determined using a combination of factors. The 
Company’s established credit evaluation procedures seek to 
minimize the amount of business we conduct with higher risk 
customers. Provisions for expected credit losses are recorded 
in selling, general and administrative expenses. Accounts are 
written off against the allowance for expected credit losses 
when the Company determines that amounts are uncollectible, 
and recoveries of amounts previously written off are recorded 

when collected. Significant recoveries will generally reduce 
the required provision in the period of recovery. Therefore, the 
provision for expected credit losses can fluctuate significantly 
from period to period. We record specific provisions when we 
become aware of a customer’s inability to meet its financial 
obligations to us, such as in the case of bankruptcy filings or 
deterioration in the customer’s operating results or financial 
position. If circumstances related to customers change, our 
estimates of the realizability of receivables would be further 
adjusted, either upward or downward.

Advertising—Advertising costs are charged to sales, general and 
administrative expense during the year in which they are incurred.

Years ended December 31, 2022 2021 2020
(in thousands)

Advertising $102,959 $91,879 $86,314

Cash and Cash Equivalents—The Company considers all 
investments with an original maturity of three months or less 
when purchased to be cash equivalents.

The Company’s $95.3 million of total cash at December 31, 2022  
is primarily cash held at various banking institutions. Approximately 
$68.6 million is held in cash accounts at international banking 
institutions and the remaining $26.7 million is primarily held in 
Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (“FDIC”) insured non-
interest-bearing accounts at various domestic banks which at 
times may exceed federally insured amounts. The Company has 
not incurred any losses in these accounts.

At December 31, 2022 2021
(in thousands) 

Cash held in foreign bank accounts $68,580 $78,102

Rollins maintains adequate liquidity and capital resources, 
without regard to its foreign deposits, that are directed to finance 
domestic operations and obligations and to fund expansion of its 
domestic business for the foreseeable future.

Marketable Securities—From time to time, the Company 
maintains investments held by several large, well-capitalized 
financial institutions. The Company’s investment policy does not 
allow investment in any securities rated less than “investment 
grade” by national rating services.

Management determines the appropriate classification of 
debt securities at the time of purchase and re-evaluates such 
designations as of each balance sheet date. Debt securities are 
classified as available-for-sale because the Company does not 
have the intent to hold the securities to maturity. Available-for-
sale securities are stated at their fair values, with the unrealized 
gains and losses reported in other comprehensive income.

The Company had no other marketable securities other than 
those held in the defined benefit pension plan and the non-
qualified deferred compensation plan at December 31, 2022 
and 2021. See Note 12 for further details.
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Materials and Supplies—Materials and supplies are stated at the 
lower of cost or net realizable value. Cost is determined on the 
first-in, first-out method.

Other Current Assets—Other current assets include prepaids and 
the international bond investment. Refer to Note 9, Fair Value 
Measurement.

Income Taxes—The Company provides for income taxes 
based on FASB ASC topic 740 “Income Taxes,” which requires 
recognition of deferred tax liabilities and assets for the expected 
future tax consequences of events that have been included 
in the consolidated financial statements or tax returns. The 
Company provides an allowance for deferred tax assets when it 
determines that it is more likely than not that the deferred tax 
assets will not be utilized. The Company establishes additional 
provisions for income taxes when, despite the belief that tax 
positions are fully supportable, there remain certain positions 
that do not meet the minimum probability threshold. The 
Company’s policy is to record interest and penalties related to 
income tax matters in income tax expense.

Equipment and Property—Equipment and property are stated at 
cost, net of accumulated depreciation, and are depreciated on a 
straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of the related 
assets. Annual provisions for depreciation are computed using 
the following asset lives: buildings, 10 to 40 years; and furniture, 
fixtures and operating equipment, 2 to 10 years. Expenditures 
for additions, major renewals and betterments are capitalized 
and expenditures for maintenance and repairs are expensed 
as incurred. The cost of assets retired or otherwise disposed 
of and the related accumulated depreciation and amortization 
are eliminated from the accounts in the year of disposal with 
the resulting gain or loss credited or charged to income. The 
annual provisions for depreciation, below, have been reflected in 
the consolidated statements of income in the line item entitled 
Depreciation and amortization.

Years ended December 31, 2022 2021 2020
(in thousands)

Depreciation $ 35,648 $ 40,592   $ 40,623

Certain internal-use software and systems development 
costs are capitalized. Accordingly, the specific identified costs 
incurred to develop and obtain software, which is intended for 
internal use, are not capitalized until the software is put into 
use. Management, with the relevant authority, authorizes and 
commits to funding a software project and it is probable that 
the project will be completed and the software will be used to 
perform the function intended. Costs incurred during a software 
development’s discovery phase and post-integration stage, 
are expensed as incurred. Application development activities 
that are eligible for capitalization include software design and 
configuration, development of interfaces, coding, testing and 

installation. Capitalized internal-use software and systems costs 
are subsequently amortized on a straight-line basis over a three 
to seven year period after project completion and when the 
related software or system is ready for intended use.

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets—In accordance with the FASB 
ASC Topic 360, “Property, Plant and Equipment,” the Company’s 
long-lived assets, such as property and equipment and 
intangible assets with definite lives are reviewed for impairment 
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that 
the carrying amount of these assets may not be recoverable. 
Recoverability of assets to be held and used is measured by 
a comparison of the carrying amount of an asset to estimated 
undiscounted future cash flows expected to be generated by the 
asset. If the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its estimated 
undiscounted future cash flows, an impairment charge is 
recognized in the amount by which the carrying amount of 
the asset exceeds the fair value of the asset. We periodically 
evaluate the appropriateness of remaining depreciable lives 
assigned to long-lived assets, including customer contracts 
and assets that may be subject to a management plan for 
disposition.

Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets—In accordance with the 
FASB ASC Topic 350, “Intangibles – Goodwill and other,” the 
Company classifies intangible assets into three categories:  
(1) intangible assets with definite lives subject to amortization; 
(2) intangible assets with indefinite lives not subject to 
amortization; and (3) goodwill. The Company does not amortize 
intangible assets with indefinite lives or goodwill. Goodwill 
and other intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are 
tested for impairment annually or more frequently if events 
or circumstances indicate the assets might be impaired. Such 
conditions may include an economic downturn or a change in 
the assessment of future operations. The Company performs 
impairment tests of goodwill at the Company level. Such 
impairment tests for goodwill include comparing the fair value 
of the appropriate reporting unit (the Company) with its carrying 
value. If the fair value of the reporting unit is below the carrying 
value, the Company recognizes a goodwill impairment charge for 
the amount by which the carrying value exceeds the reporting 
unit’s fair value. The Company performs impairment tests for 
indefinite-lived intangible assets by comparing the fair value of 
each indefinite-lived intangible asset unit to its carrying value. 
The Company recognizes an impairment charge if the asset’s 
carrying value exceeds its estimated fair value. The Company 
completed its most recent annual impairment analysis as of 
September 30, 2022. Based upon the results of these analyses, 
the Company has concluded that no impairment of its goodwill 
or intangible assets with indefinite lives was indicated.

Other Assets—Other assets is mostly comprised of deferred 
compensation assets and the international bond investment. 
Refer to Note 12, Employee Benefit Plans and Note 9, Fair Value 
Measurement.

Part II  
Item 8. — Financial Statements and Supplementary Data



47Rollins, Inc.  2022 ANNUAL REPORT   |

Accrued Insurance—The Company retains, up to specified limits, 
certain risks related to general liability, workers’ compensation 
and auto liability. Risks are managed through either high 
deductible insurance or, for Clark Pest Control only, a non-
affiliated group captive insurance member arrangement. The 
estimated costs of existing and future claims under the retained 
loss program are accrued based upon historical trends as 
incidents occur, whether reported or unreported (although actual 
settlement of the claims may not be made until future periods) 
and may be subsequently revised based on developments 
relating to such claims. The group captive is subject to a third-
party actuary retained by the captive manager, independent from 
the Company. For the high deductible insurance program, the 
Company contracts with an independent third-party actuary to 
provide the Company an estimated liability based upon historical 
claims information. The actuarial study is a major consideration 
in establishing the reserve, along with management’s knowledge 
of changes in business practice and existing claims compared 
to current balances. Management’s judgment is inherently 
subjective as a number of factors are outside management’s 
knowledge and control. Additionally, historical information is not 
always an accurate indication of future events. The Company 
continues to be proactive in safety and risk management to 
develop and maintain ongoing programs to reduce and prevent 
incidents and claims. Initiatives that have been implemented 
include required pre-employment screening and ongoing 
motor vehicle record review for all drivers, post-offer physicals 
for new employees, pre-hire, random and post incident drug 
testing, driver training and post-injury nurse triage for work-
related injuries. The accruals and reserves we hold are based on 
estimates that involve a degree of judgment and are inherently 
variable and could be overestimated or insufficient. If actual 
claims exceed our estimates, our operating results could be 
materially affected, and our ability to take timely corrective 
actions to limit future costs may be limited.

Accrual for Termite Contracts—The Company maintains an 
accrual for termite claims representing the estimated costs of 
reapplications, repairs and associated labor and chemicals, 
settlements, awards and other costs relative to termite 
control services. Factors that may impact future costs include 
termiticide life expectancy and government regulation. The 
actual number of claims has decreased in recent years due to 
changes in the Company’s business practices. However, it is not 
possible to precisely predict future significant claims. An accrual 
for termite contracts is included in other current liabilities and 
long-term accrued liabilities on the Company’s consolidated 
statements of financial position.

Other Current Liabilities—Other current liabilities are mostly 
comprised of the current portion of acquisition holdback and 
earnout liabilities (see Note 9), contingency accruals, deferred 
compensation liabilities (see Note 12) and taxes payable.

Other Long-term Accrued Liabilities—Other long-term accrued 
liabilities include long-term balances for deferred compensation, 
acquisition holdback and earnout liabilities, deferred tax 
liabilities, contingency accruals, and the long-term portion of 
unearned revenue.

Contingency Accruals—The Company is a party to legal 
proceedings with respect to matters in the ordinary course 
of business. In accordance with the FASB ASC Topic 450 
“Contingencies,” management estimates and accrues for its 
liability and costs associated with the litigation. Estimates and 
accruals are determined in consultation with outside counsel. 
Because it is not possible to accurately predict the ultimate 
result of the litigation, judgments concerning accruals for 
liabilities and costs associated with litigation are inherently 
uncertain and actual liability may vary from amounts estimated 
or accrued. However, in the opinion of management, the 
outcome of the litigation will not have a material adverse impact 
on the Company’s financial condition or results of operations. 
Contingency accruals are included in other current liabilities and 
long-term accrued liabilities on the Company’s consolidated 
statements of financial position.

Earnings Per Share—the FASB ASC Topic 260-10 “Earnings 
Per Share-Overall,” requires a basic earnings per share and 
diluted earnings per share presentation. Further, all outstanding 
unvested share-based payment awards that contain non-
forfeitable rights to dividends or dividend equivalents, whether 
paid or unpaid, are considered participating securities and 
an entity is required to include participating securities in its 
calculation of basic earnings per share.

The Company has periodically issued share-based payment 
awards that contain non-forfeitable rights to dividends and 
therefore are considered participating securities. See Note 14 for 
further information on restricted stock granted to employees.

The Company reports both basic and diluted earnings per share. 
Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing net income 
available to participating common stockholders by the weighted 
average number of participating common shares outstanding for 
the period. Diluted earnings per share is calculated by dividing 
the net income available to participating common stockholders 
by the diluted weighted average number of shares outstanding 
for the period. The diluted weighted average number of shares 
outstanding is the basic weighted number of shares adjusted for 
any potentially dilutive equity.

A reconciliation of weighted average shares outstanding along 
with the earnings per share attributable to restricted shares of 
common stock (participating securities) and restricted stock 
units is as follows (in thousands except per share data). 
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Years Ended December 31, 2022 2021 2020
Net income available to stockholders $      368,599 $      356,565 $      266,756
Less dividends paid:       
  Common stock  (210,509)  (207,482)  (159,524)
  Time-lapse restricted awards  (1,109)  (1,174)  (963)
    Undistributed earnings for the period  156,981  147,909  106,269

Allocation of undistributed earnings:       
  Common stock $      156,123 $      147,069 $         99,676
  Time-lapse restricted awards  823  840  661
  Restricted stock units  36  —  —
Weighted-average shares outstanding:       
  Weighted-average outstanding common shares  489,719  489,259  488,364
  Add participating securities:

  Weighted-average time-lapse restricted awards  2,581  2,795  3,240
Total weighted-average shares outstanding – basic  492,300  492,054  491,604
  Dilutive effect of restricted stock units  113  —  —
Total weighted-average shares outstanding – diluted  492,413  492,054  491,604

Basic earnings per share:       
  Common stock:       
    Distributed earnings $              0.43 $              0.42 $              0.33
    Undistributed earnings  0.32  0.30  0.21

$              0.75 $              0.72 $              0.54

Time-lapse restricted awards:       
  Distributed earnings $              0.43 $              0.42 $              0.30
  Undistributed earnings  0.32  0.30 $              0.20

$              0.75 $              0.72 $              0.50

Diluted earnings per share:       
  Common stock:       
    Distributed earnings $              0.43 $              0.42 $              0.33
    Undistributed earnings  0.32  0.30  0.21

$              0.75 $              0.72 $              0.54

Time-lapse restricted awards:       
  Distributed earnings $              0.43 $              0.42 $              0.30
  Undistributed earnings  0.32  0.30  0.20

$              0.75 $              0.72 $              0.50

Restricted stock units:       
  Distributed earnings $                    — $                    — $                    —
  Undistributed earnings  0.32  —  —

$              0.32 $                    — $                    —
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Translation of Foreign Currencies—Assets and liabilities reported 
in functional currencies other than U.S. dollars are translated 
into U.S. dollars at the year-end rate of exchange. Revenues and 
expenses are translated at the weighted average exchange rates 
for the year. The resulting translation adjustments are charged 
or credited to other comprehensive income. Gains or losses from 
foreign currency transactions, such as those resulting from the 
settlement of receivables or payables, denominated in foreign 
currency are included in the earnings of the current period.

Stock-Based Compensation—The Company accounts for its 
stock-based compensation in accordance with the FASB ASC 
Topic 718 “Compensation – Stock Compensation.” Time lapse 
restricted awards and restricted stock units (“restricted shares) 
have been issued to officers and other management employees 
under the Company’s Employee Stock Incentive Plan.

Restricted shares provide for the issuance of a share of the 
Company’s common stock at no cost to the holder and generally 
vest after a certain stipulated number of years from the grant 
date, depending on the terms of the issue. The 2022 grant of 
restricted shares vest over five years from the date of the grant. 
Prior grants vest over six years from the date of grant. The 
Company issues new shares from its authorized but unissued 
share pool. During these years, restricted awards grantees 
receive all dividends declared and retain voting rights for the 
granted shares. The agreements under which the restricted 
shares are issued provide that shares awarded may not be sold 
or otherwise transferred until restrictions established under the 
plans have lapsed. The fair value of these awards is recognized 
as compensation expense, net of estimated forfeitures, on a 
straight-line basis over the vesting period.

Comprehensive Income (Loss)—Other Comprehensive Income 
(Loss) results from foreign currency translations, minimum 
pension liability adjustments, cash flow hedge of interest rate 
risks and unrealized gains and losses on available for sale 
securities.

Franchising Program—The Company has franchise programs 
through Orkin, Critter Control and its Australian subsidiaries. We 
had a total of 137, 135 and 128 domestic franchise agreements 
as of December 31, 2022, 2021 and 2020, respectively. 
International franchise agreements totaled 89, 103 and 101 
as of December 31, 2022, 2021 and 2020, respectively. 
Transactions with our franchises involve sales of territories 
and customer contracts to establish new franchises and the 
payment of initial franchise fees and royalties by franchisees. 
The territories, customer contracts and initial franchise fees are 
typically paid for by a combination of cash and notes. 

Combined domestic and international revenues from Orkin, 
Critter Control and Australia franchises were $15.5 million, 
$15.5 million and $15.2 million for the years ended December 31,  
2022, 2021 and 2020, respectively. Total franchising revenues 
were less than 1.0% of the Company’s annual revenues for each 
of the three years respectively.

Right to access intellectual property (Franchise)—The right to 
access Orkin’s, Critter Control’s and our Australia franchisors’ 
intellectual property is an essential part of our franchise 
agreements. These agreements provide the franchisee a license 

to use the brand name and trademark when advertising and 
selling services to end customers in their normal course of 
business. Orkin and Critter Control franchise agreements contain 
a clause allowing the respective franchisor to purchase certain 
assets of the franchisee at the conclusion of their franchise 
agreement or upon termination. This is only an option for the 
franchisor to re-purchase the assets selected by the franchisor 
and is not a performance obligation or a form of consideration.

Recent Accounting Guidance
Recently Adopted Accounting Standards
In November 2021, the FASB issued ASU 2021-10, “Government 
Assistance (Topic 832) – Disclosures by Business Entities about 
Government Assistance.” The amendments in this Update require 
disclosures about transactions with a government that have 
been accounted for by analogizing to a grant or contribution 
accounting model to increase transparency about (1) the 
types of transactions, (2) the accounting for the transactions, 
and (3) the effect of the transactions on an entity’s financial 
statements. The amendments in this Update are effective for 
financial statements issued for annual periods beginning after 
December 15, 2021. The adoption of this ASU is not expected to 
have a material impact on the Company’s consolidated financial 
statements.

Accounting Standards Issued But Not Yet Adopted
In March 2022, the FASB issued ASU 2022-02, “Financial 
Instruments-Credit Losses (Topic 326): Troubled Debt 
Restructurings and Vintage Disclosures.” The amendments in 
this Update eliminate the accounting guidance for troubled 
debt restructurings (TDRs) by creditors in Subtopic 310-40, 
Receivables-Troubled Debt Restructurings by Creditors, while 
enhancing disclosure requirements for certain loan refinancings 
and restructurings by creditors when a borrower is experiencing 
financial difficulty. Additionally, for public business entities, 
the amendments in this Update require that an entity disclose 
current-period gross write-offs by year of origination for 
financing receivables. ASU 2022-02 is effective for fiscal years 
beginning after December 15, 2022. The adoption of this ASU 
is not expected to have a material impact on the Company’s 
consolidated financial statements.

In June 2022, the FASB issued ASU 2022-03, “Fair Value 
Measurement (Topic 820): Fair Value Measurements of 
Equity Securities Subject to Contractual Sale Restrictions.” 
The amendments in this Update clarify the guidance in Topic 
820 when measuring the fair value of an equity security 
subject to contractual restrictions that prohibit the sale of an 
equity security. This Update also introduces new disclosure 
requirements for equity securities subject to contractual sale 
restrictions that are measured at fair value. These amendments 
are effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2023 
and interim periods within those fiscal years. The Company 
does not currently own any equity securities and therefore the 
adoption of this ASU is not expected to have a material impact 
on the Company’s consolidated financial statements.
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2.   ACQUISITIONS
The Company made 31 and 39 acquisitions during the years 
ended December 31, 2022, and 2021, respectively. Total cash 
purchase price for the Company’s acquisitions in 2022 and 2021 
were $116.0 million and $146.1 million, respectively. For the  
31 acquisitions completed in 2022, the preliminary values of 
major classes of assets acquired and liabilities assumed recorded 
at the dates of acquisition are included in the reconciliation of the 
total consideration as follows (in thousands):

2022 2021
Accounts receivable, net $     3,736 $      3,072

Materials and supplies  529  891

Equipment and property  6,741  8,184

Goodwill  64,997  69,555

Customer contracts  49,871  80,239

Trademarks & tradenames  5,615  1,200

Other intangible assets  1,538  3,668

Current liabilities  (4,853)  (6,483)

Other assets and liabilities, net  (1,948)  288

  Total consideration  126,226  160,614

Less: Acquisition holdback liabilities  (10,178)  (14,516)

Total cash purchase price $116,048 $ 146,098

The Company also made a final payment of $3.1 million for a 
2021 acquisition in 2022.

Goodwill from acquisitions represents the excess of the purchase 
price over the fair value of net assets of businesses acquired. 
The factors contributing to the amount of goodwill are based 
on strategic and synergistic benefits that are expected to be 
realized. For the year ended December 31, 2022, $65.0 million of 
goodwill was added related to the 31 acquisitions noted above. 
The recognized goodwill is expected to be deductible for tax 
purposes. The purchase price allocations for these acquisitions 
are preliminary until the Company obtains final information 
regarding these fair values.

3.   REVENUE
The following tables present our revenues disaggregated by 
revenue source (in thousands).

Sales and usage-based taxes are excluded from revenues. No sales 
to an individual customer or in a country other than the United 
States accounted for 10% or more of the sales for the periods listed 
in the following tables. Revenue, classified by the major geographic 
areas in which our customers are located, was as follows:

2022 2021 2020
(in thousands)

United States $ 2,498,363 $ 2,240,226 $ 2,006,368
Other countries  197,460  184,074  154,852
Total revenues $ 2,695,823 $ 2,424,300 $ 2,161,220

Revenue from external customers, classified by significant 
product and service offerings, was as follows:

2022 2021 2020
(in thousands)

Residential  
revenue $ 1,212,491 $ 1,103,687 $    977,470
Commercial  
revenue  914,839  829,396  752,349
Termite  
completions,  
bait monitoring 
& renewals  536,854  465,053  406,782
Franchise  
revenues 15,665  15,777  14,367

Other revenues  15,974  10,387  10,252

Total revenues $ 2,695,823 $ 2,424,300 $ 2,161,220

Deferred revenue recognized for the year ended December 31,  
2022 and 2021 was $205.3 million and $187.3 million, 
respectively. Changes in unearned revenue were as follows:

Year Ended December 31,

(in thousands) 2022 2021
Beginning balance $     168,607 $    149,224
Deferral of unearned revenue  224,647  206,730
Recognition of unearned revenue  (205,260)  (187,347)
Ending balance $     187,994 $    168,607

Revenue allocated to remaining performance obligations 
represents contracted revenue that has not yet been 
recognized (“contracted not recognized revenue”), which 
includes both unearned revenue and revenue that will be billed 
and recognized in future periods. The Company has no material 
contracted not recognized revenue as of December 31, 2022 or 
December 31, 2021.

At December 31, 2022 and December 31, 2021, the Company 
had long-term unearned revenue of $29.9 million and  
$23.5 million, respectively. Unearned short-term revenue is 
recognized over the next 12-month period. The majority of 
unearned long-term revenue is recognized over a period of five 
years or less with immaterial amounts recognized through 2033.

4.   ALLOWANCE FOR EXPECTED CREDIT 
LOSSES
The Company is exposed to credit losses primarily related to 
accounts receivables and financed receivables derived from 
customer services revenue. To reduce credit risk for residential 
accounts receivable, we promote enrollment in our auto-pay 
programs. In general, we may suspend future services for 
customers with past due balances. The Company’s credit risk 
is generally low with a large number of entities comprising 
Rollins’ customer base and dispersion across many different 
geographical regions.

Part II  
Item 8. — Financial Statements and Supplementary Data



51Rollins, Inc.  2022 ANNUAL REPORT   |

The Company manages its financing receivables on an 
aggregate basis when assessing and monitoring credit risks. 
The Company’s established credit evaluation and monitoring 
procedures seek to minimize the amount of business we 
conduct with higher risk customers. The credit quality of a 
potential obligor is evaluated at the loan origination based on 
an assessment of the individual’s Beacon/credit bureau score. 
Rollins requires a potential obligor to have good creditworthiness 
with low risk before entering into a contract. Depending upon the 
individual’s credit score, the Company may accept with 100% 
financing or require a significant down payment or turn down the 
contract. Delinquencies of accounts are monitored each month. 
Financing receivables include installment receivable amounts, 
some of which are due subsequent to one year from the balance 
sheet dates.

Total financing receivables, net were $97.1 million and  
$73.2 million at December 31, 2022 and December 31, 2021, 
respectively. Financing receivables are generally charged-off 
when deemed uncollectable or when 180 days have elapsed 
since the date of the last full contractual payment. The 
Company’s charge-off policy has been consistently applied 
during the periods reported. Management considers the charge-
off policy when evaluating the appropriateness of the allowance 
for expected credit losses. Gross charge-offs as a percentage 
of average financing receivables were 5.6% and 4.3% for the 
twelve months ended December 31, 2022 and December 
31, 2021, respectively. Due to the low percentage of charge-
off receivables and the high creditworthiness of the potential 
obligors, the Rollins, Inc. financing receivables portfolio has a 
low credit risk.

The Company offers 90 days same-as-cash financing to some 
customers based on their creditworthiness. Interest is not 
recognized until the 91st day at which time it is calculated 
retrospectively back to the first day if the contract has not been 

paid in full. In certain circumstances, such as when delinquency 
is deemed to be of an administrative nature, accounts may  
still accrue interest when they reach 180 days past due. As  
of December 31, 2022, there were no accounts greater than  
180 days past due.

Included in financing receivables are notes receivable from 
franchise owners. The majority of these notes are low risk 
as the repurchase of these franchises is guaranteed by the 
Company’s wholly-owned subsidiary, Orkin Systems, LLC, and 
the repurchase price of the franchise is currently estimated and 
has historically been well above the receivable due from the 
franchise owner. Also included in notes receivables are franchise 
notes from other brands which are not guaranteed and do not 
have the same historical valuation.

The carrying amount of notes receivable approximates fair value  
as the interest rates approximate market rates for these types  
of contracts. Long-term installment receivables, net were  
$63.5 million and $47.1 million at December 31, 2022 and 2021, 
respectively.

The Company’s allowances for credit losses for trade accounts 
receivable and financed receivables are developed using historical 
collection experience, current economic and market conditions, 
reasonable and supportable forecasts, and a review of the current 
status of customers’ receivables. The Company’s receivable 
pools are classified between residential customers, commercial 
customers, large commercial customers, and financed 
receivables. Accounts are written off against the allowance for 
credit losses when the Company determines that amounts are 
uncollectible, and recoveries of amounts previously written off are 
recorded when collected. The Company stops accruing interest to 
these receivables when they are deemed uncollectible. Below is 
a roll forward of the Company’s allowance for credit losses for the 
years ended December 31, 2022, 2021 and 2020.

Allowance for Credit Losses

(in thousands)
Trade 

Receivables
Financed 

Receivables
Total 

Receivables

Balance at December 31, 2019 $ 16,699 $ 2,959 $ 19,658
Adoption of ASC 326  (3,330)  —  (3,330)
Provision for expected credit losses  14,699  2,837  17,536
Write-offs charged against the allowance  (18,228)  (2,565)  (20,793)
Recoveries collected  7,014  —  7,014
Balance at December 31, 2020 $ 16,854 $ 3,231 $ 20,085
Provision for expected credit losses  11,732  3,553  15,285
Write-offs charged against the allowance  (19,882)  (2,799)  (22,681)
Recoveries collected  5,181  —  5,181
Balance at December 31, 2021 $ 13,885 $ 3,985 $ 17,870
Provision for expected credit losses  13,701  5,740  19,441
Write-offs charged against the allowance  (18,861)  (4,757)  (23,618)
Recoveries collected  5,348  —  5,348
Balance at December 31, 2022 $ 14,073 $ 4,968 $ 19,041
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The following is a summary of the past due financing receivables:

At December 31, 2022 2021
(in thousands)
30-59 days past due $      4,269 $      1,911
60-89 days past due  1,913  1,058
90 days or more past due  3,781  2,886
Total $      9,963 $      5,855

The following is a summary of percentage of gross financing 
receivables:

At December 31, 2022 2021
Current  90.2%  91.7%

30-59 days past due  4.2%  2.7%
60-89 days past due  1.9%  1.5%
90 days or more past due  3.7%  4.1%
Total  100.0%  100.0%

5.   EQUIPMENT AND PROPERTY, NET
Equipment and property are presented at cost less accumulated 
depreciation and are detailed as follows:

December 31, 2022 2021
(in thousands)

Buildings $    51,223 $    54,935
Operating equipment  132,411  126,732
Furniture and fixtures  20,389  19,261
Computer equipment and systems  233,108  223,648
  437,131  424,576
Less: accumulated depreciation  (333,298)  (315,891)
  103,833  108,685
Land  24,213  24,572
Equipment and property, net $ 128,046 $ 133,257

Included in computer equipment and systems at December 31,  
2022 and 2021, are costs for internal use software of  
$147.1 million and $143.5 million, respectively. The  
related accumulated depreciation was $117.3 million and  
$105.3 million at December 31, 2022 and 2021, respectively.

Included in equipment and property, net at December 31,  
2022 and 2021, are fixed assets held in foreign countries  
of $9.5 million, and $8.4 million, respectively.

Total depreciation expense was approximately $35.6 million  
in 2022, $40.6 million in 2021 and $40.6 million in 2020.

6.   LEASES
The Company leases certain buildings, vehicles, and equipment 
in order to reduce the risk associated with ownership. The 
Company elected the practical expedient approach permitted 
under ASC Topic 842, “Leases” not to include short-term leases 
with a duration of 12 months or less on the balance sheet. As 
of December 31, 2022 and 2021, all leases were classified as 
operating leases. Building leases generally carry terms of 5 to 
10 years with annual rent escalations at fixed amounts per the 
lease. Vehicle leases generally carry a fixed term of one year with 
renewal options to extend the lease on a monthly basis resulting 
in lease terms up to 7 years depending on the class of vehicle. The 
exercise of renewal options is at the Company’s sole discretion. It 
is reasonably certain that the Company will exercise the renewal 
options on its vehicle leases. The measurement of right-of-use 
assets and liabilities for vehicle leases includes the fixed payments 
associated with such renewal periods. We separate lease and 
non-lease components of contracts. Our lease agreements do not 
contain any material variable payments, residual value guarantees, 
early termination penalties or restrictive covenants.

During the year ended December 31, 2021, the Company 
completed multiple sale-leaseback transactions where it sold  
17 of its properties related to the Clark Pest Control acquisition  
for gross proceeds of $67.0 million and a pre-tax gain of  
$31.5 million, which is included in Other (income) expense, net 
on the income statement. These leases are classified as operating 
leases with terms of 7 to 15 years.

The Company uses the rate implicit in the lease when available; however, most of our leases do not provide a readily determinable implicit 
rate. Accordingly, we estimate our incremental borrowing rate based on information available at lease commencement.

(in thousands, except Other Information) Year Ended December 31,

Lease Classification Financial Statement Classification 2022 2021

Short-term lease cost Cost of services provided, Sales,  
general, and administrative expenses $       129 $       235

Operating lease cost Cost of services provided, Sales,  
general, and administrative expenses  97,764  93,215

Total lease expense  97,893  93,450
Other Information:     
  Weighted-average remaining lease term – operating leases 5.1 years 5.5 years
  Weighted-average discount rate – operating leases  3.67%  3.63%
Cash paid for amounts included in the measurement of  
lease liabilities:
  Operating cash flows for operating leases $ 96,700 $ 92,032
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Lease Commitments
Future minimum lease payments, including assumed exercise of 
renewal options at December 31, 2022 were as follows:

(in thousands) Operating

2023  93,779

2024  70,739

2025  52,123

2026  32,551

2027  16,124

Thereafter  49,943

Total Future Minimum Lease Payments  315,259

Less: Amount representing interest  (33,828)
Total future minimum lease payments,  
net of interest $ 281,431

Future commitments presented in the table above include 
lease payments in renewal periods for which it is reasonably 
certain that the Company will exercise the renewal option. 
Total future minimum lease payments for operating leases, 
including the amount representing interest, are comprised of 
$163.2 million for building leases and $152.1 million for vehicle 
leases. As of December 31, 2022, the Company had additional 
future obligations of $9.5 million for leases that had not yet 
commenced. 

7.   GOODWILL
Goodwill represents the excess of the purchase price over the 
fair value of net assets of businesses acquired. The carrying 
amount of goodwill was $846.7 million as of December 31, 
2022 and $786.5 million as of December 31, 2021. Goodwill 
increased for the year ended December 31, 2022 primarily 
due to acquisitions. The carrying amount of goodwill in foreign 
countries was $97.4 million as of December 31, 2022 and  
$82.1 million as of December 31, 2021.

The changes in the carrying amount of goodwill for the twelve 
months ended December 31, 2022 and 2021 were as follows:

Goodwill:

Balance at December 31, 2020 $ 717,861

Additions  69,264

Adjustments due to currency translation  (621)

Balance at December 31, 2021  786,504

Additions  64,997

Measurement adjustments  (9)

Adjustments due to currency translation  (4,788)

Balance at December 31, 2022 $ 846,704

The carrying amount of goodwill as of December 31, 2021 
and 2020 reflects the adjustment of $64,685 to correct 
prior periods. See Note 1, Basis of Presentation, for further 
information on the prior period adjustments recorded.

8.   CUSTOMER CONTRACTS, TRADENAMES 
AND TRADEMARKS, AND OTHER 
INTANGIBLE ASSETS
Customer contracts are amortized on a straight-line basis as 
this best approximates the ratio that current revenues bear 
to the total of current and anticipated revenues based on the 
estimated lives of the assets. In accordance with the FASB ASC 
Topic 350 “Intangibles – Goodwill and other”, the expected lives 
of customer contracts were analyzed, and it was determined that 
customer contracts should be amortized over a life of 7 to 20 
years dependent upon customer type.

The carrying amount and accumulated amortization for 
customer contracts were as follows:

December 31, 2022 2021 
(in thousands)

Customer contracts $ 502,689 $ 479,294
Less: accumulated amortization  (204,130)  (177,380)
Customer contracts, net $ 298,559 $ 301,914

The carrying amount of customer contracts as of December 31, 
2021 reflects the impact of adjustments to correct prior periods. 
See Note 1, Basis of Presentation, for further information on the 
prior period adjustments recorded. The net carrying amount of 
customer contracts in foreign countries was $46.1 million as of 
December 31, 2022 and $42.1 million as of December 31, 2021.

Trademarks and tradenames are amortized on a straight-line 
basis over the period of their useful lives. The Company has 
determined these assets have useful lives between 7 and  
20 years with non-amortizable, indefinite-lived tradenames of 
$104.3 million and $102.7 million as of December 31, 2022 and 
2021, respectively.

The carrying amount and accumulated amortization for 
trademarks and tradenames were as follows:

December 31, 2022 2021 
(in thousands)

Trademarks and tradenames $ 121,655 $ 115,468
Less: accumulated amortization  (10,009)  (6,492)
Trademarks and tradenames, net $ 111,646 $ 108,976

The net carrying amount of trademarks and tradenames in 
foreign countries was $4.2 million as of December 31, 2022 and 
$2.9 million as of December 31, 2021.

Other intangible assets include non-compete agreements and 
patents. Non-compete agreements are amortized on a straight-
line basis over periods ranging from 3 to 20 years and patents 
are amortized on a straight-line basis over 15 years.
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The carrying amount and accumulated amortization for other 
intangible assets were as follows:

December 31, 2022 2021 
(in thousands)

Other intangible assets   $  25,357 $  24,448
Less: accumulated amortization   (16,814)  (12,769)
Other intangible assets, net $     8,543 $  11,679

The net carrying amount of other intangible assets in foreign 
countries was $0.7 million as of December 31, 2022 and 2021.

Included in the table above are non-amortizable, indefinite-lived 
Internet domain names of $2.2 million at December 31, 2022 
and 2021, respectively.

Total amortization expense was approximately $55.7 million in 
2022, $46.0 million in 2021 and $38.7 million in 2020.

Estimated amortization expense for the existing carrying amount 
of customer contracts and other intangible assets for each of the 
five succeeding fiscal years are as follows:

(in thousands)

2023 $  59,281
2024 $  55,950
2025 $  47,140
2026 $  43,622
2027 $  39,958

9.   FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT
The Company’s financial instruments consist of cash and cash 
equivalents, trade receivables, financed and notes receivable, 
accounts payable, other short-term liabilities, and debt. The 
carrying amounts of these financial instruments approximate 
their respective fair values. The Company also has derivative 
instruments as discussed in Note 11 and financial instruments 
related to its defined benefit pension plan and deferred 
compensation plan detailed in Note 12.

The fair value hierarchy has three levels based on the reliability 
of the inputs used to determine fair value. Level 1 refers to fair 
values determined based on quoted prices in active markets 
for identical assets. Level 2 refers to fair values estimated using 
significant other observable inputs, and Level 3 includes fair 
values estimated using significant non-observable inputs.

As of December 31, 2022 and 2021, the Company had investments 
in international bonds of $10.7 million and $12.6 million, 
respectively. These bonds are accounted for as available for sale 
securities and are level 2 assets under the fair value hierarchy. 
At December 31, 2021, the entire investment was recorded in 
other current assets. Management reassessed their intentions 
on the investment and at December 31, 2022, $0.5 million was 
included in other current assets and $10.2 million was included 
in other assets. The bonds are recorded at fair market value with 
unrealized losses of $1.0 million included in other comprehensive 
income during the year ended December 31, 2022. 

At December 31, 2022 and 2021, respectively, the Company 
had $13.5 million and $25.2 million of acquisition holdback 
and earnout liabilities with the former owners of acquired 
companies. Acquisition earnouts are generally earned by 
achieving certain levels of revenue growth while maintaining 
certain profit margins. The earnout liabilities are discounted to 
reflect the expected probability of payout, and both earnout and 
holdback liabilities are discounted to their net present value on 
the Company’s books and are considered Level 3 liabilities.

The table below presents a summary of the changes in fair value 
for these liabilities.

(in thousands)

Acquisition holdback and earnout  
liabilities at December 31, 2020 $      35,744

  New acquisitions  14,516

  Payouts  (22,809)

  Interest on outstanding contingencies  855

  Charge offset, forfeit and other  (3,150)
Acquisition holdback and earnout liabilities 
at December 31, 2021  25,156

  New acquisitions  10,178

  Payouts  (17,334)

  Interest on outstanding contingencies  398

  Charge offset, forfeit and other  (4,902)
Acquisition holdback and earnout liabilities 
at December 31, 2022 $      13,496

10.   DEBT
In April 2019, the Company entered into a Revolving Credit 
Agreement with Truist Bank N.A. (formerly SunTrust Bank N.A.) 
and Bank of America, N.A. (the “2019 Credit Agreement”) for an 
unsecured revolving commitment of up to $175.0 million, which 
includes a $75.0 million letter of credit subfacility and a  
$25.0 million swingline subfacility (the “Revolving 
Commitment”), and an unsecured variable rate $250.0 
million term loan (the “Term Loan”). On January 27, 2022, the 
Company entered into an amendment (the “Amendment”) to 
the Credit Agreement with Truist Bank and Bank of America, 
N.A. whereby additional term loans in an aggregate principal 
amount of $252.0 million were advanced to the Company. The 
Amendment also replaced LIBOR as the benchmark interest 
rate for borrowings with the Bloomberg Short-Term Bank Yield 
Index rate (“BSBY”) and reset the amortization schedule for 
all term loans under the Credit Agreement. The maturity of all 
loans made under the Credit Agreement prior to the Amendment 
remains unchanged at April 29, 2024 and all other terms of the 
Credit Agreement remain unchanged in all material respects. 
In addition, the Credit Agreement has provisions to extend the 
term of the Revolving Commitment beyond April 29, 2024, as 
well as the right at any time and from time to time to prepay 
any borrowing under the Credit Agreement, in whole or in part, 
without premium or penalty. 
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As of December 31, 2022, the Company had outstanding 
borrowings of $54.9 million under the Term Loan and there were 
no outstanding borrowings under the Revolving Commitment. 
The aggregate effective interest rate on the debt outstanding 
as of December 31, 2022 was 5.123%. The effective interest 
rate is comprised of the BSBY plus a margin of 75.0 basis points 
as determined by the Company’s leverage ratio calculation. 
As of December 31, 2021, the Revolving Commitment had 
outstanding borrowings of $107.0 million and the Term Loan 
had outstanding borrowings of $48.0 million with an effective 
interest rate of 0.85%. 

The Company maintains approximately $71.3 million in letters 
of credit as of December 31, 2022. These letters of credit 
are required by the Company’s insurance companies, due to 
the Company’s high deductible insurance program, to secure 
various workers’ compensation and casualty insurance contracts 
coverage and were increased from $37.2 million as of December 
31, 2021. The Company believes that it has adequate liquid 
assets, funding sources and insurance accruals to accommodate 
potential future insurance claims.

In order to comply with applicable debt covenants, the Company 
is required to maintain at all times a leverage ratio of not greater 
than 3.00:1.00. The leverage ratio is calculated as of the last 
day of the fiscal quarter most recently ended. The Company 
remained in compliance with applicable debt covenants at 
December 31, 2022.

11.   DERIVATIVE INSTRUMENTS  
AND HEDGING ACTIVITIES
Risk Management Objective of Using Derivatives
The Company is exposed to certain interest rate risks on 
our outstanding debt and foreign currency risks arising from 
our international business operations and global economic 
conditions. The Company enters into certain derivative financial 
instruments to lock in certain interest rates, as well as to protect 
the value or fix the amount of certain obligations in terms of its 
functional currency, the U.S. dollar.

Cash Flow Hedges of Interest Rate Risk
The Company uses interest rate swap arrangements to manage 
or hedge its interest rate risk. Notwithstanding the terms of the 
swaps, the Company is ultimately obligated for all amounts due 
and payable under the Credit Facility. The Company does not use 
interest rate swaps for speculative or trading purposes.

On June 19, 2019, the Company entered into a floating-to- 
fixed interest rate swap for an aggregate notional amount of  
$100.0 million in order to hedge a portion of the Company’s 
floating rate indebtedness under the Credit Facility. The 
Company designated the swap as a cash flow hedge. The swap 
required the Company to pay a fixed rate of 1.94% per annum on 
the notional amount. The cash flows from the swap began June 
30, 2019 and ended on December 31, 2021. Realized gains and 
losses in connection with each required interest payment were 
reclassified from Accumulated other comprehensive income 
(“AOCI”) to interest expense during the period of the cash flows. 
During 2021 and 2020, $0.4 million and $0.7 million  
was reclassified into interest expense. 

Hedges of Foreign Exchange Risk
The Company is exposed to fluctuations in various foreign 
currencies against its functional currency, the US dollar. We 
use foreign currency derivatives, specifically foreign currency 
forward contracts (“FX Forwards”), to manage our exposure to 
fluctuations in the USD-CAD and USD-AUD exchange rates. FX 
Forwards involve fixing the foreign currency exchange rate for 
delivery of a specified amount of foreign currency on a specified 
date. The FX Forwards are typically settled in US dollars for their 
fair value at or close to their settlement date. We do not currently 
designate any of these FX Forwards under hedge accounting, 
but rather reflect the changes in fair value immediately in 
earnings. We do not use such instruments for speculative or 
trading purposes, but rather use them to manage our exposure 
to foreign exchange rates. Changes in the fair value of FX 
Forwards are recorded in other income/expense and were equal 
to net income of $1.1 million for the twelve months December 
31, 2022, and net losses of $0.4 million for each of the twelve 
months ended December 31, 2021 and 2020. The fair values of 
the Company’s FX Forwards were recorded as a net asset of  
$0.3 million in Other Current Assets as of December 31, 2022 
and a net obligation of $0.05 million in Other Current Liabilities 
as of December 31, 2021.

As of December 31, 2022, the Company had the following 
outstanding FX Forwards (in thousands except for number of 
instruments):

FX Forward Contracts
Number of  

Instruments
Sell 

Notional
Buy 

Notional
Sell AUD/Buy USD  
Fwd Contract 20 $   2,700 $    1,888

Sell CAD/Buy USD  
Fwd Contract 20 $ 20,000 15,264

Total 40 $ 17,152

The financial statement impact related to these derivative 
instruments was insignificant for the years ended December 31, 
2022, 2021, and 2019, respectively.

12.   EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLANS
Defined Benefit Pension Plans
The Company has sponsored noncontributory tax-qualified 
defined benefit pension plans covering employees meeting 
certain age and service requirements, the most significant of 
which was the Rollins, Inc. Plan, which was terminated in 2018. 
The Company funds its plans with at least the minimum amount 
required by ERISA.

Waltham Services, LLC Hourly Employee Pension Plan  
(the “Waltham Plan”)
The Company sponsors the Waltham Plan, which covers less 
than 80 participants as of December 31, 2022. The Waltham 
Plan was amended, effective September 1, 2018, to freeze 
future benefit accruals for all participants. The Company 
accounts for all defined benefit plans in accordance with the 
FASB ASC Topic 715 “Compensation Retirement Benefits,” and 
engages an outside actuary to calculate obligations and costs. 
With the assistance of the actuary, the Company evaluates the 
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significant assumptions used on a periodic basis, including the 
estimated future return on plan assets, the discount rate, and 
other factors, and makes adjustments to these liabilities as 
necessary. As of December 31, 2022, the fair value of Waltham 
Plan assets were $1.2 million, with a projected liability of $1.9 
million and an unfunded status of $0.7 million. At December 31, 
2022 the plan’s assets were comprised of listed common stocks 
and U.S government and corporate securities and are classified 
as Level 1 and Level 2 in the fair value hierarchy.

Defined Contribution 401(k) Savings Plan
The Company sponsors a defined contribution 401(k) Savings 
Plan (“the Plan”) that is available to a majority of the Company’s 
full-time employees the first day of the calendar quarter following 
completion of three months of service. The Plan is available to 
non-full-time employees the first day of the calendar quarter 
following one year of service upon completion of 1,000 hours 
in that year. The Plan provides for a matching contribution of 
one dollar ($1.00) for each one dollar ($1.00) of a participant’s 
contributions to the Plan that do not exceed 3 percent of his or her 
eligible compensation (which includes commissions, overtime, 
and bonuses) and fifty cents ($0.50) for each one dollar ($1.00) of 
a participant’s contributions to the Plan over the initial 3 percent 
that do not exceed 6 percent of his or her eligible compensation 
(which includes commissions, overtime and bonuses). The charge 
to expense for the Company match was approximately  
$29.9 million, $25.7 million and $27.4 million for the years ended 
December 31, 2022, 2021 and 2020, respectively. At December 
31, 2022, 2021, and 2020 approximately, 30.6%, 28.7%, and 
34.9%, respectively, of the plan assets consisted of Rollins, Inc. 
common stock. Total administrative fees paid by the Company for 
the Plan were less than $0.1 million for each of the years ended 
December 31, 2022, 2021 and 2020.

Nonqualified Deferred Compensation Plan
The Deferred Compensation Plan provides that participants 
may defer up to 50% of their base salary and up to 85% of their 
annual bonus with respect to any given plan year, subject to a 
$2 thousand per plan year minimum. The Company may make 

discretionary contributions to participant accounts but has not 
done so since 2011.

Accounts will be credited with hypothetical earnings, and/or 
debited with hypothetical losses, based on the performance of 
certain “Measurement Funds.” Account values are calculated 
as if the funds from deferrals and Company credits had been 
converted into shares or other ownership units of selected 
Measurement Funds by purchasing (or selling, where relevant) 
such shares or units at the current purchase price of the 
relevant Measurement Fund at the time of the participant’s 
selection. Deferred Compensation Plan benefits are unsecured 
general obligations of the Company to the participants, and 
these obligations rank in parity with the Company’s other 
unsecured and unsubordinated indebtedness. The Company 
has established a “rabbi trust,” which it uses to voluntarily set 
aside amounts to indirectly fund any obligations under the 
Deferred Compensation Plan. To the extent that the Company’s 
obligations under the Deferred Compensation Plan exceed 
assets available under the trust, the Company would be required 
to seek additional funding sources to fund its liability under the 
Deferred Compensation Plan.

Generally, the Deferred Compensation Plan provides for 
distributions of any deferred amounts upon the earliest to 
occur of a participant’s death, disability, retirement or other 
termination of employment (a “Termination Event”). However, 
for any deferrals of salary and bonus (but not Company 
contributions), participants would be entitled to designate a 
distribution date which is prior to a Termination Event. Generally, 
the Deferred Compensation Plan allows a participant to elect to 
receive distributions under the Deferred Compensation Plan in 
installments or lump-sum payments.

At December 31, 2022, the Deferred Compensation Plan had 
75 life insurance policies with a net face value of $45.8 million 
compared to 75 policies with a face value of $53.1 million at 
December 31, 2021. The cash surrender value of these life 
insurance policies was $23.2 million and $27.2 million at 
December 31, 2022 and 2021, respectively. These policies are 
valued using the NAV practical expedient.

The following table presents our non-qualified deferred compensation plan assets using the fair value hierarchy as of December 31, 
2022 and 2021.

(in thousands) Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 NAV Total

December 31, 2022 $ 25 $ — $ — $ 23,246 $ 23,271

December 31, 2021 $ 25 $ — $ — $ 27,211 $ 27,236

Cash and cash equivalents, which are used to pay benefits and 
deferred compensation plan administrative expenses, are held 
in money market funds.

Total expense related to deferred compensation was $1.1 
million, $0.3 million, and $0.3 million in 2022, 2021, and 
2020, respectively. The Company had $23.3 million and $27.2 
million in deferred compensation assets as of December 31, 
2022 and 2021, respectively, included within other assets on 

the Company’s consolidated statements of financial position 
and $19.0 million and $23.6 million in deferred compensation 
liability as of December 31, 2022 and 2021, respectively, 
located within other current liabilities and long-term accrued 
liabilities on the Company’s consolidated statements of financial 
position. The amounts of assets were marked to fair value.
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13.   COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
In the normal course of business, the Company and its 
subsidiaries are involved in, and will continue to be involved in, 
various claims, arbitrations, contractual disputes, investigations, 
and regulatory and litigation matters relating to, and arising 
out of, our businesses and our operations. These matters may 
involve, but are not limited to, allegations that our services 
or vehicles caused damage or injury, claims that our services 
did not achieve the desired results, and claims related to 
acquisitions and allegations by federal, state or local authorities 
of violations of regulations or statutes. In addition, we are parties 
to employment-related cases and claims from time to time, 
which may include claims on a representative or class action 
basis alleging wage and hour law violations. We are also involved 
from time to time in certain environmental matters primarily 
arising in the normal course of business. We evaluate pending 
and threatened claims and establish loss contingency reserves 
based upon outcomes we currently believe to be probable and 
reasonably estimable in accordance with ASC 450. 

The Company retains, up to specified limits, certain risks related 
to general liability, workers’ compensation and auto liability. The 
estimated costs of existing and future claims under the retained 
loss program are accrued based upon historical trends as 
incidents occur, whether reported or unreported (although actual 
settlement of the claims may not be made until future periods) 
and may be subsequently revised based on developments 
relating to such claims. The Company contracts with an 
independent third party to provide the Company an estimated 
liability based upon historical claims information. The actuarial 
study is a major consideration in establishing the reserve, 
along with management’s knowledge of changes in business 
practice and existing claims compared to current balances. 
Management’s judgment is inherently subjective as a number 
of factors are outside management’s knowledge and control. 
Additionally, historical information is not always an accurate 
indication of future events. The accruals and reserves we hold 
are based on estimates that involve a degree of judgment 
and are inherently variable and could be overestimated or 
insufficient. If actual claims exceed our estimates, our operating 
results could be materially affected, and our ability to take timely 
corrective actions to limit future costs may be limited.

Management does not believe that any pending claim, 
proceeding or litigation, regulatory action or investigation, either 
alone or in the aggregate, will have a material adverse effect 
on the Company’s financial position, results of operations or 
liquidity; however, it is possible that an unfavorable outcome of 
some or all of the matters could result in a charge that might be 
material to the results of an individual quarter or year.

14.   STOCK-BASED COMPENSATION
Stock Compensation Plans
Time-Lapse Restricted Shares and Restricted Stock Units
Time-lapse restricted awards and restricted stock units 
(“restricted shares”) have been issued to officers and other 
employees under the Company’s Employee Stock Incentive 
Plan. The Company recognizes compensation expense for the 
unvested portion of awards outstanding over the remainder of 
the service period. The compensation cost recorded for these 
awards is based on their closing stock price at the grant date 
less the cost of estimated forfeitures. Forfeitures are estimated 
at the time of grant and revised, if necessary, in subsequent 
periods to reflect actual forfeitures.

Restricted shares provide for the issuance of a share of the 
Company’s common stock at no cost to the holder and generally 
vest after a certain stipulated number of years from the grant date, 
depending on the terms of the issue. The 2022 grant of restricted 
shares vest in 20 percent increments over five years from the 
date of grant. Prior grants vest over six years from the date of 
grant. In some cases, the Company may issue restricted shares 
that vest in greater increments over a shorter period of time. 
During these years, grantees receive all dividends declared and 
retain voting rights for the granted shares. The agreements under 
which the one-time grant of restricted stock is issued provide that 
shares awarded may not be sold or otherwise transferred until 
restrictions established under the plans have lapsed.

The Company issued time lapse restricted shares of 0.9 million, 
0.8 million, and 0.9 million for the years ended December 31, 
2022, 2021, and 2020, respectively.

The Company issues new shares from its authorized but unissued  
share pool. At December 31, 2022, approximately 5.9 million 
shares of the Company’s common stock were reserved for  
issuance. In accordance with the FASB ASC Topic 718, 
“Compensation – Stock Compensation,” the Company recognizes 
the fair value of the award on a straight-line basis over the service 
periods of each award. The Company estimates restricted share 
employee forfeiture rates based on its historical experience.

The following table summarizes the components of the 
Company’s stock-based compensation programs recorded as 
expense ($ in thousands):

(in thousands) 2022 2021 2020
Restricted shares:
Pre-tax compensation  
expense $ 20,816 $ 14,865 $ 20,850

  Tax benefit  (4,660)  (3,208)  (3,752)
Restricted share expense,  
net of tax $ 16,156 $ 11,657 $ 17,098

As of December 31, 2022 and 2021, $52.3 million and  
$49.8 million, respectively, of total unrecognized compensation 
cost related to time-lapse restricted shares are expected to be 
recognized over a weighted average period of approximately 
3.5 years and 4.0 years at December 31, 2022 and 2021, 
respectively. 
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The following table summarizes information on unvested restricted shares outstanding as of December 31, 2022, 2021 and 2020.

Number of 
Shares 

(in thousands)

Weighted-Average 
Grant-Date Fair 

Value

Unvested as of December 31, 2019  3,465 $ 17.23
  Forfeited  (59)  17.11
  Vested  (1,397)  15.29
  Granted  861  24.53
Unvested as of December 31, 2020  2,870 $ 20.36
  Forfeited  (191)  25.34
  Vested  (861)  16.67
  Granted  778  37.04
Unvested as of December 31, 2021  2,596 $ 26.16
  Forfeited  (90)  26.37
  Vested  (675)  19.99
  Granted  854  30.12
Unvested as of December 31, 2022  2,685 $ 28.97

Employee Stock Purchase Plan
On April 26, 2022, shareholders approved the Rollins, Inc. 
2022 Employee Stock Purchase Plan (“ESPP”) which provides 
eligible employees with the option to purchase shares of 
Company common stock, at a discount, through payroll 
deductions. Initially, a maximum of 1,000,000 shares of 
the Company’s common stock are authorized for issuance 
under the ESPP. Under the ESPP, shares of common stock 
may be purchased by eligible participants during defined 

purchase periods at 90% of the lesser of the closing price of 
the Company’s common stock on the first day or last day of 
each purchase period. The first purchase period for the ESPP 
began on July 1, 2022 and ended on December 30, 2022. 
The Company recorded compensation expense of $0.4 million 
associated with the purchase period which is included in cost 
of services provided and sales, general and administrative 
expenses for the year ended December 31, 2022.

15.   ACCUMULATED OTHER COMPREHENSIVE LOSS
Accumulated other comprehensive loss consists of the following (in thousands):

Pension  
Liability 

Adjustment

Foreign  
Currency 

Translation
Interest  

Rate Swaps
Available for  

Sale Securities Total

Balance at December 31, 2019 $ (195) $ (20,637) $   (277) $       — $ (21,109)
  Change during 2020:           

  Before-tax amount  (173)  10,443  (141)  —  10,129

  Tax benefit  46  —  37  —  83
Other comprehensive (loss) income  (127)  10,443  (104)  —  10,212
Balance at December 31, 2020  (322)  (10,194)  (381)  —  (10,897)
  Change during 2021:          —
  Before-tax amount  —  (5,895)  516  —  (5,379)
  Tax expense  —  —  (135)  —  (135)
Other comprehensive (loss) income  —  (5,895)  381  —  (5,514)

Balance at December 31, 2021  (322)  (16,089)  —  —  (16,411)

  Change during 2022:          —

  Before-tax amount  —  (14,215)  —  (936)  (15,151)
Other comprehensive loss  —  (14,215)  —  (936)  (15,151)
Balance at December 31, 2022 $ (322) $ (30,304) $         — $ (936) $ (31,562)
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16.   INCOME TAXES
The Company’s income tax provision consisted of the following:

For the years ended  
December 31, 2022 2021 2020
(in thousands)
Current:
  Federal $   92,793 $    87,888 $ 67,861
  State  26,786  24,131  18,381
  Foreign  9,144  10,480  8,869
    Total current tax  128,723  122,499  95,111
Deferred:       
  Federal  (333)  1,735  (12)
  State  2,011  1,795  312
  Foreign  (83)  (109)  549
    Total deferred tax  1,595  3,421  849
Total income tax provision $ 130,318 $ 125,920 $ 95,960

The primary factors causing income tax expense to be different 
than the federal statutory rate for 2022, 2021 and 2020 are  
as follows:

For the years ended 
December 31, 2022 2021 2020
(in thousands)
Income tax at  
statutory rate $ 104,773 $ 101,485 $ 76,555
 � State income tax  

expense (net of  
federal benefit)  20,560  19,135  14,393

  Foreign tax expense  1,907  2,837  2,341
  Foreign tax credit  (292)  (273)  (240)
  Executive  
  compensation  2,281  2,786  5,557
  Restricted stock  
  adjustments  (1,422)  (3,468)  (3,927)
  Other  2,511  3,418  1,281
Total income tax provision $ 130,318 $ 125,920 $ 95,960

Other includes the release of deferred tax liabilities, tax 
credits, valuation allowance, disallowed deductions, and other 
immaterial adjustments.

The provision for income taxes resulted in effective tax rates 
of 26.1%, 26.1% and 26.5% on income before income taxes 
for the years ended December 31, 2022, 2021 and 2020, 
respectively. The effective rates differ from the annual federal 
statutory rate primarily because of state and foreign income 
taxes and certain other disallowed deductions.

During 2022, 2021 and 2020, the Company paid income taxes 
of $119.6 million, $119.8 million and $81.2 million, respectively, 
net of refunds.

Deferred income taxes reflect the net tax effects of the temporary 
differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities 
for financial reporting purposes and income tax purposes. 
Significant components of the Company’s deferred tax assets and 

liabilities at December 31, 2022 and 2021 are as follows:

December 31, 2022 2021 
(in thousands)

Deferred tax assets:
  Insurance and contingencies $   21,695 $  18,258
  Unearned revenues  12,930  12,051
  Compensation and benefits  14,528  13,546
  State and foreign operating loss  
  carryforwards  —  1,234
  Bad debt reserve  4,301  3,873
  Foreign tax credit  3,562  4,775
  Termite accrual  813  642
  Net pension liability  169  195
  Other  1,648  3,371
  Valuation allowance  —  (192)
    Total deferred tax assets  59,646  57,753
Deferred tax liabilities:     
  Depreciation and amortization  (22,663)  (24,261)
  Intangibles and other  (59,346)  (55,300)
    Total deferred tax liabilities $ (82,009) $ (79,561)
Net deferred taxes     
  Deferred tax assets $     1,792 $     2,948
  Deferred tax liabilities $ (24,154) $ (24,757)

Deferred tax assets are included in Other assets and deferred tax 
liabilities are included in Other long-term accrued liabilities on 
the balance sheet.

Analysis of the valuation allowance:

December 31, 2022 2021
(in thousands)
Valuation allowance at beginning 
of year $         192 $         144
  (Decrease) increase in valuation  
  allowance  (192)  48
Valuation allowance at end of year $              — $         192

As of December 31, 2022, the Company has net operating 
loss carryforwards for foreign and state income tax purposes 
of approximately $22.9 million, which are expected to be fully 
utilized when filing the 2022 income tax returns. If not used, 
these carryforwards will expire between 2022 and 2032. Because 
management believes that the loss carryforwards will be fully 
utilized, the valuation allowance decreased by $0.2 million due to 
the dissolution of the foreign subsidiary carrying the losses. The 
Company has a foreign tax credit carryforward of $3.6 million 
which if not fully utilized will expire in 2028.

Earnings from continuing operations before income tax included 
foreign income of $32.9 million in 2022, $32.5 million in 
2021 and $25.3 million in 2020. The Company’s international 
business is expanding, and we intend to continue to grow the 
business in foreign markets in the future through reinvestment 
of foreign deposits and future earnings as well as acquisition of 
unrelated companies. The Company has historically asserted 
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that the undistributed earnings of our foreign subsidiaries are 
permanently reinvested. However, in the fourth quarter of 2022, 
the Company has partially changed this assertion and expects 
to repatriate unremitted foreign earnings from our foreign 
subsidiaries. The Company asserts that we continue to be 
permanently reinvested with respect to our investments in our 
foreign subsidiaries.

The total amount of unrecognized tax benefits at December 31,  
2022 that, if recognized, would affect the effective tax rate 
is $1.4 million. A reconciliation of the beginning and ending 
amount of unrecognized tax benefits is as follows:

December 31, 2022 2021
(in thousands)
Unrecognized tax benefits 
at beginning of year $ 1,018 $    844
 � Additions for tax positions of 

prior years  376  174
  Unrecognized tax benefits  
  at end of year $ 1,394 $ 1,018

The Company and its subsidiaries are subject to U.S. federal 
income tax as well as income tax of multiple state and foreign 
jurisdictions. The Company’s material foreign jurisdictions 
include Canada, the United Kingdom and Australia. In addition, 
the Company has subsidiaries in various state and international 
jurisdictions that are currently under audit for years ranging from 
2016 through 2020. With few immaterial exceptions, we are 
no longer subject to U.S. federal, state and local, or non-U.S., 
income tax examinations for years prior to 2016.

It is reasonably possible that the amount of unrecognized tax 
benefits will decrease in the next 12 months.

The Company’s policy is to record interest and penalties related 
to income tax matters in income tax expense. Accrued interest 
and penalties were $0.2 million, $0.2 million and $0.7 million as 
of December 31, 2022, 2021 and 2020, respectively. 

17.   RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
Transactions with RPC, Inc.
The Company provides certain administrative services to 
RPC, Inc. (“RPC”) (a company of which Mr. Gary W. Rollins 
was Chairman and currently serves as a Director). The service 
agreements between RPC and the Company provide for the 
provision of services on a cost reimbursement basis and are 
terminable on six months’ notice. The services covered by these 
agreements include administration of certain employee benefit 
programs and other administrative services. Charges to RPC (or 
to corporations which are subsidiaries of RPC) for such services 
and rent totaled approximately $0.1 million for each of the years 
ended December 31, 2022, 2021, and 2020.

Transactions with LOR, Inc.
Purchase of Gulfstream III Aircraft
During the year ended December 31, 2021, the Company 
purchased a Gulfstream III aircraft (“Gulfstream”) from LOR Inc. 
(“LOR”), a company controlled by Gary W. Rollins and certain 
members of his family) to be used as the Company’s primary 
airplane. The Company purchased the Gulfstream for $0.5 million 
and paid the applicable taxes of forty thousand dollars. The 
purchase of the Gulfstream was approved by the Company’s 
Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee and the 
Committee was presented with an independent appraisal 
of the aircraft supporting the purchase. The Gulfstream was 
subsequently sold to a non-related third party in October 2022.

Pilot Sharing Agreement
The Company entered into a Pilot Sharing Agreement with 
LOR whereby the Company’s employee pilots may be used 
by LOR from time to time to operate the LOR aircraft and LOR 
will reimburse the Company for 50% of the costs of the pilots, 
including salary, benefits and training. In addition, LOR and the 
Company are each responsible for their own fuel costs. The Pilot 
Sharing Agreement was approved by the Company’s Nominating 
and Corporate Governance Committee. Charges to LOR under 
the Pilot Sharing Agreement total $0.6 million and $0.8 million 
for the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021, respectively.

Administrative Services Agreement
The Company also provides certain administrative services to 
LOR and rents office, hanger and storage space to LOR. Charges 
to LOR (or corporations which are subsidiaries of LOR) for rent 
and administrative services totaled $0.8 million, $0.6 million and 
$1.0 million for the years ended December 31, 2022, 2021 and 
2020, respectively. 

Lear Lease Agreement
In 2014, P.I.A. LLC, a company then owned by our late Chairman 
of the Board of Directors, R. Randall Rollins, purchased a Lear 
Model 35A jet and entered into a lease arrangement with 
the Company for company use of the aircraft for business 
purposes. P.I.A. LLC is now owned by a trust for the benefit of 
the late Mr. Rollins’ family. The lease is terminable by either 
party on 30 days’ notice. The Company pays $100 per month 
in rent for the leased aircraft, and pays all variable costs and 
expenses associated with the leased aircraft, such as the costs 
for fuel, maintenance, storage and pilots. The Company has 
the priority right to use of the aircraft on business days, and 
Rollins family members and guests have the right to use the 
aircraft for personal use through the terms of an Aircraft Time 
Sharing Agreement with the Company. The amounts paid by the 
Company for the Rollins family and guests to use the aircraft for 
personal use will be disclosed in the Summary Compensation 
Table and the Director Compensation Table to be included 
in the Company’s 2022 Proxy Statement. During the years 
ended December 31, 2022, 2021 and 2020, the Company paid 
approximately $0.3 million, $0.3 million, and $0.6 million in rent 
and operating costs under the Aircraft Time Sharing Agreement, 
respectively. The foregoing related party transactions were 
previously approved by the Company’s Nominating and 
Governance Committee of the Board of Directors.
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Related Party Franchise Agreement
On December 1, 2019, Orkin, a subsidiary of the Company entered 
into a franchise agreement with Wilson Pest Management, Inc. 
The franchise is owned 100% by John Wilson IV. During the years 
ended December 31, 2022, 2021 and 2020, the Company  
received a total of approximately $0.2 million, $0.1 million and  
$0.1 million, respectively. During the year ended December 31, 
2019 the Company received $0.8 million which included payment 
for the franchise and an initial franchise fee of seventy-five 
thousand dollars in connection with the transaction. The franchise 
agreement provides for a monthly royalty fee of 9.0% of the 
franchisee’s reported revenue. John Wilson IV is the son of John F. 
Wilson, Vice Chairman of the Company. The Company approved the 
agreement in accordance with its Related Party Transactions policy.

18.   SUBSEQUENT EVENTS
Quarterly Dividend
On January 23, 2023, the Company’s Board of Directors 
declared a regular quarterly cash dividend on its common stock 
of $0.13 payable March 10, 2023 to stockholders of record at 
the close of business February 10, 2023. The Company expects 
to continue to pay cash dividends to the common stockholders, 
subject to the earnings and financial condition of the Company 
and other relevant factors.

Item 9.
Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and 
Financial Disclosures
None.

Item 9A.
Controls and Procedures
Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures
The Company has a Disclosure Committee, consisting of certain 
members of management to assist our Chief Executive Officer 
(principal executive officer) and Chief Financial Officer (principal 
financial officer) in preparing the disclosures required under 
the SEC rules and to help ensure that the Company’s disclosure 
controls and procedures are properly implemented. The 
Disclosure Committee meets on a quarterly basis and otherwise 
as may be necessary.

The Disclosure Committee, with the participation of our principal 
executive officer and principal financial officer, conducted an 
evaluation of the effectiveness of the design and operation of 
our disclosure controls and procedures, as defined in rules 
13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) under the Securities Exchange Act 
of 1934, as amended (the “Exchange Act”) as of December 
31, 2022 (the “Evaluation Date”). Based on this evaluation, 
our principal executive officer and principal financial officer 

concluded that our disclosure controls and procedures were 
effective at the reasonable assurance level as of the Evaluation 
Date to ensure that the information required to be included in 
reports filed under the Exchange Act is recorded, processed, 
summarized and reported within the time periods specified in 
SEC rules and forms.

Management’s Report on Internal Control Over Financial 
Reporting—Management’s Report on Internal Control Over 
Financial Reporting is contained on page 33. The effectiveness 
of our internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 
2022 has been audited by Grant Thornton LLP, an independent 
registered public accounting firm, as stated in its report on  
page 34.

Changes in Internal Controls—There were no changes in our 
internal control over financial reporting during the fourth quarter 
of 2022 that materially affected or are reasonably likely to 
materially affect these controls.

Item 9B.
Other Information 
None.

Item 9C.
Disclosure Regarding Foreign Jurisdictions that Prevent Inspections 
Not Applicable.
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Part III
Item 10.
Directors, Executive Officers and Corporate Governance
The information required by this Item, except that set forth below 
regarding the Company’s code of ethics, will be set forth in our 
Proxy Statement for the 2023 Annual Meeting of Stockholders 
and is incorporated herein by reference. The Proxy Statement 
will be filed with the SEC within 120 days of the fiscal year ended 
December 31, 2022, or by the following business day. 

The Company has adopted a Code of Business Conduct that 
applies to all employees. In addition, the Company has adopted 
a Code of Business Conduct and Ethics for Directors and 
Executive Officers and Related Party Transactions policy. Both 

of these documents are available on the Company’s website at 
www.rollins.com, under the heading “Governance – Governance 
Documents,” and a copy is available by writing to Investor 
Relations at 2170 Piedmont Road, Atlanta, Georgia 30324. 
The Company intends to satisfy the disclosure requirement 
under Item 5.05 of Form 8-K regarding an amendment to, or 
waiver from, a provision of its code of ethics that relates to any 
elements of the code of ethics definition enumerated in SEC 
rules by posting such information on its internet website, the 
address of which is provided above.

Item 11.
Executive Compensation
The information required by this Item will be set forth in our 
Proxy Statement for the 2023 Annual Meeting of Stockholders 
and is incorporated herein by reference. The Proxy Statement 

will be filed with the SEC within 120 days of the fiscal year ended 
December 31, 2022, or by the following business day.

Item 12.
Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and 
Related Stockholder Matters
The information required by this Item will be set forth in our 
Proxy Statement for the 2023 Annual Meeting of Stockholders 
and is incorporated herein by reference. The Proxy Statement 

will be filed with the SEC within 120 days of the fiscal year ended 
December 31, 2022, or by the following business day.

Item 13.
Certain Relationships and Related Party Transactions, and Director 
Independence
Information concerning certain relationships and related party 
transactions and director independence will be included in the 

Proxy Statement for the 2023 Annual Meeting of Stockholders 
and is incorporated herein by reference.

Item 14.
Principal Accounting Fees and Services
Information regarding principal accounting fees and services will 
be included in the Proxy Statement for the 2023 Annual Meeting 
of Stockholders and is incorporated herein by reference.
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Part IV
Item 15.
Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedules 
(a)	 Consolidated Financial Statements, Financial Statement Schedule and Exhibits.

	 1.	 �Consolidated financial statements listed in the accompanying Index to Consolidated Financial Statements and  
Schedule are filed as part of this report.

	 2.	 �Exhibits listed in the accompanying Index to Exhibits are filed as part of this report. The following such exhibits  
are management contracts or compensatory plans or arrangements:

Exhibit No. Exhibit Description

Incorporated By Reference Filed 
HerewithForm Date Number

2.1 Stock Purchase Agreement by and among Rollins, Inc., 
Clark Pest Control of Stockton, Inc., the Stockholders of 
Clark Pest Control of Stockton, Inc. the Principals and the 
Stockholders Representative

10-Q April 26,  
2019 10.1

2.2 Asset Purchase Agreement among King Distribution, Inc.,  
a Delaware corporation, Geotech Supply Co., LLC, a 
California limited liability company, and Clarksons California 
Properties, California limited partnership

10-Q April 26,  
2019 10.2

2.3 Real Estate Purchase Agreement by and between RCI – 
King, Inc., and Clarksons California Properties, a California 
limited partnership

10-Q April 26,  
2019 10.3

3.1 Restated Certificate of Incorporation of Rollins, Inc., dated 
July 28, 1981 10-Q August 1,  

2005 (3)(i)(A)

3.2 Certificate of Amendment of Certificate of Incorporation of 
Rollins, Inc., dated August 20, 1987 10-K March 11,  

2005 (3)(i)(B)

3.3 Certificate of Change of Location of Registered Office and of 
Registered Agent, dated March 22, 1994 10-Q August 1,  

2005 (3)(i)(C)

3.5 Certificate of Amendment of Certificate of Incorporation of 
Rollins, Inc., dated April 26, 2011 10-K February  

25, 2015 (3)(i)(E)

3.6 Certificate of Amendment of Certificate of Incorporation of 
Rollins, Inc., dated April 28, 2015 10-Q July 29,  

2015 (3)(i)(F)

3.7 Certificate of Amendment of Certificate of Incorporation of 
Rollins, Inc., dated April 23, 2019 10-Q April 26,  

2019 (3)(i)(G)

3.8 Certificate of Amendment of Certificate of Incorporation of 
Rollins, Inc., dated April 27, 2021 10-Q July 30,  

2021 (3)(i)(H)

3.9 Amended and Restated By-laws of Rollins, Inc., dated  
May 20, 2021 8-K May 24,  

2021 3.1

4.1 Form of Common Stock Certificate of Rollins, Inc. 10-K March 26,  
1999 (4)

4.2 Description of Registrant’s Securities 10-K February 28, 
2020 4(b)
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Exhibit No. Exhibit Description

Incorporated By Reference Filed 
HerewithForm Date Number

10.1+ Membership Interest Purchase Agreement by and among 
Rollins, Inc., Northwest Exterminating Co., Inc. NW Holdings, 
LLC and the stockholders of Northwest Exterminating Co., 
Inc. dated as of July 24, 2017

10-Q October 27, 
2017 10.1

10.2* Rollins, Inc. Amended and Restated Deferred  
Compensation Plan S-8 November 18, 

2005 4.1

10.3* Form of Plan Agreement pursuant to the Rollins, Inc. 
Amended and Restated Deferred Compensation Plan S-8 November 18, 

2005 4.2

10.4* Forms of award agreements under the 2013 Cash  
Incentive Plan 10-K February 24, 

2017 10(d)

10.5* 2018 Stock Incentive Plan DEF 14A March 21,  
2018 Appendix A

10.6* Form of Restricted Stock Grant Agreement 8-K April 28,  
2008 10(d)

10.7* Form of Time-Lapse Restricted Stock Agreement 10-Q April 27,  
2012 10.1

10.8* Form of Time-Lapse Restricted Stock Agreement of  
Non-Section 16 Reporting Persons 10-Q October 27, 

2022 10.17

10.9* Form of Time-Lapse Restricted Stock Agreement for  
Section 16 Reporting Persons 10-Q October 27, 

2022 10.18

10.10* Form of Rollins, Inc. Performance Share Unit Award 
Agreement X

10.11* Rollins, Inc. 2023 Executive Bonus Agreement– 
Gary W. Rollins X

10.12* Rollins, Inc. 2023 Executive Bonus Agreement– 
Jerry E. Gahlhoff, Jr. X

10.13* Rollins, Inc. 2023 Executive Bonus Agreement– 
Kenneth D. Krause X

10.14* Rollins, Inc. 2023 Executive Bonus Agreement– 
John F. Wilson X

10.15* Rollins, Inc. 2023 Executive Bonus Agreement– 
Elizabeth B. Chandler X

10.16* Offer Letter dated July 25, 2022, between Kenneth D. 
Krause and the Company 10-Q October 27, 

2022 10.19

10.17 Revolving Credit Agreement dated as of April 30, 2019 
between Rollins, Inc. and SunTrust Bank and Bank of 
America, N.A

10-K February 28, 
2020 (10)(j)

10.18 Amended Credit Agreement dated as of January 27, 2022 
between Rollins, Inc. and Truist Bank in its capacity as 
Administrative Agent and as a Lender and Bank of America, 
N.A. as a Lender*

10-K February 25, 
2022 10.12

10.19 Annex A to the Credit Agreement dated as of January 27, 
2022 between Rollins, Inc. and Truist Bank in its capacity as 
Administrative Agent and as a Lender and Bank of America, 
N.A. as a Lender

10-K February 25, 
2022 10.13
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Exhibit No. Exhibit Description

Incorporated By Reference Filed 
HerewithForm Date Number

10.20 Annex B to the Credit Agreement dated as of January 27, 
2022 between Rollins, Inc. and Truist Bank in its capacity as 
Administrative Agent and as a Lender and Bank of America, 
N.A. as a Lender

10-K February 25, 
2022 10.14

21 Subsidiaries of Registrant X

23.1 Consent of Grant Thornton LLP, Independent Registered 
Public Accounting Firm X

24 Powers of Attorney for Directors X

31.1 Certification of Chief Executive Officer Pursuant to Item 
601(b)(31) of Regulation S-K, as adopted pursuant to 
Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

X

31.2 Certification of Chief Financial Officer Pursuant to Item 
601(b)(31) of Regulation S-K, as adopted pursuant to 
Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

X

32.1** Certification of Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial 
Officer Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted 
pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

X

101.INS Inline XBRL Instance Document X

101.SCH Inline XBRL Schema Document X

101.CAL Inline XBRL Calculation Linkbase Document X

101.LAB Inline XBRL Labels Linkbase Document X

101.PRE Inline XBRL Presentation Linkbase Document X

101.DEF Inline XBRL Definition Linkbase Document X

104 Cover Page Interactive Data File (embedded with  
the Inline XBRL document)

X

  *	Indicates management contract or compensatory plan or arrangement.

**	�This certification is deemed furnished, and not filed, with the Securities and Exchange Commission and is not to be incorporated 
by reference into any filing of Rollins, Inc. under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, or the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, 
as amended, whether made before or after the date of this Annual Report on Form 10-K, irrespective of any general incorporation 
language contained in such filing.

 +	�Confidential treatment has been requested for certain portions of this exhibit. Such information has been omitted and was filed 
separately with the Securities and Exchange Commission.
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Signatures
Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Registrant has duly caused this report 
to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

ROLLINS, INC.

By: /s/ Jerry E. Gahlhoff, Jr.

Date:

Jerry E. Gahlhoff, Jr. 
President and Chief Executive Officer 
(Principal Executive Officer) 
 
February 16, 2023

 

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by the following persons on 
behalf of the Registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated.

By: /s/ Jerry E. Gahlhoff, Jr.   By: /s/ Kenneth D. Krause

Date:

Jerry E. Gahlhoff, Jr. 
President and Chief Executive Officer 
(Principal Executive Officer) 
 
February 16, 2023   Date:

Kenneth D. Krause 
Executive Vice President, Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer 
(Principal Financial Officer) 
 
February 16, 2023

By: /s/ Traci Hornfeck

Date:

Traci Hornfeck. 
Chief Accounting Officer 
(Principal Accounting Officer) 
 
February 16, 2023

 

The Directors of Rollins, Inc. (listed below) executed a power of attorney appointing Jerry E. Gahlhoff, Jr. their attorney-in-fact, 
empowering him to sign this report on their behalf.

Gary W. Rollins, Chairman

Jerry W. Nix, Lead Director

Susan R. Bell, Director

Donald P. Carson, Director

Jerry E. Gahlhoff, Director

Patrick J. Gunning, Director

Gregory B. Morrison, Director

Louise S. Sams, Director

Pamela R. Rollins, Director

John F. Wilson, Director

 

/s/ Jerry E. Gahlhoff, Jr.

Jerry E. Gahlhoff, Jr. 
As Attorney-in-Fact & Director 
February 16, 2023
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Index to Consolidated Financial Statements 
and Schedule
Rollins, Inc. and Subsidiaries
The following documents are filed as part of this report.

Financial Statements and Reports

Page Number  
From This  

Form 10-K

Management’s Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 33

Reports of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm (PCAOB ID Number 248) 34

Consolidated Financial Statements

Consolidated Statements of Financial Position as of December 31, 2022 and 2021 37

Consolidated Statements of Income for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2022 38

Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2022 39

Consolidated Statements of Stockholders’ Equity for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2022 40

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2022 41

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 42–61

Financial Statement Schedules
All schedules have been omitted as not applicable, immaterial or disclosed in the Consolidated Financial Statements 
or notes thereto.
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Reconciliation of Non-GAAP Measures
Reconciliation of Net Income to Adjusted Net Income and EPS

Variance
Years Ended December 31, 2022 2021 $ %
(in thousands)

Net income $     368,599 $     356,565  $     12,034  3.4 
Property disposition gains (net of tax $23,230)  —  (31,517)  31,517  — 
SEC matter(1)  —  8,000  (8,000)  — 
Adjusted income taxes on excluded items  —  8,287  (8,287)  — 
Adjusted net income $     368,599 $     341,335  $     27,264 8.0
Adjusted earnings per share – basic and diluted $             0.75 $             0.69 $          0.06  8.7 
Weighted average shares outstanding – basic  492,300  492,054  246  0.0 
Weighted average shares outstanding – diluted   492,413   492,054  359  0.1 
(1) � These amounts were not tax deductible for state or federal purposes.

Reconciliation of Net Income to EBITDA and Adjusted EBITDA

Variance
Years Ended December 31, 2022 2021 $ %
(in thousands)

Net income  $     368,599  $     356,565 $     12,034  3.4 
Depreciation and amortization  91,326  86,558  4,768  5.5 
Interest expense, net  2,638  830  1,808  217.8 
Provision for income taxes  130,318  125,920  4,398  3.5 

EBITDA  592,881  569,873  23,008  4.0 

Property disposition gains  — (31,517)    31,517  — 
SEC matter  — 8,000     (8,000)  — 
Adjusted EBITDA  $     592,881  $     546,356 $     46,525  8.5 

Certain consolidated financial statement amounts relative to prior periods have been revised, the effects of which are immaterial.  
See the Basis of Presentation disclosure as part of Footnote 1 of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for a discussion of 
this revision including a reconciliation to the previous reported amounts.

Reconciliation of Revenues to Organic Revenues

Variance
Years Ended December 31, 2022 2021 $ %
(in thousands)

Revenues $ 2,695,823 $ 2,424,300 $  271,523  11.2 
Revenue growth from acquisitions  (81,491)  —  (81,491)  — 
Organic revenues $ 2,614,332 $ 2,424,300 $  190,032  7.8 



Shareholder Information

STOCK LISTING

The Common Stock of the Company is listed on  
the New York Stock Exchange and traded on the  
Philadelphia, Chicago, and Boston Exchanges  
under the symbol ROL.

STOCK TRANSFER AGENT, REGISTRAR  
OF STOCK, DIVIDEND DISBURSING AGENT  
AND OTHER SHAREHOLDER SERVICES

For inquiries related to stock certificates, including  
changes of address, lost certificates, dividends, and  
tax forms, please contact:

American Stock Transfer and Trust 
6201 15th Street 
Brooklyn, NY 11219 
866-708-5581

DIVIDEND REINVESTMENT PLAN

This Plan provides a simple, convenient, and inexpensive  
way for shareholders to invest cash dividends in additional 
Rollins, Inc. shares. For further information, contact  
Investor Relations at the mailing address below.

ANNUAL SHAREHOLDER MEETING

The Annual Meeting of the Shareholders will be held at  
12:30 p.m., April 25, 2023, at the Company’s corporate  
offices in Atlanta, Georgia.

EXECUTIVE OFFICES

Rollins, Inc. 
2170 Piedmont Road, N.E. 
Atlanta, Georgia 30324

MAILING ADDRESS

Rollins, Inc. 
P.O. Box 647 
Atlanta, Georgia 30301

TELEPHONE

404-888-2000

DIRECTORS

Gary W. Rollins •

Executive Chairman of the Board of Rollins, Inc.,  
Director of RPC, Inc. (oil and gas field services) and  
Marine Products Corporation (boat manufacturing)

Jerry W. Nix – Lead Director * 

Retired Vice Chairman, EVP and CFO of Genuine Parts Co., 
Lead Director of RPC, Inc. and Marine Products Corporation

Susan R. Bell †

Retired Partner of Ernst & Young, LLP.

Donald P. Carson ‡

Former President of RFA Management, Nevada  
Oversight and GWR PTC, LLC

Jerry E. Gahlhoff, Jr.
President and Chief Executive Officer of Rollins, Inc.

Patrick J. Gunning ̂
Retired Partner of Ernst & Young, LLP.

Gregory B. Morrison  ̂  º

Retired CIO of Cox Enterprises

Pamela R. Rollins
Community Leader

Louise S. Sams º ‡

Retired EVP and General Counsel of  
Turner Broadcasting System, Inc.

John F. Wilson
Vice Chairman and Assistant to the  
Chairman of the Board of Rollins, Inc.

• �Chair of the Executive Committee

* �Chair of the Human Capital Management and Compensation  
Committee, and Nominating and Governance Committee;  
Member of the Executive Committee

† Chair of the Audit Committee
^ �Member of the Audit Committee

º �Member of the Human Capital Management and Compensation Committee
‡ �Member of the Nominating and Governance Committee
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